Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)

(*Please note the earlier start. On this occasion, there will be no pre-meeting )

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on
Tuesday, 16th March, 2010 at 9.30a.m.*

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

S Bentley

J Chapman

D Congreve

M Dobson (Chair)
D Hollingsworth

Weetwood;

Weetwood,;

Beeston and Holbeck;
Garforth and Swillington;

Burmantofts and Richmond
Hill;

J lllingworth Kirkstall;
M Igbal City and Hunslet;
G Kirkland Otley and Yeadon;
A Lamb Wetherby;
P Wadsworth Roundhay;
L Yeadon Kirkstall,

Co-opted Members

Arthur Giles -
Razwanah Alam -

Leeds LINk
Leeds Voice

Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded on tape

Agenda compiled by:
Janet Pritchard
Governance Services
Civic Hall

LEEDS LS1 1UR
Telephone No: 247 4327

Principal Scrutiny Advisor:
Steven Courtney
Tel: 247 4707

Produced on Recycled Paper



AGENDA

Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).

(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours
before the meeting).

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:-

RESOLVED - That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

No exempt items on this agenda.




Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the
purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local Government
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members
Code of Conduct.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

MINUTES - 16TH FEBRUARY 2010

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 16™ February 2010.

THE LOCAL HEALTH ECONOMY - PRIORITIES
FOR NHS LEEDS

To receive and consider the attached report of the
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development.

John Lawlor, Chief Executive, NHS Leeds, to be in
attendance.

JOINT PERFORMANCE REPORT: QUARTER 3
2009/10

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development presenting the
joint performance report from NHS Leeds and
Leeds City Council which provides an overview of
progress against key improvement priorities and
performance indicators relevant to the Board at
Quarter 3, 2009/10.

1-10

11 -
12

13 -
66



Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

10

11

12

PROVISION OF DERMATOLOGY SERVICES -
UPDATE

Further to Minute No. 45, 24" November 2009, to
receive and consider the attached update report
from the Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development.

RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS - RESPONSE TO
THE SCRUTINY BOARD'S STATEMENT AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Further to Minute No. 55, 15" December 2009, to
receive and consider the attached report of the
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development.

UPDATED WORK PROGRAMME 2009/10

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development presenting an
update on current activity and the Board'’s revised
outline work programme for the remainder of the
current municipal year, for the Board to consider,
amend and agree as appropriate.

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Board will be
held on 27™ April 2010 at 10.00am with a pre-
meeting for Board Members at 9.30am.

67 -
70

71 -
80

81 -
112



Agenda ltem 6

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)
TUESDAY, 16TH FEBRUARY, 2010
PRESENT: Councillor M Dobson in the Chair

Councillors S Bentley, J Chapman,

D Congreve, D Hollingsworth, J lllingworth,
G Kirkland, A Lamb, P Wadsworth and

L Yeadon

CO-OPTEES: A Giles (Leeds Local Involvement Network)
R Alam (Leeds Voice, Health Forum)

68 Late Items

In accordance with his powers under Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the Chair admitted to the agenda two items of late
information relating to Item 7 (Minute No. 73 refers) which had been
unavailable at the time of the agenda despatch:

e Briefing paper from Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust

e Briefing paper from NHS Leeds

69 Declarations of Interest

In respect of Agenda Item 7 ‘Scrutiny Inquiry: The Role of the Council and its
Partners in Promoting Good Public Health (Session 3)’ (Minute No. 73 refers),
Councillor Lamb declared a personal interest as the owner of a public house
business in Walton near Wetherby.

70 Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Igbal.
71 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

In response to a query, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser confirmed that the final
inquiry report and any recommendations would be agreed by the Board.
However, at this stage the draft report was likely to include a recommendation
around the guidance paper — ‘Promoting physical activity for children and
young people’, produced by NICE, being incorporated into the Local
Development Framework.

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 16" February 2010 be
confirmed as a correct record.

72 Welcome to New Members

At this point in the meeting the Chair welcomed two new co-optee members to
the Board. They were introduced as:

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 1



¢ Arthur Giles, representing Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk), and
e Razwanah Alam, representing Leeds Voice, Health Forum.

73 Scrutiny Inquiry: The Role of the Council and its Partners in
Promoting Good Public Health (Session 3)

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report
introducing the third session of the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry focusing on the
role of the council and its partners in promoting good public health. The aim
of the session was to consider matters associated with promoting responsible
alcohol consumption and reducing alcohol related harm.

Attached to the report was the following information:

e Action Plan for the Improvement Priorities in the Health and Wellbeing
Partnership Plan (2009-2012) of the Leeds Strategic Plan (2008-2011) —
Appendix 1

e House of Commons Health Committee summary statement and extract of
report on Alcohol — Appendix 2

e NICE public health guidance 7, School-based interventions on alcohol —
Appendix 3

e Healthy Ambitions: Staying Healthy Pathway — summary of
recommendations — Appendix 4

e Briefing note of the role of the Licensing Authority (Leeds City Council)
under the Licensing Act 2003 — Appendix 5

Two additional papers had also been accepted as late information under
Agenda Item 3 (Minute No. 68 refers):

e Briefing paper from Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust

e Briefing paper from NHS Leeds

The Chair welcomed the following officers from NHS Leeds to the meeting:

e Drlan Cameron, Director of Public Health (NHS Leeds, Directorate of
Public Health)

e Brenda Fullard, Head of Healthy Living and Inequalities (NHS Leeds,
Directorate of Public Health)

e Luke Turnbull, Strategic Development Manager — Alcohol and
other Substance Use (NHS Leeds, Directorate of Public Health)

The Chair also welcomed the following officers from Leeds City Council:

e John England, Deputy Director of Adult Social Services (Leeds City
Council)

e Seamus Kennedy, Principal Liaison & Enforcement Officer (Leeds City
Council, Entertainment Licensing)

The Director of Public Health gave the Board a brief overview of the effects of

alcohol related harm from a NHS perspective. He referred to in brief
summary:

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 2



The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (published in 2009) outlined the
challenges that Leeds faced for the next 15 years. Reducing alcohol
related harm was likely to remain a significant challenge.

Alcohol related harm affected a sizeable proportion of the population. Its
effects were increasing year on year and there was a need to reduce the
levels of consumption across the City and for support services to be in
place.

There was a need for a cultural shift in the consumption of alcohol.
Reducing alcohol related harm was a priority and had been identified by
NHS Leeds as one of eight performance priorities which would be
assessed as part of the World Class Commissioning (WCC) programme.
The next assessment would be May 2010.

The role of advocacy around the effects of harm caused by alcohol. The
NHS Leeds Board had agreed to support and lobby with other core cities
for a minimum price for alcohol.

Partnership working in Leeds, across the region and beyond. NHS Leeds
were keen to learn from other areas and share best practice.

The Head of Healthy Living and Inequalities and the Strategic Development
Manager addressed the Board on NHS Leeds’ priorities and referred to the
NHS Leeds briefing paper on alcohol. The main issues highlighted included:

The graph, which demonstrated that consumption of alcohol had steadily
increased in the UK since 1984, along with alcohol related deaths.

The social impacts of alcohol and that many of the indicators were
significantly worse in Leeds than the national average.

The costs of tackling the harm caused by alcohol misuse and that the
Leeds Alcohol Strategy 2007-10 estimated the cost of alcohol in Leeds to
the NHS alone as £23.13 million per year.

Harm to health and that alcohol related hospital admissions in Leeds had
risen by far more than the national and regional rates.

The national direction and approach to promote sensible drinking and
reduce alcohol related harm, in particular the updated government joint
strategy. The 7 high impact changes which the Department of Health had
calculated were the most effective actions for local areas to prioritise and
which Leeds had taken on board were also outlined.

Partnership working

With regard to partnership working, the existing Alcohol Strategy would
remain current until March 2010 and, through the Leeds Joint Alcohol
Management Board, the strategy was being refreshed.

The research partnership (CLAHRC) which was exploring effective
interventions and influencing commissioning decisions, particularly around
alcohol treatments in hospitals and how best to reduce admissions.

Impact of alcohol misuse in the community
Two alcohol harm reduction demonstration sites in Middleton and Armley.

Influence change through advocacy

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 3



A report commissioned to describe the financial impact of alcohol to Leeds
— the costs and benefits.

Improving the effectiveness and capacity of specialist treatment
Currently Leeds treated 9.2% of estimated dependent drinkers in the PCT
area. The Department of Health (DoH) recommendation was for at least
15% of dependent drinkers to be in treatment.

Through the expansion of the NHS Health Check in GP practices across
the City, more people were likely to be identified as harmful drinkers — as
such, demand for specialist treatment was likely to increase.

Alcohol health worker
The expansion of the LTHT Alcohol Scheme with the appointment of an
additional 3 staff members during 2010-11.

Identification and brief advice

Recognition that there was a need to increase the availability of advice
and support for people to reduce their alcohol consumption and
‘Identification and Brief Advice’ would be increased in hospitals and GP
practices.

Social marketing priorities

That a social marketing company ‘Journey’ had been commissioned to
produce a report on the approach to changing public attitudes and
behaviour and to designing services. The report would be available in
March 2010.

The Deputy Director of Adult Social Services then addressed the Board,
raising the following issues:

The importance of listening to the concerns raised by members of the
public around excessive alcohol consumption: crime and disorder, anti-
social behaviour on the street and safety in the city centre.

The Adult Social Care and Environment and Neighbourhood Departments
were significant commissioners of services.  However there were
insufficient services to meet the demand.

That under age consumption of alcohol was a significant problem in the
City. Control over the sale of alcohol was therefore important as was
education in schools around safe alcohol consumption.

Safer Leeds also made a major contribution. There were voluntary
initiatives in place in the licensing trade, one of which limited access to
certain products to over 25s only. There was also a pilot arrest referral
scheme, where people causing problems due to drink could be referred to
a service as an alternative to a court appearance.

The Principal Liaison & Enforcement Officer addressed the Board and raised
the following licensing issues:

The Licensing Act 2003 came into effect in November 2005. It was a
major overhaul of the existing system. The Act was underpinned by 4
licensing objectives: The prevention of crime and disorder; Public safety;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 4



The prevention of public nuisance; and The protection of children from
harm. Public health was not included with government guidance citing it
was dealt with in other legislation (and not the Licensing Act).

The success of multi-agency working with Safer Leeds the police and
Trading Standards. However, improvements could be made.

That regular visits to licensed premises were carried out by LCC'’s
Entertainment Licensing Enforcement Team and the police and
prosecutions were taken when appropriate. However more often officers
endeavoured to work with operators to try and resolve particular issues of
concern.

The Department very much supported the minimum pricing of alcohol.
NHS Manchester were lobbying Government for this and Leeds was also
giving its support.

The Department also supported the introduction of mandatory codes
(rather than voluntary codes) which would for instance ban irresponsible
drinks promotions, ban ‘dentist chairs’ and ensure the availability of free
water. LCC Entertainment Licensing and LCC Community Safety/Safer
Leeds provided a joint response to the Department of Health's
Safe.Sensible.Social consultation in July 2008, resulting in the new
mandatory code for alcohol retailers.

In brief summary, the Board then raised and discussed the following issues
and concerns:

Funding of alcohol related issues and prioritising, particularly in relation to
the 7 high impact changes identified by the DoH — officers advised that in
the present financial climate, no guarantees about funding could be given,
however they agreed to keep the Board informed. Achieving the DoH
recommendation for 15% of dependant drinkers to be in treatment was a
priority and a significant challenge.

Clarity on the target for 15% of dependant drinkers to be in treatment —
officers advised there were an estimated 23,000 dependent drinkers in
Leeds, therefore 15% was a considerable number.

That the partnership was not engaging with representatives from the
licensing trade; publicans and supermarkets, and these representatives
were also not at this meeting — officers advised that the retail industry were
in business to increase the consumption and sales of alcohol, although it
was recognised that partnership working was vital in the widest sense.

The introduction of minimum pricing — officers reiterated that studies had
shown that this would aid the reduction of alcohol consumption and would
particularly target problem drinkers and young people. Sensible drinkers it
was estimated would pay an extra £14 per year. NHS Leeds had declared
its support and would be lobbying Government for its introduction. A few
years ago a number of Leeds agencies had explored the possibility of
infroducing minimum pricing per unit alcohol, however, they were unable
to progress due to existing competition laws.

The huge disparity between the price of alcohol sold in pubs and
supermarkets. That supermarkets, with their special offers of buying in
bulk, encouraged excessive drinking — officers advised that it was
recognised that, at times, some supermarkets sold alcohol at a loss. It
was hoped to outlaw this practice with the introduction of a sensible pricing

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 5



policy in all supermarkets, however this needed to be addressed
nationally.

That landlords of pubs could be held responsible for patrons’ drunken
behaviour while on the premises, but not when they had left the premises.
Supermarket customers however would not normally be drunk when
making a purchase of discounted alcohol and management would not
therefore be responsible for customers’ actions, even when they had left
the supermarket and had consumed the alcohol — officers acknowledged
that this was an area of concern that needed to be addressed nationally.
The problem of people drinking at home on cheaper alcohol bought from
supermarkets and arriving in town in the evening already intoxicated —
officers advised that drinking in a pub was often a much safer environment
than drinking at home. Home drinking could also lead to children and
young people having inappropriate access to alcohol .

Voluntary codes — officers advised that the Government had recognised
that voluntary codes had not worked and mandatory codes were now
being called for. Officers advised on the 5 proposed mandatory licensing
conditions that the Government was introducing i) 3 mandatory conditions
on the 6™ April 2010 (ie banning irresponsible drinks promotions such as
‘all you can drink for £10° offers, women drink free deals and speed
drinking competitions; banning ‘dentist’s chairs’; and ensuring free tap
water was made available to customers) and ii) 2 mandatory conditions on
15! October 2010 (ie age verification policy; and, on trade premises,
making available small measures of beer, wine and spirits). The
mandatory code for alcohol retailers was granted through the Policing and
Crime Act 2009. The Act provided scope for a maximum of 9 mandatory
conditions and it was hoped, maybe, that restrictions on supermarket sales
would be included in future mandatory conditions.

Changing the culture of excessive drinking, particularly in young people.
Licensing Committees brought local knowledge but their decisions were
often overturned at the magistrates court.

The shortcomings of the Licensing Act 2003 — officers advised that it was
acknowledged that people did drink alcohol before going out and therefore
supermarket sales were a concern but that there was no real commitment
to address this. The NHS Leeds Board would be joining the campaign to
lobby government to introduce a mandatory minimum unit price of alcohol.
Partnership working with the universities — officers advised that NHS
Leeds offered advice to students on their drinking habits through the
university websites.

Data on hospital admissions and arrivals at A&E — officers agreed to
produce a report on the information and data held, to show whether there
were variations throughout the year caused by the influx of students in
term time. Officers also agreed to provide the Board with the data already
gathered.

The graph showing rising alcohol consumption as related to alcohol
related deaths in the UK since 1984 — officers agreed to provide the Board
with information on the actual change in alcohol consumption that had
taken place since 1984.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 6



Alcohol duty — Members were advised that the revenue raised was
earmarked to the NHS.

Alcohol and education — Members were advised that the national
curriculum included an element on alcohol education. Education Leeds
would be consulted on the new Leeds Alcohol Strategy.

The culture of drinking in the north — officers advised that social marketing
work was being carried out in order to tailor the NHS’ actions to the needs
of Leeds’ people.

Whether treatment worked in the long-term — officers advised that while
some success rates were relatively small, there was evidence that
treatments did work and that they were recommended by the DoH.
Enforcement in (night)clubs — Members were advised that the LCC
Entertainment Licensing Enforcement Team worked very closely with the
police and Trading Standards. The police regularly carried out sobriety
tests in the city centre and issued fixed penalty notices when appropriate
to the members of staff involved. If the problem was very serious and on-
going, there was an option for prosecution or to apply to review a
premises’ licence. Where evidence of one or more of the licensing
objectives were being undermined, a licence could be suspended or
revoked, the designated premises supervisor removed, or the licence
conditions could be added to, modified or removed.

The Chair then welcomed the following officers from LTHT NHS Trust to the
meeting:

Al Sheward, Divisional Nurse (Medicine) (Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS
Trust)

Anna Di Biasio, Accident and Emergency Matron (acting) (Leeds Teaching
Hospitals NHS Trust)

Kevin Reynard, Clinical Director for Urgent Care (Leeds Teaching
Hospitals NHS Trust)

The officers gave the Board a brief overview of the problems experienced by
alcohol related harm from the LTHT NHS Trust staff’'s perspective. They
referred to:

The number of patients that presented at A&E with alcohol related
problems. This stood at 1% (2,000 per year), but for Friday and Saturday
nights, it was estimated that over 50% of those attending A&E, did so
having consumed alcohol.

At St James’ the figures for patients attending A&E overall were relatively
uniform across the week and the year, but at LGl in the city centre the
figures peaked at the weekends. During Freshers week there was a
doubling of attendance by young people under the age of 21. However, it
was not known whether these increases were entirely alcohol related.
Some of the injuries and conditions were severe, even resulting in death.
The disruption to the A&E department by patients and the friends that
accompanied them; many presenting challenging behaviour.

In brief summary, the Board then raised and discussed the following issues:

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 7



Changes in the Licensing Act which had introduced longer drinking hours
in licensed premises — officers advised that over recent years they had
observed some changes in the profile of A&E attendance between St
James’ and LGI — with a shift towards the latter. However, there was no
hard data to indicate a relationship between this and changes to the
Licensing Act.

Student events - Members were advised that the first ‘Carnage’ weekend
(ie in 2008) did have a major impact on A&E. However improvements had
been made to the event, with ‘Carnage’ now providing their own medical
support at events and ensuring that there were no cheap drink promotions.
This resulted in there being no significant rise in patient numbers at A&E
during the 2009 event.

Dealing with challenging behaviour — officers advised that there was
significant disruption to A&E during the night, due in part to drunk people
behaving differently to how they would when sober, which was demanding
on staff time. There were no other commissioned services for these
patients to be redirected to.

Assaults on staff — Members were advised that security levels had been
increased in the department out of hours and staff were supported by the
police. Patients were often unpredictable but they aimed to protect their
staff as much as possible. The police could issue Anti-Social Behavioural
Orders (ASBOs) against disruptive people.

Patient on Patient Assaults - officers advised that this was rare due to the
good security presence. Patients however were often in greater harm of
injuring themselves by not being in full control of their faculties and falling
over or by making irrational decisions. All this was very time consuming
on staff time.

Prosecutions resulting from assaults on staff — Members were advised that
there had been two serious assaults on staff but neither had been
converted into a prosecution. In fact there was no known prosecution of
any patient in Leeds. In 1997 the Zero Tolerance campaign had been
launched between the NHS and the police and it was still in place, but it
did not appear to extend as far as prosecutions.

Whether there had been an increase in A&E admissions as a result in an
increased prevalence of home drinking — officers advised that increases in
home drinking were more likely to result in chronic admissions. Officers
advised that there had been some changes to the age profile of patients
suffering from chronic conditions — with it not being uncommon for people
in their 20’s presenting with cirrhosis of the liver. Members were also
advised that over recent years there had been a rise in the prevalence of
self harm among young people — although it was recognised this was not
Just alcohol related.

Children’s Emergency Department — officers advised that this was
separated from the rest of the Department at LGI.

The anti-social aspects of alcohol consumption — officers advised that the
police gathered intelligence to help assess whether practices in any
particular licensed premises were giving cause for concern.

Chronic Sufferers — officers advised that there was a high mortality rate
and therefore the number of patients had not risen. LTHT NHS Trust was

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 8



in the process of appointing an alcohol health worker, who it was hoped
would identify patients who were early on in their drinking careers, with a
view to supporting them and stopping them becoming problem drinkers.

e Statistical data — officers agreed to liaise with the Principal Scrutiny
Adviser in providing the Board with any particular information required by
Members.

e Detoxification — officers advised that this service was not offered by LTHT
NHS Trust. Most detoxification services in Leeds were based around the
needs of homeless people.

The Chair thanked the officers for attending the meeting and for the excellent
work that they carried out on behalf of the citizens of Leeds.

Members agreed that it would be beneficial to hear the views of
representatives from the police authority.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the contents of the report and appendices be noted.

(b)  That the main issues to come out of this third session of the inquiry be
included in the Board’s final scrutiny inquiry report.

(c) That the Director of Public Health keep the Board informed of financial
developments.

(d)  That the Director of Public Health provide the Board with information on
the actual change in alcohol consumption that had taken place since
1984.

(e)  That the Head of Healthy Living and Inequalities provide the Board with
data on hospital admissions and arrivals at A&E to show whether there
were variations throughout the year caused by the influx of students in
term time.

() That the Clinical Director for Urgent Care liaise with the Principal
Scrutiny Adviser in providing the Board with any particular information
required by Members.

(g)  That the views of representatives from the police authority be heard by
the Board. (Note: This was discussed under the Work Programme.)

(Note: Councillor Chapman joined the meeting at 10.15am during the
consideration of this item and Councillor Yeadon left the meeting at 10.30am
during the consideration of this item.)

74 Updated Work Programme 2009/10

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report
presenting a revised outline work programme for the Board to consider,
amend and agree as appropriate. The revised outline work programme was
presented at Appendix 1 for consideration.

Steven Courtney, Principal Scrutiny Adviser, advised Members that there
were now only two formal Board meetings remaining in the municipal year.
With regard to Quality Accounts, Members were advised that, following
discussion with NHS colleagues, consideration of the draft NHS quality

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 9



accounts would now take place at the April 2010 meeting of the Board. It was
also proposed that further consideration of LTHT’s proposals and consultation
around becoming a Foundation Trust would also now take place at the April
2010 meeting of the Board.

The Principal Scrutiny Adviser suggested that, due to time considerations,
that the part of the Scrutiny Inquiry (the role of the Council and its partners in
promoting good public health) that was to consider ‘reducing the level of
smoking‘ either be considered at a separate working group of the Board or be
deferred. However, Members agreed to remove this area of concern from the
Inquiry, as they considered that the Board could not currently contribute
anything else to the smoking debate (particularly given the limited time
available during the current municipal year) and that the Board should
concentrate on other issues where real progress could be made.

With regard to the Inquiry session on promoting responsible alcohol
consumption, it was agreed that the Principal Scrutiny Adviser would attempt
to arrange a working group of the Board in order to consider the views of the
Safer Leeds partnership and police.

At Members’ suggestion, the Board also agreed to put forward for potential
inclusion on the following year’s work programme, the health and social
effects of atmospheric pollution due to cars.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the contents of the report and appendix be noted.

(b)  That the following topics be considered at the April 2010 meeting of the
Board:

e Draft NHS Quality Accounts
e LTHT's proposals and consultation around becoming a Foundation
Trust

(c) That the session on ‘reducing the level of smoking‘ be removed from
the Scrutiny Inquiry: The role of the Council and its partners in
promoting good public health.

(d)  That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser endeavour to set up a working
group of the Board to consider the views of the police as part of the
Inquiry session on promoting responsible alcohol consumption.

(e)  That the issue of the health and social effects of atmospheric pollution
due to cars be put forward for potential inclusion onto the Board’s work
programme for 2010/11.

75 Date and Time of Next Meeting

Noted that the next meeting of the Board would be held on Tuesday 16™
March 2010 at 10.00am with a pre-meeting for Board members at 9.30am.

Councillor lllingworth’s apologies were also recorded for the March 2010
meeting of the Board.

The meeting concluded at 12.20pm.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th March, 2010

Page 10



Agenda ltem 7

Originator: Steven Courtney

- CITY COUNCIL Tel: 247 4707

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Health)
Date: 16 March 2010

Subject: The local health economy — priorities for NHS Leeds

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At its meeting on 30 June 2009, the Board received a number of inputs to help
members consider the Board’s priorities during the current municipal year. This
included specific contributions from:

Executive Board Member for Adult Health and Social Care
Deputy Director (Adult Social Services)

NHS Leeds

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT)

Leeds Partnerships Foundation Trust (LPFT)

1.2  As part of that discussion, NHS Leeds outlined the following priorities:

Saving lives and reducing health inequalities

Improving health, wellbeing and healthcare

Responding to population needs

Sustaining performance against access and safety standards
Shaping the provider landscape

Becoming a world class commissioner

1.3  The new Chief Executive of NHS Leeds (Mr. John Lawlor) formally came into post in
January 2010. This meeting provides the first opportunity for the Scrutiny Board to
discuss progress against the previously identified priorities and future issues likely to
face the local health economy.

Page 11



2.0
2.1

3.0
3.1

4.0

Report issues

The Chief Executive of NHS Leeds will be in attendance at the meeting to provide a
verbal update and address questions from the Board.

Recommendation

Members of the Scrutiny Board (Health) are asked to note and comment on the
update provided at the meeting and determine any matters that require further
scrutiny.

Background Papers
e Scrutiny Board (Health) — minutes of meeting, 30 June 2009.

Page 12



Agenda ltem 8

Originator: Steven Courtney

- CITY COUNCIL Tel: 247 4707

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development

Scrutiny Board (Health)

Date: 16 March 2010

Subject: Joint Performance Report: Quarter 3 — 2009/10

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0
2.1

2.2

3.0
3.1

Introduction

During the previous municipal year (2008/09), the Scrutiny Board (Health) received
regular performance reports relating to issues within the Board’s remit, from both NHS
Leeds and Leeds City Council.

In January 2009 it was agreed to adopt a more collaborative approach and provide a
single, joint performance report on a quarterly basis. A previous report was presented
to the Scrutiny Board at its meeting in September 20009.

The purpose of this report is to present the Board with an overview of progress
against key improvement priorities and performance indicators relevant to the Board
at Quarter 3, 2009/10.

Joint Performance Report: Quarter 3 2009/ 2010
The joint performance report for quarter 3 (2009/10) is attached at Appendix 1.

Relevant officers from NHS Leeds and Leeds City Council have been invited to
present the key issues highlighted in this report and address any specific questions
identified by the Scrutiny Board.

Recommendation
That members of Scrutiny Board:

3.1.1 Note the content of the report and its appendices;

Page 13



4.0

3.1.2 Comment on any particular performance issues of concern; and,
3.1.3 Determine any matters that require further scrutiny.

Background Papers

e Leeds Strategic Plan

Page 14



Health Scrutiny Board
Joint Performance Report:
Quarter 3 2009/10

March 2010

LCC/NHS Leeds Joint Performance Report - Mar 2010

Page 15

T A
ic S b
%/ "
C, %} I t-\:l:.: N I /

e s CITY EOUNGIL Leeds

1



LCC/NHS Leeds Joint Performance Report - Mar 2010 2

Page 16



Health Scrutiny Board Joint Performance Report —
March 2010

Overview

This is the quarterly Leeds City Council/NHS Leeds joint performance report. The principle of
a joint report has been established to align performance reporting, with the aims of

= Reducing duplication

= Eliminating potential confusion

= Streamlining documentation

= Bringing closer together the performance teams/functions from both organisations

The issues discussed in this report have been identified because performance in these areas
impacts upon one or more of the following:

= the delivery of our joint and individual health priorities,

= performance against the National Indicator set (which is reflected in our annual CAA

judgement),

= ora lack of assurance relating to data quality.
The content of the report will be tailored to meet the requirements of the national reporting
systems, ensuring that that the Health Scrutiny Board is fully involved in the process.

A number of the indicators that are used are under a process of development at a national
level and some do not have clear targets. This does not therefore allow for absolute clarity in
terms of achievement. Other indicators are also based solely on annually available data. This
means that the data shown in the charts may not change on each occasion of the publication
of this report.

On this occasion, there are matters relating to the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA)
process that it is appropriate to put before the Board.

The CAA document is provided as it is the independent external assessment of the city's
performance against its priorities from the Audit Commission but incorporates key finding from
other inspectorates, including specific focus for the Health Scrutiny Board, on the Annual
Health Check for the PCT, which has been produced by the Care Quality Commission.

Also included are action trackers, which are based on Q2 performance reports and the CAA.
A small number of areas have been identified to have action trackers produced more
frequently than the conventional cycle, that is quarterly rather than six-monthly. The two
trackers provided here are those relevant to the Health Scrutiny Board. The trackers provide
an overview of performance and incorporate qualitative as well as quantitative information,
looking forward to forthcoming actions as well as covering key achievements.

Executive Summary — Performance Information

The NHS Leeds information that is provided here is the latest available at the time this joint
report was drawn up (15 Feb 2010). Further verbal updates will be provided at the meeting of
the Scrutiny Board, where required and available. LCC information is based on data as at 12
Feb 2010.

Some of the indicators shown previously have not been include don this occasion, for the
reason that they are unchanged since the last report or that data is only available once during
the year.

LCC/NHS Leeds Joint Performance Report - Mar 2010 3

i CITY COUNCIL

WiH jgilLeeds
Leeds

Page 17



There are several performance indicators that are worth drawing attention to. Some of these
indicators are already well known to the Board. The key performance points are —

WS jgileeds
Leeds

18 weeks Referral to Treatment Waiting Times

Whilst performance overall is at or near the target of 95% achievement for non-admitted
patients and 90% for admitted, performance is now also based on achievement at
specialty level. It is clear that there are risks to achievement in this area, for both NHS
Leeds and LTHT. Some of the problems relate to backlogs of patients, especially in more
specialised services.

Health Care Associated Infections (HCAIs)
This heading covers the reports on the rate of C.difficile and of MRSA, shown separately
within the body of the report.

MRSA numbers remain below the maximum permitted number of cases. This is a
significant and continuing improvement over the same period last year and one that is
being constantly monitored.

Clostridium difficile rates also similarly continue within the maximum trajectory, another
major improvement.

The delivery of long term sustainability in the reduced levels of cases is now the aim,
especially as the maximum ceiling for MRSA cases is being considerably tightened for
2010/11.

A&E 4 hr Standard

This target was achieved across the whole year 2008/09. It can now be reported that the
98% year to date figure has been reached and continues to rise incrementally. The hope
is now that the whole year figure will be maintained.

Childhood Immunisation Programme

Performance continues below required levels. The required step change in performance
is not reflected thus far and the rate remains stubbornly below the target, though is
improving.

Childhood Obesity

Performance data now available shows increasing levels of prevalence and for year 6
children a fall in the coverage. This picture is tempered by a solid range of actions,
described in the body of the report.

Report prepared by:

Graham Brown
NHS Leeds

15 February 2010

LCC/NHS Leeds Joint Performance Report - Mar 2010

=i C1TY COUNCIL

Page 18

4



g 0L0Z 48N - Joday edoueuLIOLsd JUIof SpesT SHN/OOT

K19bIng |etous

pa))IWpE-UON papIWpY
£0 |
aA8|yoE 0} sain|ie} [aA3] Ajjeroadg

01N
01994
0L-uer

R
<
R
[

(%] (o] (o1 [SV] [oo [SY [To1 R0
©o|o|~|o|v|~|o|o

saleys saleys aouewlopiad jable) piepue)s pJepuejs
yoeaiq yum) |yoeaiq jnoyy 190w o) Buijey paypiwpeuou papIWpe J9aW
Joaw o) Buljiey | 19aw o} Buljiey (solpaedoyuo analyoe o} Buljiey o} buljiey (soipaedoyuo
splepuejs  [spiepuejs Jo ou Buipnjoxa) (soipaedoyno Buipnjoxa) sanjeloads
joou - solpaedoyQ saeloads Buipnjoxa) a|qepodal o oN
- solpaedoyuQ a|qenodal saljeloads
josequinu [ejoy | ejqepodal jo oN

saleys
yoealq Buipnjour)
souewlopad
PajIWpe-UuoN

saleys

yoeauq Buipnjour
pue pajsnipe)

oouewlopad papiwpy

600Z LH.L1 ‘X1jew souewiopad joom gl

[oi:AN
Ol0EIOYjOIpIED

sonseld
KiaBinsoinaN
IN3

K1aBing |etous

PSpIWpe-UON papIwpYy
€0 |
aAaIyde 0} sain|iej |aA3] Ajjerdads

ol-en
01-994
ol-uer
eju e/u

4 9

9 9

4 S

l )4

l )4

4 9

€ S

L S

aouewlopad Jobie) piepuels piepuels aoueLlopad pajsnipe

yoeauq yim) [yoeauq jnoyum) | jeaw o) buijey paypiwpeuou papIWpe JoawW paypiwpe-uoN oouewlopad papiwpy

oW o) Buijey [ 1eaw oy Buney (sopaedoypio analyoe 0} Buljie; oipaedoypio
splepuejs  [spiepuejs jo ou Buipnjoxa) (soipaedoypo Buipnjoxa) sanjeroads
joou - solpaedoynQ saperads Buipnjoxa) ajgenodal jo oN
- solpeedoyuO a|gepodal safjeoads

josequnu [elo] | a|qepodal jo oN

TIINNOD A LD ==t u.bmml‘

SPIIT SHN!

Aeio) |obIN
uebLio) euswoliyd

:pea Juswabeuely
:10)9a11Q 9A1IN29XT SPaa] SHN

‘uonelado ul Ajusiino si Buiyes Jayjoue ul Spoylal SAIBAISSUOD
Buisn pajeas; aq pinoo jey; Alanoe |e 1no duys o) ebelr] -sainpasold suids
pue puey ui Auenoied — jaAs| Ajeloads gns je ulewsal sanssi solpaedoyu

‘Ajle1oads siyy Jo Ayjigeuleisns wis) 6uoj sy uo 1oedwi aAlisod e
Buiney si yoiym ‘Bopjoeq ayy ssaippe 03 unbaqg sey | H1 ] suoabins jeuonippe
Jo juawiulodde ay} Yypn -anssi bopoeq ouolsiy ue sey AlabinsoinaN

‘Aemiapun Ajjusiing s| seinseall 8] UO YIOAA ‘Jlenioys Alioedeo sy ssalppe
0] sainseaw paljuapl sey yolym pasedsaid usaq sey uejd uonoe sonse|d v

"L 1.0z 1o} uoiisod a|qeuleisns e

aalbe 0} | H17 yum diysiauped ul Bupiom sl spaa] SHN "SS822e Y)IM sanssi
Bulobuo aie alay} aloym ‘soise|d Jo uonidaoxa ay) yim ‘Jesh jeioueul) sy}

JO pus 8y} Ag pales|o aq ||im sBopoeq (e j1ey) | H1T wolj eoueinsse paAlgoal
sey spaa1 SHN "saJnssaid Bopjoeq pue Ayuoedes juesiiubis usaq aAey alay)
aloym ‘A1abinsoinau pue sonseld ul Ajjeloadse ‘1ebuoj Jo) sanjeroads awos
1084 Aew pue ulewsal 0} Ajgy1] sI @ouewlopad ul dip sy -Jeah siy) swn

18414 8y} Joj 10bue) papiwpe | Hl17 %06 @Yl mojeq paddip sey s|ans| ajebaibbe
pue Ajeioads je souewlouad ‘sAemyied s|geulelsSns JaAl|ap 0} pasu ay)

10 @ouanbasuoo e sy ‘sawi) Buijiem sjgeulelsns pue Aemyjed sjgeulelsns

e Buuaalep 1siym ‘1abie) yoam g| oy} ulejuiew pue yoeal 0} Juswalinbal

By} uo pasnooy} aAey Japinold ulew sy} se | H1 7 pue YHS 8y} usamiaq
uoissnosip julol Juadal ‘uonippe u| ‘|aAs| Ajeroads je siabie) syeam g| sy}
Bunesw Buipiebal siapiroid e yum Aj@sojo Buijiom usaq sey spaa] SHN

Ayersads Aq umop uayo.q ‘sysem
81 uyum payajduwiod aq pinoys ‘uoissiwpe ue ui pud jou op ey} skemyed
JO %56 pue awjeal) jeydsoy 1oy panpiwpe ase syudned asym skemyed Jo %06

:10b1e

600Z SP331 SHN ‘Xijew aoueuiiopad aam g|

pa3jlwpe-uou pue papiwpe
Juswijead) 0} [ell1d}3d S)OOM 8T

Page 19



TIINNOD A LD ==t u.bmml‘

9 0L0Z /e - Hoday 89UBLLIOLSd JUIOf SPadT SHN/DDT

Aelo) |abIN peo] Juswabeue
uebi0) euswojiyd 110)9311Q 9A1}N23X] SPaa] SHN

"aouewlopad |[eJjano pasealtoul sey ‘1 H17

uiyum 1ybu weysAs ayy Bumab uo yIom Jo snooy ay) ‘USABMOH “aduewlopad
Jood | H]7 1o} suoseal Jolew se paylo usaq Uayo aAey | H1 T 1e uswiean
10} sa|eo0] Jayjo wody sAemyied Aep zg uo sjuaijed Jo sjellajal a)e]

‘gouewIopad Jiay} uo Buisnooy way) pue ubisepal ybnoayy papoel usaq aney
wea) yoea Yum sanssi se ‘siyy yym buidoo ui uoiisod Buiyiys ayy Smoys ajep
0] 600 Ue wol} wes} Jodoued Agq sayoealq pue souewlopad Jo sishjeue uy
"9/ {7| JO 3)Bl UOISIBAUOD B — SABP Z9 UIYIIM JuSW]eal} pasu pue Jadued YjIm

%G8 %G8 %G8 %G8 %G8 %G8 %58 %G8 %G8 %G8 %G8 %58 Sm_m._.loli m \A QQ Q
w506 | vzzs | wozs | wos | wss | wess | noes | vres | Foovemm) pasoubeip aie ¢¢| Ajlgjewixoidde yoiym Jo syjuow Jad s|ellajal Jem Yaam
OL-e\ | 01-ged | ol-uer | 60-020 | 60-AON | 6000 | 60-deS | 60-Bny | 60-nr | 60-unr | Go-Ae | 60-dv %01 OM] Q0G6 JO obelane ue S9AIBdal JH1T 1964e) ajep 0} Jeak 9yl mojaq |[|i3s sI

[ 0

yolym ‘10bue) Aep g9 ay} 198w 0} SNUBUOD 0} MOU S| | H] T 40} snooy Jofew ay |

8L ‘1o6.e) Ul pajeas

pue pabeuew AjpAnosys ag pjnom ¥su 1e sjusied jey) pieog souewioLad
%08 JUIO[ JOQWIBAON 8y} 1e aouelnsse aAeb | H1 1 ybnouyye ‘panjosal
aq 0} 104 aney sjuaned jeal 0] | H1 7 ul Aoedeo |ealbins ejenbapeu

%58
"J18q0}oQ 0} dn usas jey} woJj uoisod parosdw yonw e
%06 SMOUS SIUL %G8 Jo 1864e) 8y} anoge ‘9, 6 9q 0} pajosfoid s Jaquiada( Jo}
aouewlopad ‘JaquianoN 0} dn aouewiopad pajeplieA SMOYs Leyd ayl I1S|IUM

%56 ‘uaas sjuaned

1O %68 JO NQQ\E e yum ‘ Juauneal) Jo QEQQ.\QQQ a1 0] 192ued b&b%&mﬁw

%001 10J |e113J91 4d9/d9 NQQQ.\: uoly M\A.Nb 29 JO auwi] Jiem winuiixew e aq a1ay) ey |

|esiagal 4ao/do Aep z9 4ddued ..u%@..\m [

sawo2)nQ Bujuoissiwwon ssej) plUop

piepuels jiem Jadued Aep z9

Page 20



[ 0L0Z /B - podsy sauewLOpad JUIOP SPaaT SHN/OOT

%Y6 | %V6 | %V6 | %6 | %b6 | %V6 | %¥6 | %6 | %v6 | %¥6 | %¥6 | %6 | 1OBIRL—0—
%G ¥6|%S 16| %Y C6| %1 68| %L 98| %8 18| %S 89| %6°€8| 1EMOY Ml

ol ol ol 60 60 60 60 60 60-Inr 60 60 60

-le|\ | -qa4 | -uer | -08Q | -AON | 100 | -das | -Bny -unp | -Repy | -udy

%09
%¥9
%89
%L
%9.L
%08
%¥8
%88
%6
%96
%001

Auobing yuanbasqns Aeq Lg :490ue)

piepue}g MaIAaY dipolad

%96

%96

%96

%96

%96
%026

%96
%8'L6

%96
%% 86

%96
%€ ¥6

%96
%026

%96
%6°L6

%96
%2 S6

%96
%G'96

1068 | coomm
lenoy 3

olL-relN

0l-9o4

0}-uer

60-920

60-A"ON

60-1°0

60-dos

60-6ny

60-Inr

60-unr

60-Ken

60-1dy

%06

%26

%v6

%96

%86

%001

sisoubeip jo sAep Lg uiyym juawipealy buinieseu syuaned jo abejusaisd :1aoued)

piepuejs MalAay dIpoLiad

— SP337

SPII 1 a7y

Aeio) |oBIN
uebLio) euswoliyd

:pea Juswabeuely
:10)9a11Q 9A1IN29XT SPaa] SHN

"JaquIaAnoN wouly 19bJe) ay) Jo JuswaAalIyoe
0} ybnouy ‘Jequisydag ul jabuey ul pajead; buiaq syusned Jo %zZ6
yum Jauenb ay} ul Juswanoidwi [enpelb e umoys sey Joble} 0} souewIopad

‘swivysAs Bulojiuow

pue Bumjoel) paaoidwi Bunuswaidwi ul | H| 7 palsisse Ajjealb sey yoiym
‘92in0sal 1o} Buipuny uoddns yiuow g papinoid spaa SHN “(eseauoul o,ze
B) LD @ouls Apualsisuod umolb sey pajeal) se paplooal sjuaied Jo Jaquinu
ay} 1eyr bunou yuom si 1 ‘Aiabins jusnbasqgns uo Jojeoipul ay) Bulspisuod u|

‘pasijeal buiaq Aemyied AbBojoin

ay) 03 sjuswanoidwi Jo 1oedwi aaisod ayy 0y Joud ‘ABojoin pue Aiabins Bun)
‘upys ul sayoealq 0} anp 1snbny ui %6 o) paddip souewlopad spas] SHN
‘uaas bBulaq si ainoid aaisod Appsow

e ‘(peyo jsowladdn sy} ul umoys) Jojeaipul Juswiead) o} sisoubeip ay} uQ

‘uaas sjuaned jo ‘Ajaanaadsal %y
pue %96 Jo 10b.1e) e yum ‘Arabins yuanbasqns Joj pue Juauneal) jo buiuuibaq
ay] 0} 19auea Jo sisoubeip wouy SAep L€ JO L yem wnwixewl e aq aJay) ey |

:10b1e

A12b4ns jJusanbasqns @ judwileat) o}
sisoubeiq - plepuels jilem Aep € :4303uUe)

Page 21



8  0L0Z /B - podsy sauewLIOpad JUIOP SPE8T SHN/DOT

%Y6 | %¥6 | %¥6 | %6 | %v6 | %v6 | %v6 | %6 | %6 | %v6 | %t6 | %6 | 1961 L—0—
%L 68| %6'G8| % 'S8|%S 26| %E V6| % 26| %T S6| %S 26| IEMOY M

ol ol ol 60 60 60 60 60 60-INF 60 60 60
-le|\ | -ge4 | -uep | -08Q | -AON | 100 | -das | -Bny -unp | -Aepy | -udy

%08

%28

%¥8

%98

%88
%06
%6

%¥6
%96
%86

%001
Adesayjoipey jusnbasqns Aeq Lg 190ue)

piepue}g MaIAdY dIpouad

%86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | %86 | 196EL —0—
%66 | %001 | %00} | %66 | %00l | %66 | %66 | %86 | BNV

ol ol ol 60 60 60 60 60 60-InF 60 60 60
-le|\ | -ge4 | -uer | -08Q | -AON | -100 | -dag | -Bny -unp | -Aepy | -udy

%06

T %Z6

%6

%96

%86

%00}

juasuneai] bniqg jusnbasqng Aeq Lg 400U

piepuels MalAsy dIpoLidd

TIINNOD A LD =t “bmmd

Seecait SV

Aelo) [abIN :pea Juswabeue|y
uebLI0D euswoliyd 11039211 9A1IN29X] SPaa] SHN

"9, 001-/6 punoJe e spuejs aouewlopad Jaquadsaqg

wu| -Arenuep Agq Aiojoslel) paalbe ayy anaiyoe 0y 1obie} uo ulewsal
1H11 pue Buinosdwi si @ouewlopad “Alenuer Joj pauueld si siyj ybnouyy
‘uswianalyoe |ny Buimoys jou si Adessyjoipel Jusnbasgns uo Jojesipul 8y |

‘Apdwoud pajeas; buieq sjusned
[|e JSowle Yum ‘€O O3l ‘2D Inoybnouy) paasiyoe IoA0 usaq Ajjuaisisuod
sey }abie) ay) Jeyl smoys Jojedlpul Juswiead) bnup jusnbasgns ay |

‘U39S
sjaned jo ‘Ajannsadsas %4 p6 pue %486 Jo 186.1e) e yum ‘waunea) Adesayjoipes
10 bnip Juanbasqns Joj sAep | £ Jo awi yem wnuwixew e aq aay) 1ey |

:10b1e

Adesayjoiped 3 6nap jusanbasqns
— pdepuejs jilem Aep 1€ :1903uUe)

Page 22



TIINNOD A LD ==t u.bmml‘
6  0L0Z 1B/ - podey sauewLIOLSd JUIOf SPa8T SHN/OOT U ]_ SARE. m.--.NE

Jswijeg uowig :pea Juswabeuep
uoJswen uej :10}93J1g 9A1ND9X] pea]

*AlIjIgeuleIsns ainsus 0] pJeoq asuewlopad [yOH 8yl ybnouys
BuloB-uo sI YIOAN “8|geiaulnA ||ns SI Alojoslel) ay) Jo JuswaAsIyoe 8y |

"ssau||l 0} 8np Jussge aq Aew Je)s Jo siequinu jueoiiubis

1By} suesw sassau||l 81| N|} Ul 8Se8IoUl 8y} ‘Jeak sy ul Jeilies psajedionue
uey) ssa| 89 Aew N} BUIMS WOJ Jealy) 8y} ybnoyyy "pauleisns ale
SyjuoW 1usdaJ Ul epew suleb ay) 1ey) ainsus pue Al 0 ‘enunuod sbunssw

I pig0g 8oueuLIopad (IVOH) SUOHOSJU| PRIEI0SSY 818D LiIESH ARUDILLIO) 8y L

"8JBD |BOIUID UIYIM pappaqus si 8onjoeid pooh ainsus o) sie)ay)ed

se | ve | 06 | ve |6 8 [ e | 8 | S _AMMMWll Aseuln se |jom se sdup A| pue |elaydiiad se yons saul| punole ale asay |
cL 99 09 VS 8y [44 9€ 0¢ e 8l cl 9 1 —— .
s Lol ol nlslslalalalsls|e ofro, swa|qo.d s|eanal sisAjeue asneo J00J aloym seale uo pasnooy Buiaq si YIOAA
l 14 9 S 3 9 14 € S leny 1H11E=3
0L~BW|0L-ged|0}-uer .om%n_ .\mwz 600 .Muw .%%< 60-Inr | 60-unr: .\m%_\,_ 60~1dy . OSeo | sem aisy} ._.wnEmomD u| “Jesk
3Joym a8y} JaA0 g/ ‘yuow Jad g si [aAs] Aloyoaledy ayl "1 H17 ulyum Buiaq

Se palijuspl UOIOa)Ul JO 8SNED JO0U I8y} pey asay) Jo || ‘pauodal sesed
¥ AON JO} pue sased g aJom alay} 18qoioQ Jo4 “Jeak ayj Jo e)s sy} 8ouls
Aio1o8fel) wnwixew ay) mojaq 1o 1e usaq sey Jeak siy) Je) 0S 8ouewlouad

0C

o "'$9SBD G| UBY) 8J0W OU 8q 8Jay} ey} SI Jeak

ajoym ayj Buinp wnwixew ay| ‘abus|ieyd ayj JO 8IS 8y} SMOYS SIY} pue
pasunouue uaaq Apuadal sey (| 1/0102) J1eah 1xau Jo} | H] 7 40} Aiojoalel ay |
'sysnJ] Jaad yym aul ojul sjeAs] YSHIN LH1 1 Bullq 0] pepaau |jiis sI abueyo
08 8 da)s e 1nq ‘Jeah jse| usas 1ey) WO} Us||e]l 8ABY slaquinu YSYIN 1.yl Jes|o si )|

09

oo o ‘wnwixew padsbe ayy yum aul ul [ /0102 10) SISeI Z/ uey 3Jow ey Jou 0J

(10b.4e) 48pIN0Id) sSaposida ainjind poojq aAnisod S 4O Jdquinu dAe[nwNny

13pInoid - piepue)g subig [e)IA ..NQUUN.N

ejwaelaloeq VSN JO 2duapipur

Page 23



0L  0L0Z4BW - podey 8ouBuULIOLSd JUIOP SPaaT SHN/DOT

161 6.1 651 341 74) G6 c8 €9 z¢ | oL QLA =0
¥8G | 9€G | S8F | ¢E¥ | 6L | 8CE | €8C \vC | 861 | €SI | SO €5 Tesl QlA—e—
14 3] €9 €9 1S 14 (44 ey 14 14 cs €G | A10}08(El | e
cl 0c 8l 0C 9C €l 6l 1€ [43 ey =3
60 60 60 60
0lL-JeN|0L-a9d|0L-uer 080 60-AON|60-1°0 -deg | -Bny 60-InF |60-Unr -Rew 60-4dy
0 o
002 A -0z
00v § ov
009 09
008 08
0001 1 - 00}
uoIsnjoxe 380d: LH1 T - t_o.oi
00ch ocl

(10b.4e) 48PINOIH) SB)BI UOIIBJUI BIDIYIP WNIPLIISO[D

piepue)s MaIAay d1poLiad

12e | ¢6C 19¢ | ¢¢c | 08l | 2SI | 82l 06 vy | 1€10L QLA =T
96. L€L | 299 | 68G | 91G | Ly | 98€ | 8C€ | 69C | 80C | €¥l €L el QLA =t
G9 69 €L €L 69 19 89 69 19 S9 0L €L | Ai0J0B(El | e
62 1€ 6€ [44 8¢ e 8¢ o 144 [enpY =3
60 60 60 60
0l-1eN|0}-994d|0L-uer -08Q 60-AON| 60-3°0 -dag | -Bny 60-Inr |60-unf Kew 60-1dy
(U ro
002 r 0C
00w - oy
009 A r 09
008 2 g 08
000} 00l
00ck ozl

(10b.1e) J2UOISSIWIWOD) SO}BI UOIIIDJUI BIDHIP WNIPLIISO[D

sawo2)nQ Bujuoissiwwo ssejy pUo

TIINNOD A LD ==t u.bmml‘

SPIAAT] .« SHN!|

Jaswjeg uowig :peaT Juawabeuep
uoJswe) uej :10)0341Q 9A1IND9X] pea]

'80 AON ©2UIS papJooal usaq mou sey Aloroslel) A|yiuow ay) JO JUBWBABIYDY
"suolejoadxe [euoseas Uo paseq ‘yiuow Ag s|qeliea si Aloslel "wip D syl

"sawioy a.1ed ul pue
Ajunwiwod sy Ul pajosjel SI 1SN} 8)noe 8y} JO Jom aAIIsod By} 1ey) ainsus
0} ®NURUOD [|IM YJ0M SIYyL “(8dUdpIdUl JIIP O 0} payull sI yoiym) Buiquosaid
onoiquiue Joy sauljepinb ay) noge siaquosald 0} Jno seob sbessaw Jespo e
1BY] 8INSUS 0} S5 pPUB SBWoy aJed yim BuloBuo si dJom ‘Spaa SHN UIYIA

‘pauieisns si pue dop 0} anunuo
sainbl) 1yl ainsua 0] | H| 7 Ul YI0M pasnooy palesipap si atay) Jussald 1y

"SIBUOISSILIWOD
pue siapinoid yjoq 4o} smau poob Aiaa si Aloyoalely ay) Jo Juswanaiyoe
Buiobuo ay) 1ng ‘dip Jeuoseas pajoadxa ue s}os|jal Alojoalely ay |

‘Aloyoslesy wnwixew

By} ulyum [jam uiebe ‘(siapinoid [je Jo JOUOISSILIWOD B Se painseaw)
Jaquiada( Ul gZ pue JIaqWIBAON Ul L€ ‘48qo}oQ J0} 6E 40 ainbly ||eJano ue
papJooal spaa] SHN -Aloyoalely wnwixew ayy mojaq [|om s siy) ‘Ajaajoadsal
S9SED Z| pue 0Z ‘gl papJiodal Jaquiadad O} SYuow 931y} 8y} o} | H11

0L0Z Yyoseyy Jo pua ayy Aq Awouoda yyjeay ayj 1oy 967 pue 1H17
10J p86 Jo winwixew paaibe ay uey) 12ybiy ou aq sased Jo Jaquinu ay) ey |

:10b1e|

3IOHP ™D JO DUBPUT

Page 24



L

0L0Z 18N - Hoday 80UBWIONS JUIOr SPa8T SHN/ODT

%86

%86

%86

%86

%86

%86

%86

%86

%86

%86

%86

%86

1961 | ammtoumm|

%186
%Y'66

%086
%686

%6°L6
%Y'86

%8 L6
%€ 86

%L'L6
%066

%G'L6
%0'66

%1°L6
%C L6

%\'L6
%Y'86

%856
%1'L6

%656
%656

9)e( 0} JEO emiii—m
[enjoy

oL-teiN

0l-994

0}-uer

60-%2Q

60-AON

60-1°0

60-dos

60-6ny

60-Inf

60-une

60-Ken

60-1dy

%88

%06

%26

%6

%96

%86

%001

39V ul siyp uey ss9| buipuads sjusied jo abejuaaiod

piepue)ls MaIAaY d1polad

TIINNOD A LD =t “bmmd

P31

Aelo) [8BIN :pea Juswabeuely
uebLI0D euswoliyd 110)00.11Q 9AIIN29X] ped] spasa] SHN

Jeaf Jo
awl} sy} Joy pajoadxe se usaq sey AlAloe asImIayo ‘swiajqold Buiyiealq yym
Ajurew JaquiaAop Ul suoissiwpe oueipaed Jo siaquinu ybiy usaq aAey aiay |

‘sainby
JeaA ajoym ay} Uo paseq S| JUSWIBASIYIE YdIym Ul ‘[@A8] palinbal ay) anoge
MOU SI SIY] "%t] 86 Sem Aienigad Q| 1e se aosuewsopad ajep 0} Jeah ay|

'94,86 9A0Qe
Apus)sisuod usaq sey isnbny aouls polad ay} 1oy souewlopad AJYiuop

‘ab.1eyasIp 10 19jsuel) ‘UoISSILpe
0] [eALLIR W) ‘IRY UI SS3] 10 SINoY  puads sjuaijed Jo %96 1seaf 1e ey

:10b1e|

piepuels 33y Jnoy Ino4

Page 25



ZL 010z e - podey eoueuLOLad JUIOL SPaaT SHN/JDT

%56 %56 %56 %56 aosm_mﬁln.li
%9°G8 %2 ¥8 (1s008) NOd EZEE
%888 %188 2 YW E==23
%L'¥8 %b'€8 L NN
%€ 6L %0°6. (1s00g) AIH/AdI/deL1q ==
%606 %968 QUSN/q!H [
%L'¥6 %G'E6 QH/AdI/deLq E=Em

01-60 ¥O 01-60 €O 01-60 2O 01-60 LO

%0S
%SS
%09
%G9
%0L
%SL
%08
%G8
%06
%G6
%001

[m, {1

sobe papuawwodal ay) Je uonesiunwiw] usAlb uaipliyd jo abejusdiod

spJepue)g subig [B}IN/MIIAY dIpoLiad

TIINNOD A LID === “bmmd

SPIITRY T

:pea Juswabeuely
11039911 9A1}N29X] SPaa] SHN

Jswjeg uowig
uosswe) ue|

"BIpBW [BOO| Y} Ul paysiignd uaaq aAeY UOIJBUIDOBA
Jo} pasu ay} pue ayeldn YN UOo seseajal ssaid Jo Jaquinuy e
'600¢
JaWwINS Ul UaIp|iyd pajeulddoeAun yoeal o} piey 1abie} 0} spaa yinos
pue }se3 ul saua) s,uaipjiy) ul dn jas sem ubiedwied uoneuldoBA Y e
‘siseq Alleuenb e uo pajoesxa buiaq si ejep aonoeid Jo) ‘OS)y e
"papasu a1aym suonesiunwwl
Buinos, mau e Jo Juswysiige}se ay] e
‘panoidwi aq
0] $s8204d uoiesIuUNWWI WeaJljsulew apisino bBuije) uapjiyo jo dn mojjo4 e
"e}ep UeaH pliyo Jo Ajiqissaooe
ay) Buisealtour ybnouy} ‘elep Ssiy} 8sn OYm SISP|OYSHE]S ||B JO 8oUapLu0D
ay} buinosdwi Aq uoneljiouodsal pue Buueys ‘Buipiooal ejep anoidw| e

apinoid 0] wes) uonesiuNwWi | ,

:epnjoul souewlopad aAoidwi 0} suonoe sWos

's9ss9204d 100d pue Buipiooal
ejep a)9|dwodul Buipnjoul sanssi Jo Jaquinu e pajybiybiy pue Auo sy
SS0.0E UOISIA0ID UOIBUIDIBA JB PaY0o0| 600Z Ul asioJaxa buiddew ssaooud vy

:Ajlenuew ejep uinjal jey) asoy) uey) ayeldn Janeq Jej aAey uolessiulWpe
UllesH PIIYD O} SHulj paroidwl YIm SHO S} Jey) UMOYS Sey S}ep 0} YO
“HWW Alenoiued ‘suoneuiooea swos Joj ayeidn ul JuswaAoldwi ue usss

aAey ybnoy) syluow g| ise| 8y ‘spaa Ul Jood usaq Ajjeouolsiy sey YN

Joj eyerdn 1Byl pue spasT Ul uonesiunNwwI Pooyp|iyd oy ayeidn anJy 108)j8.
10U S80p U01308]|02 Elep jey) ale aouewlopad Jood 1o} suoseal sy} JO 8WO0S

sauwnweiboud uonesiunuwi A3y xis jo abuel e 1oy ‘abesanoa
JO S[3A3] PIPUBLLILLIOIA] YNM dUIf Ul PASIUNLILLI 3J UBJIPJIYI 1eL) aINSU3 0]

:10b1e

sabe papusawwoda.l Aq uonesiunwiwil
939|dwod oym sjenpiAaipul jo uoniodo.ad

Page 26



€l

0L0Z 18/ - Hodey eoueLLIOuSd JUIOP SPeaT SHN/DOT

£20¢

810¢

€10 | 800€

€00€

866¢

£66¢

886C

£86¢

962

€.6C

Kioyosles) |o|7

882¢

£€82¢

efeT4o

Lyee

yvee

Leee

enjoy ==

994

uep

28g | AON

0

deg

Bny

Inp

unp

Repyy

idy

T 008

T 0062

T 000€

r 00LE

T 00ce

00€e

juswiyeal) aApdaya ul Bureq se papiodal siasn Bnip jo saquinN 0 IN

Jojesipuj [euolleN

TIINNOCD A LD ==t uﬂ‘u'mmvmmwlﬁ

SPIS T ]

Jlejpuls yelesg
ueblI0) euswoliyd

:pea Juswabeue|y
11039211 9A1IN29X] SPaa] SHN

Aienp eleq
Buney b1 oel] ||esenQ

"‘gouewlopad
aAlisod panunuod Buimoys ‘@a1n1eg Buliojiuopy Juswieal | Bniq jeuoneN
ay} ybnouyy s|qe|iene spew usaq sey eyep 0}/600Z O ‘Hodal }se| 8y} 8oulg

‘sjuswianoidwi aouewlopad ajessuowsap 0} Ul pag,
0} awl} 9ye) 0} pajoadxe sem Yolym saolAIeg uswieal] Bnig Ajunwwo)
ay} Jo Buluoissiwwos-al ay) aydsap papasoxa uaaq Apealje sey 1abie) ay |

‘A10198le1) 19b6.1E)
Aruow ayy buiraiyoe uswnealy ul s1asn bnip Jo saquinu ay} asealaul 0|

:10b1e

juawijeaty
9AI309449 Ul s19sh BnJp jo JaquinN :0p IN

Page 27



TIINNOD _»._._ul]..l hbmmd
vl 0L0Z4BW - Moday eoueuliousd JUIoP SPaeT SHN/DDT —U ]_ A m.--.NE

Jlejouls yeles pea Juswabeuep
ueblIo0) euswoliyd :1039341Q 9A1IN29X] SpPada1 SHN
SuI9oU0) ON Ajjenp eleqg

Buney ybi7 oujel] |lesenQ

Aunjew jo |aA9| pue abe Jiay) 0} ajedosdde
UOI}EPOWWOJO. pUB SBJIAISS O} SS9I0E 9ABY SP|O JBBA /| pue 9|
san|igesip bulules)

vl vl vl vl (43 LWNUWIXEN —O— uo 010z IMdy Ag paasiyoe aq ||Im § JO 8109s e Jey) pabesiaus
€l €l (42 (43 Insey = SI]] ‘suollsanb aaiy} Joyjo ay) Jo 10adsal ul € JO 8109S ke S| a1ay) ‘Jussaid 1y
0160 YO 0160 €O 0160 ZO 0160 LD 6080

‘pajesipul a1aym Aep Buppom 1xau ayj Jo sinoy

$Z UIylIM uayeuapun aq 0} Juswssasse yjjeay |ejuswl isijeroads e Joj pue
a]doad BunoA pue ualp|iyd Jo spasu yjeay |elusw jusbin 1@sw 0} s|ge|ieAe
S| JoA0D INoY g 1ey) Bulnsus uo § Jo 8109s e Buimoys si Japenb isaje| ay |

1saybiy ay} s1 9| pue a109s 9|qissod }samo| ay} Si § JO

[B]10] B J9ym suoljsanb ayj Jo yoes 1oy { 0} | JO a100s pajebaibbe ue si sy
‘suonsanb unojy jo Bulemsue sy} ybnoliyy ‘spasu yyesy |ejuswl s,uaipjiyo
190W S92IAISS Uj|eay |elusw A|9AI}080 MOy salnseawl Jojedlpul Siy ]

‘Aanins jenuue
193] 19d e Aq pa1anoa Auanae jo eale yaea ul Ajaanisod puodsal o) ajqe aq o

9l

. :10b1e
SHIWYD 4O SSaUdANI9HT ‘LG IN

Jlojeosipuj [euoiieN

S9JIAI3S Yj|eay |ejuaw Juddsajope
pue pIYd JO SSOUIAIBY]T (TS IN

Page 28



GL  0L0Z4eW - Modey eouewLOLad JUIOL SPaaT SHN/DDT

%0°06 %006 %88 %S98 %2 G8 Ki0joole) | ey
%9Z'96 %G6'06 %188 %0'68 [emoy =3
0160 ¥O 0160 €O 0160 2O 0160 LD 6080

%09

%09

%0L

%08

%06

%001

Y1i1q wouy syoom g-9 je buipasaysealq jo abesanod :qgs IN

Jlojeosipuj [euonieN

%0°Zh %0°Zh %Ly %9°0% %9°0% Aioyoalel | —ym
%S0 %09 LY %09 0¥ %00 L [emoy =3
0160 ¥O 0160 €O 0160 20 0160 LD 6080

%0¢€

%S€

%0t

%SY

%09

YlIq wouj syoam g-9 je Buipasyysealq Jo aouaeAdld (eES IN

Jojeosipuj [euoiieN

TIINNOD ALID

SPI3Y]

Jlejouls yeles :pea Juswabeuep
ueblI0) euawoliyd 11030311 9AIIND3X] SPad] SHN

Ajenp ejeg
Buney ybi7 oyjel] |lesenQ

*A)10 8y} ssouoe sao10eld Ul SUOIELIEA SPIM SYSBW pue apIm-AD

pale|(|0o Os|e Sl ejep 8yl “Y|iw }sealq pue [eldlile yjog Buiaiedsal aie oym
salgeq Jo Jaguinu a8y} sjunod alojaiay) pue — Buipasjsealq Aue, sainseaw
ainbly yoam g-9 ayy ‘Buibeinoous ale ejep ayy ul syuswaaoidwi IS|IYAA

"syjuow Buiwoo ayy ul sasealoul Jayuny Jabbuy [im ABajess Buipasjisealq
8y} Jo youne| ayy ey padoy si}| ‘106ie) pus Jeah ay) pepasoxs ulebe pue
pasealoul os|e sey Buipaajisealq jo asuajeaald ay) ‘siyl wolj uo Buimoljo4

"19b6.1e) pus Jeal ay) papasoxe sey pue Ajueoiiubis panoidwi sey abelanod
ay) ‘uon}o08||0o elep paAcidwil Jo JNsal B se 1ey) Moys sainbly €O ayL

‘sayoeoldde poddns Jead ul paulel; usaq aney Buipasjisealq

pajelliul oym salqeq pue Slayjow Yim payiom aaey oym siauoddns

J9ad 1 ON -Buipsspisealq ulylm YI0OM ISy} JO) SBIEDII1ISD JIdY} PaAISdal
selppng wosog dnolb paseq spaa pue (LON) IsniL YHIgp|iyD [euoieN
8y wolj sispoddns Jad Oz punoly ‘||eH UMO] SPaaT Je JUSAS Ue U)Im
Arenuer ul payoune| sem Abajeng Buipasjisealg spaa ay} ‘8117 40} poo4,

S92IAIBS AJB)IMpIW

oy} wouy ab1eyosip je sniejs buipssyisealq uo pajos||0o buiaq os|e s|

Bjep |euonippy ‘SYo9om g-9 je ab6eIan09 pue uolenuijuod Jo S|9A8| buissasse
MOU SI J0oJesipul [euoijeu ay} Ing uoneniul buipaspisealq uo pasnoo} sey
aouewlopad "poddns Bunuased pue uonowoud yyeay ppyo jo swwesboud
pajeibajul ue Jo ped jenuasss ue si Buipasjsealq Buluieysns pue Bujowold

yuIq
wouy syaam g-9 1e buipaajisealq jo abesanoa pue aauajesald ay) 3sealaul oJ

:10b1e

Buipaajisea.lq
JO 96eJ9A0D pue ddUdjeAdld €S IN

Page 29



gL 0L0Z BN - Modey eoueuiopiad JUIOf SPaeT SHN/JDT

%LL'6

%616

%026

A10}08(BU ] amemm

%0€0L

%LV'8

%0€°6

lenpy 3

01/600¢

60/800¢

80/.00¢

£0/900¢

%0

%

%¥

%9

%8

%01

%2l

oouefesald - y JA Ul £31S9qO GG IN

lojeosipuj [euonieN

%06°16

%68°16

%88°L6

A10}08(BU ] ammm

%0€°€6

%00'¥6

%0026

[enpy 3

01/600¢

60/800¢

80/200¢

£0/900¢

%06

%16

%26

%€6

%¥6

%56

abetanoa - Y JA ul A)1saqo GG IN

Jojeosipuj [euolyeN

TIDNNOD A LD =m et hbmm“

$p25' 1% [

Jlejopuls yeles
ueblIo0) euswoliyd

:pea Juswabeuely
11039911 9A1IN29X] SPaa] SHN

Anenp eleq

Buney 1yb17 dlJel] 1eien0

"SYOS paAldap
1SOW 90| 9Y} Ul PasSNO0} SOIUID AJIUNWWOD g JB YIOM O} SNUUOD SBJIAISS I

yolepn, ‘snqg Ag a|qissaooe ‘s|jiyaieH ul asoyl Aq asn Joj eale spasT 1se] ay)
ul sqn|D aibaule) ayj Jo) paInNdas uUsaq Sey anNUdA B ‘Saf}|ndlyip awos Jaye
pue sieak Bulieaq piyo Jivy) buunp ybiam Ayjjesy e uiejal 0} siayjow djay
0} padojansp Buiaq si Aemyjed a1eo e pue palijuspl Usag dABY S92IN0SSY

"JeaA s|y} spaa] paALdap Jo seale ul BulAll ualp|iyo
aAljoe 1ses| Jno Jo 000‘g @bebus o} 196.1e] S} peadXa O} aul| Ul S| Jl SMOYS
awweJsboud ajiiyanoy ay) ul pabebus uaip|iyo Jo siequinu 8y} uo eyeq

"(UolBIPPIN PUE S|lIyaseH)

$9}IS UOoljeJ}SUOWapP 8y} Ul 92IAISS ajl|yebueyd e ysijqe}se 0} pauoISSILIWOD
uaaq aAey suolesiuebiio 10josas pliy} om] “pabebus mou sjooyos

¥ yum ‘padojanap usaq aAey saainosal pue yoed Buluiely ayyebueyd sy

‘yoeoidde AYNIH 2Y} Ul paulel} 84U S .Ualpjiyd € Jo eale ay) UIy}im
MOU S, Japun JO 9%0¢ 19A0 Ul pajnsal aAeY ‘Yels 0Ge BulnjoAul ‘sasinod
Buiuiesy g1 -Buiuies; AYNIH O 1IN0 [j0J 3y} apnjoul Alaalidp woddns 0} suonoy

"o,e°e6 Je 19b6ie) anoge si ainbly abeianod

Byl ’sly} 4o} Junoooe Ajjeied osje Aew snjels d1LIOUOD9-0100S pue AJoIuyle
‘@oue|eq Japuab Buipnjoul si0)oe} Jayl0 %6 AJUo alem g0-800Z IO} pUe %G6
alam g0-,00z Ul sajel dn papunoy ‘dn Buipunol Aq pajoaye aq Aew sainbiy
1ey) ajqissod si }I pue uoljeleA Jo 9a1bap e Moys uaip|iyo uondasal ul Alsaqo
Joj ejeq "19bie) anoqe pasealoul oAeY sajel 9oudjeAald smoys ejep 60-8002

1102 £q %16 01 Ausaqo
J0 9oudjenasd aanpal o) pue %6°L6 03 UAIPJIYI ¥ 14 JO abeIan0I asealaur of

:10b1e

ua1pityd
jooyds Atewrid Y JA ul AJIS9qoO 1SS IN

Page 30



[l 0L0Z4e - podey eoueuLoLad JUIOL SPaaT SHN/JDT

%191

%0L°L1L

%cl'LL

A10}08(BU ] amemm

%00°LC

%¥e 6l

%08°L1L

[enpY

01/600¢

60/800¢

80/L00¢

£0/900¢

%91

%81

%02

%ccC

oouefesaud - 9 IA ul A)1saqo 96 IN

103esipuj [euonieN

%Ve 86

%€E 86

%1€'86

A10)09(Bl | cmmm

%0G°€6

%¥9°'86

%0086

lenpy =3

01/600¢

60/800¢C

80/L00¢

£0/900¢

%06

%6

%¥6

%96

%86

%001

abelsonoa - 9 4A ul A31saqo :96 IN

l03esipuj [euoneN

TIDNNOD A LlD =mestmm hbmmd

SPIITRY I

:pea Juawabeuey
11039911 9A1IN29X] SPad SHN

Jlejoulg yeles
ueblI0) euswojiyd

SUJeoU0) ON Auenp ejeq

Buney 1yBI7 dlJel] [[eI9A0

‘0102 1udy 8|gejieAe aq |jim uodas uonenjeAs uy aoe|d Bunje)

SI anua) s,ualp(iyD umo) [adey) 1e spjo Jeak g- G 1o} sadlAIes Juswabeuew
1yB1am Jo jojid ¥oam 0| BYL' SYOS PaALAaP JSOW %0} SU} Ul pasndo)

SOIUIO AJUNWIWOD g e Saljie) Y)IM 3JOM 0} 8NUIJUOD SBOIAISS JI UOIBAA,

‘padojansp Joddns juswiess) pajabie)} pue sasjuad ualp(iy) e pajojid usaq
aAey sa2lIAIes Juswabeuew jyblam isijeloads sieak Buueaq pjiyo Jiay) buunp
1yblam Ayyeay e uiejal 0y siayjow djay 0} palijuapl udsag aABY S92IN0SaY

‘dnolg) diysisupned

spodsaal{ ay} wody pes| Yyim pJemio} usye) aq |im pue padojarsp Buiaq
s| uejd uonoe pue Abajel;s [euolsinoid e ‘{(Buluuny a1y pue Buipieoq ajeys
‘XING) suodsaaly uo ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyod JO uoie}Nsuod e Buimojo

‘sal|jlwe} ysu 1e 0} woddns auo 0} sauo Buipirnoid mou S|
90IAJSS MaU SIY] ‘(UCIBIPPIN PUE S||IysieH) S8)is uoljelisuowap ayj Jo yoes
Ul 901AI8S a)ljabueyd e ysijgeisa 0} pauoISSIWIWLIOD Usaq aAeY suofesiuebio

J0J08s pJiy} om |  -abueyo Jnoineyaq o]A1sayl| Ayjeay e axew o} saljiwe;
poddns pue abebus 0} syuans uni 0} pabebua mou sjooyos  yum padojansp
uaaq aAeY $82in0sal pue yoed Bujuiel} 8y Saljiwe) pue ualp|iyo Se ||om
se sj|npe JaA02 0} ubledwed 8y} Jo snooy oY) Buluspeolq mou si aljyebueyd

'94,G°€6 1e 1061e) mojaq sI ainbiy abeianod ay |

‘sleah 9al1y) jsed ay) JOAO pajenion|y sey ualp|iyo g Jeak Buowe jybiamiano
10 @ous|erald JanamoH ‘spsemdn Ajjenpelb aie spuald) Jeak ¢ ‘sajel

1964e) 8y} 9A0qE pasealoul aAeY sajel sousjerald SMoys 0-800Z 404 ejeq

1102 £Aq %£9°£1 01 Asaqo
40 92u3d[enald 93npai 0} pue %yE 96 0} UBIPIIYI 9 1A Jo dbeianod asealaul of

:10b1e

ua1pityd
|jooydss Atewrid g9 JA ul AMIS9qO :SS IN

Page 31



TIJNMNOD A LID = u.bmmd
8L 0L0Z /8N - Hoday voueuLIOpad JUIOL SPedT SHN/DDT U 1_ SARE m.--.NE

Jlepuis yeleg :pea Juawabeuey
ueblI0) euswWo|iyd 11039911 9A1IN29X] SPad SHN

Suladouo) OoN Allenp eleqg
Buney 1ybiT ouyel] |esenQ

"slojoey A10}NQLIU0D
J0 abuels apim 8y} ssaippe 0} pasau 8y} pue uoneonpa (3YS) diysuone|ay pue
X89S 0} sjuswanoldwi ‘suoijoe Jo Aljiqeuleisns wis) buoj apnjoul sysu Aay

‘saloueubald Jusnbasqns usamiaq |eAIBIUI ©SEAIOUI pue Ysl abeuew
0] djay 0} ‘pasinal Buiaq ale siabeuas) jueubaid uoj shkemyied aien) e
so69||00 ul usyeuapun ubledwed Jojoeq xag, e

A0 8y ul siepinoid 34
ulew ay} ul yoam Jad sinoy g| Joy Buiuuna sojulo uondeoesjuoo a)s-uQ e

| "spJem Ajloud XIS 8y} Jo Yyoes ul o1ulo
yoeauno uondedeuod [00YDS Jaje Ue Buliayo MOU SI 90IAIeS HSBD Oy e
L2z | Lo sv ov o ssv | 6.z | 99z | 19biel—o— 9pN|OUI SUBLLIBASIUDE JUSIaY
€9 L'vS L'\S %174 108 26y [enPY
010z_| 600z | 800Z €O | 800220 | 800Z LD | 200z | 900z | S00Z -oBuBYD 9|qeUIRISNS JOAIIOP 0} awWi) JuedlIubls a1inbal suoluaAIa)UI

aAjoaYd 18y} Buibpajmouoe pue abe BunoA e je sjualed swoosaq 0} sjdoad
BunoA ajeaiow jey; seoueswnalid Bulkpepun ayy Buipoe) (Aoueubaid Alies

o pioAe 0} sueaw ay} yum ajdoad BunoA Buipinoid uo snooy |jIm suoioe Ajold

r0e A0 ay) ssousoe Aoueubaud abeuss) Jo [aAs] ay) Buionpal uo joedwi aAlsod

e aAey 0} Buipe)s ale yolym sadlIAIesS JO UOIBUIPJ00D pue juswdoljaaap ay}
[ o€ Bunoddns si |9A9] [BO0] 8y} 1B uonew.oul Ajpwiy alow Buipinoid eyep Ajjenb
Janag saleoo] usamiaq Ajasuswwil Aea Aoueubaid abeuss) Jo S|
4
"/'6Y Jo obeiane
05 Builjos e Buronpoud ‘¢ 9 sem g0z 104 elep €O "800z 0} Buneas ‘010z 9o
10 pus 8y} 1e a|ge|ieAe Buiaq 1xau ay} ‘200 40} SI ejep JeaA ||ny 1sale| 8y

09

‘%66 Aq Ajjea0] ‘auijaseq 9661 a1 1suiebe 19s
0102 Aq Jjey 1seaj 1e Aq aanpal pinoys sajes uoindaauoa gy -1apun Jo el atyJ

LL-G1L pabe sajewas 000} 40d sajes uondasuos abeusay

piepue)g juswaalby ealy [£207/Subig [BHA/MIIADY dIpoLdd

:10b1e|

s9jed uoijdasuod abeuaa] :ZTIT IN

Page 32



6l

0L0Z 18/ - Hodey eoueLLIOuSd JUIOP SPeaT SHN/DOT

G.05€

605€

99G1€

805€

85082

805€

055¥C
fefeicrad
€0¥e

yA4%4
89161
€0ve

YLl
8091
€0ve

Lvevil
80¢€el
LEVT

0L6L1
8596
3344

6.¥6
veeL
3344

870,
96€9
05€C

8697
9v6¢€
6¥€C

6veT Te1] QLA e
Sv0T QLA =—
6vee £K10108(Bl | cmmn

1882

069¢

0LL¢

vele

0sce

8€61

osvi

1061

G0z | Suealos [ejo | mmmm

ol
-Jepy

ol
-994

oL-uer

60
-08(

60
-AON

60120

60
-deg

60
-Bny

60-Inr

60-unr

60
-Repy

60-1dy

r 00S¢

000€

005€

0001

bBurusauog eipAwejyd

piepuejs MaiAay dIpoLiad

TIJNMNOD A LID = Mﬂ‘u-memw-N

SPII1YY I

Aelo) |abIN :peoa] Juswabeue
uebi0) euswojiyd 110)9341g 9A1}N23X3 SPaa] SHN

SUJ9oU0D ON Auend ejeq

Buney ybi7 oyjed] |lesanQ

‘suolssas asay) poddns 0} papiwwod Bulaq os|e ale 0} Jejs yjeay

ol|gnd Jayun4 ‘sUOISSaS YoeaJlno ay} e yJom 0} paAojdwa ag ued oym | Dd
By} UIYNIM WOl Jels aAijeulaye Jo asn ay) Buluiwexs ale JSHN ‘Ajjuesald
'sanss| Jels 0] anp pajoedwll 8¢ p|NO SJUSAS YOBaIIN0 U0 HJOM Jaylin

*Jaquiada(g Ul SUsalIos
0l uey sss| yum ‘Burinooo Ajguinol jou si Bulussios “JSHN Aq paales
suoslid ay) ssoloe Bulussios paysiigelss A|nisseoons aAey oym yels Buisn
1e Bujoo| Ag sjuswuysijgerss uosud ul Buluaaios ysijgelss o) jJuswabeuew
240 yjjeay uosud ypm Buiyiom ale JSHN ‘@21AI8S Suoslid 8yl uj

(‘susalos

|jeuonippe 0G09 siuasaldas saonoeld assay) JO Yoes 1oy pO Ul (9%G2Z) 1961e)]
|enuue Jo 9%,z 9 Jo 18b.e} \y "sp|o Jeak $Z-G| 808°96 Jo uonendod jabie) [ejo}
e Bunuasaidal ‘g3 ay) 01 dn paubis ale saonoeid 99 -uolisod ay) JoA023l
0} A3 0y Bulobuo ale suoissnosiq oW Bulaq 10u S| 82IAISS SIY} IO} 189S

10b.1e) 8y} ‘sjuswsnoidw aydsaq -Bulusaids Jno ALied 0} S49) 0} dAlUSdUI
ue Buiayo ‘sajelado (S37) 801AI8S padueyug [Bo0T B aJe) Alewlid U|

"dno plom ay} 0} payul|

sjuane yum Aemiapun Jeah jxau 1oy buiuueld ubiedwe) ‘suaalds yoeasno
uiejsns 0} pauue|d subledwed Jaypung -aAnoays Alan Buinoid saauadul

JO 18O 8y} YlIM ‘|njSSa0oNs usaq aAeY SJusAa yoealino je Bulusalos

Buuayo subledweo (oo ‘Bulusalos alow abelnooud 0) pasealoul usaq sey
uaa.os Jad juswAed ay| 'SuaaIos Jo swN|oA Jaybiy e JaAllep o} Buluuibaq

sl ale) yjeaH Alewlld ‘60 AON 0} dn uoibai JaquinH pue allysyIoA ay}

ul spaan Joj abelane anoge aouewlopad sajedlpul YdH 9yl Aq papinoad ejeq

0L0Z YoJeyy Jo pua ay) Aq paianijsp aq susaids 6/0'GE 1el]
:10b1e

spjo 1edA gz
19pun ul eipAwe|yd Jo 3dudjend.ld :€IT IN

Page 33



TIINNOD _»F_ul_lf...l hbmmd
02  0L0Z BN - Modey eoueuLIoLad JUIoP SPaeT SHN/DDT —U l_ A mNNE

Jeaq uor :pea Juswabeue|y
uolawe ue| 11039911 9AIIN29X] SPaa] SHN
Sulaouo0) ON Ajienp eleq

Buney ybi7 ouyyel] |esenQ

“Jeal siy) Jsje| s|gejieAe aq ||IM 600Z 10} pue Ajjlenuue paonpoud s ejep sy

"S9IAJSS [0Yoo|e pue Juswabeuew

1ybram ‘uonessao Bujows Jejnoiued ul ‘sadinlas Bulall Ayyesy jo Alaniap
ul Juswanoidwl panuiuUod pue (Jamoq pue [BdIAI8d Jsealq) sswwelboid
Bulusalos psoueyus ‘sAemyied a1eo Jo JuswaAoidwl sapnjoul YoM ainin

‘goueInsse apinold o} djay
[IM JuBWISSASSE J9ad |BUIBIXD PUEB YIOMIBU JBdUBD BIIYSHIOA 1SOAN pPue dnols

I — Aeacy Jeaied eLp Aq mainal saLizwiojied Jejnbal pUE sUOIE Jo sbuel ¥

"L1/01L0Z Ul Spea] SHN SSsoJoe swea | Buluoissiwwo) pajelbau)

AyjiesH Buifeys pue 97 8y} o) SNO0) B WIOJ [|IM SIYL "SPa9T Ul Saljlunwiwod
panldap aiow je pajabie} uonuaAIdlul pue ssaualeme Aue3 uo paoseld

L ool 8q 0} spaau siseydws Jenoied y "seo1AIes uoiessad Bupjows buipinoid
pue inoineyaq yjjeay Buibueyo se ||lom se uonejuasald je abeys Bulonpal
‘aled 0} ssaooe Buinoidwi Jo spuadap wis) Joys 8y} ul pue piemioy Buirow
L oLl JuswaAaIydYy “ue|d uonjoe wioyey Absjens Jaosues ay) pue swwelboud
yom dnougy Ajjeso Jesued ayj Jo ped swioy AISAIBP Uo YIom ay |

oLl 43 143 6Ll vl 6¢cl LEL Aiorosles | —o—
vl (443 (443 24" el €el sel [enY =3
1102 | 0L0C | 600C | 800C | Z00C | 900¢ | S00C | ¥00C | €00C | ¢00C

"SSIJIUNWIWOD PaALIdap 810w WO} USLWOM
ul Jaoued Bun| wouy Ayjeuow Buisealoul Jenaiyed ul sjosjal puadl buisi ay

r oclL

‘paAaiyoe Buiaq Jou Apua.ind si Jojeslpul siyy Joj Aiojoalel) syl

r ocl

1102 Aq 000001 43d sy1eap g | 01 182ueI WOy SYIBap JO 3)el ) dINPal 0]
vk :10b1e

Ayjeriow sooue) gz L IN

Jojealpuj jeuoneN mh qu—‘—:
sobe je siaoued |je wody Ajljerion ZZT IN

Page 34



TIDNNOD A LD =m et hbmm“

SPII 1

I 0L0Z el - podey eoueuLopad JUIof SpaaT SHN/JDT

pJejn4 epuaig :peo] Juswabeuepy
%0€°€C %06°€C %08 ¢ %01°S¢ %0L°S¢ boaow._m_._.IOli COL@ENO Cm_ "LOH.UQ.—_Q °>_u.—.—ooxm wvoml_ w—u—z
%6922 %s82Z %0622 %H0'ET enoy ==
01/600C ¥O 01/600Z €O 01/6002 2O 01/600C LO 60/8002

r %02

Ajlenp ejeq
Buney 1ybiT ouyel] |[esenQ
T+ %cc

o/of %z *A||e20] SOIUI[D BY) Ul SIoYOWS
(]

aJow UBALIp sey Sy} ‘seale ol10ads asoy) ul 921AI8s a8y} yym diysiauped
ul aoe|d uaye)] os|e aAey |9A8] [euolbal e JB papun) SUOIJUBAIBIUI 80.) 0} 808

T %9e "eaJe BulpunolInNs pue |eoo| 8y} UIyIM yjog Loddns

0) sse00e paroidwi [enpelb Buieas si pue eale S PUE [|IH PUoWwyory
B} Ul YJOM Pa)eJjusouo0d JBAIIBP O} SSNUIIUOD 82IAI9S UONEeSSa0 Bupjows ay |

%8¢

‘ABajeuys pasinal Builuooypuoy ayy

ojul sisuped wouy indul pue poddns uieb 0] Jaquiada( Ul JUSAS Japjoyayels e
paisoy Ajuiol seoineg yjeaH |ejuswuodiaug yum Buoje spas SHN "Allo ay)
JO seale paAlidap jsow a8y} ul wajqoad Jenoied e si yoiym ‘020eqo} Holj|I pue

apIm A1 - ouajeraud Bupjows :egzL IN

Jlo}eosipuj [euoiieN

o,0e" o - 0.0G" o 0L o B Aa [t
noeee i o i o oy deayo Jo AjIqisseooe ay) Buissaippe Buipnjoul ‘AjAnoe jeuoibal yim Bunjul| si
01/6002 4O 01/600Z €0 01/600Z 20 016002 10 5018002 . pue swwelboud [013u0d 029eq0)} BulydIeIBA0 Y] JO AlaAldp pue jusawdojonap
%0¢ ay) Joy sjuswabuelse Buimainal Ajjuanind st 9O yum Buofe | Dd ayl

(%€8'61 Woly) spaaT Jo }sal 8y}
%2Z 10} 8sealoap e pue (%962 Wol})) SYOS %01 9y} ulyim asu ybis e ybnoyye
(%88 gZ WoJ)) apImA}I0 By} Ul 8SEBI0BP ||BJOAO UB USSQ Sy aJay} LD Ylim
paledwo) ‘Spaa 4O }sal 8y} IO} %/ 6l PUB SYOS paAudap jsow 90| ay}
1 oz Ul %8/ 62 0} UMOP UdX0.q SI SIU} %69°ZZ S! SpoaT ssoloe +9| pabe syusned

Jo @ouajeAald Bupjows Jualind ay} ayedlpul elep €O 1sale| 8yl ‘sueyo
Juaoelpe ay) wolj usss aq ued se ‘panalyoe Bulaq Ajjussald si jablue) siy

%92
"SPaa‘ Jo 1SaJ 3y} pue seale PaaLIdap 1Sow ay) udamiaq

deb ay) molreu o) pue A2 ayy ssolae buiyows Jo 3audjeaald ayy 2anpay

%82 :10b1e|

apim M9 - aousjesaud Bupjows :egzL IN

soea1pul [euoneN ddudjenald bunjows :€ZT IN

Page 35



¢ 0L0Z4e) - podey eouewLOLad JUIOL SPaaT SHN/JDT

%06

%06

%06

%06

190.8 | am(um|

%S08

%08

%068

%06°16

[enY =3

L1/010C

01/600¢2 €O

01/6002 2O

01/6002 LO

60/800¢

%09

%S9

%0L

%S L

%08

%58

%06

%56

%001

a4e2 ajeipawidiul/qeyal ybnoayy sjdoad 4opjo 1o douadapur buiraiysy :GzZL IN

J1o}jeosipuj [euoiieN

TIDNNOD A LlD =mestmm hbmmd

SPRTY T

907 ‘uoIsSN|ou| pue SS820y :901A19G peaT

SUJaOUO0D ON Auend ejeq

Buney ybi7 oujel] |lesenQ

'60/800¢ u! Aynnoe
papJooal Jo swn|oA [jews AJaA e uo paseq sem )i se ybiy Ajgjeridoiddeul

189S Usaq aAey Aew }I Jey} pajou 8q pjnoys }l }ow a4 jou Aew jab.e} 01/6002
ay} 9JIYAA “Joreaipul siyj jsuiebe sjiouno) Bulwliopad Jaybiy ayy buowe
sulewsal spaaT ‘(elep JO SWN|OA [jews e uo paseq sem ainblj ay) pue mau
Sem JoJedlpul 8y} 60/800¢ UI) Buipiosal aouewuouad paroidwi ay) jsuiebe
paouejeq aq jshw siy} aouewopuad ul doip e moys sainbly ¢ Jauenp 1S|IUpA

“Jaje| syuow ¢ Bumes uswaoe|d pajeloosse Ue ul Jo swoy e BuiAll [is aiom

€/1 ‘01/6002 40 Japenb paiyy ayj jo pus ayj 0} dn pabieyosip sjdoad G|z JO

"selepunoq Buipuny SHN pue

8Je0 [BID0S US9M]S( 9}eIjUSIaIP JOU PUB [BNPIAIPUI 8Y} MO||0} O} paubisap

S| alnseaw oy ‘swes} julol Aq pauoISSILLIWOD 4e)s U} eaH pue ale)

[e100S JO yJom juiol ay} sainmded 3| ~eposide |[eydsoy e Buimojjoy uoneljigeyal
pue aJed a)eIpawliaiul WoJj S|eEnpPIAIPUI O} JIJdUSq 8y} sainseaw J0}edipul Siy ]

9.1eJ d)eIpallIdiul Jo/pue uohejiqeyal ybnoy)
aydoad apjo 1oj aauapuadapur aAadiyae o0} se 0S 3483 panosdul 13AI9p 0]

:10b1e|

9jdoad 19pj|o 10) ddoudpuaddapur :SZT IN

Page 36



€¢

0L0Z 18/ - Hodey eoueLLIOuSd JUIOP SPeaT SHN/DOT

20" [ 2 16°¢ e 6080 ==
ge'e €0°¢ ge'e 0160 =2
Y0 10 000
- 050
00'}
0s°}
002
05°Z
00°¢
> 0s°¢€
AV/AV\A\ L 00y
05

uoneindod 000°00L 49d a4e3 JO siajsuel) pafejog

piepue}g MaIAaY dlpouad

TIINNOD ALID T hbmm“

SPIAAT] MZ\ SHN|

Aeio |9BIN :pea Juswabeuely
uebLI0D euswoliyd 11039911 9A13N29X SpPaa] SHN

Ajenp ejeg
Buney ybi7 oyjel] |lesenQ

Jsyiny

[Ins @ouewlopad Buinoidwi pJemo} pauoissiwwod si Ajoeded moy ssalppe
pue sessa20.d Bululjweslis U0 Aemuapun S| YIOM pue ‘sSwesl}sSHIom Aay

s}l Jo auo se ssaooud Buiuueld abieyosip ay) sey pieog aied pauuejdun ayl

"Weyo ay)
UO aUl| 8Y) SB UMOYS ‘60/80 Ul awi) Jo spolad auwies ay) JaAo JuswaAoidul
ue sa1ealpul | Wol) Jeak ay) JaA0 81ed Jo Siajsuel) pake|ap Jo Jequinu ay

“Bunum jo awn oY)

1B JUBWSASIYOE. 10} P|OYSaly} Y} pauldp 10U aABY UOISSILLWOD Ajljend aie)
ayl -uonendod |essuab sy} Jo 00000 Jad ajel ay) sainseaw (sabieyosip
pakejap se uMouy| Ud}0) aJed JO siajsuel) paked@p uo Jojesipul ay |

‘paulyap aq 0} 134 poyaw e ul auldseq e 13s 0} Pasn aq 0} 80//002 YIm ‘i
Siy1 1e (Ley ayp ul pasn Aio0yaales) ubis [ejiy ayi puoAaq) 1ab.1e) painuapl oy

:10b1e|

3J4ed Jo s.ddjsued) palAe|2q :TET IN

Page 37



Improvement Priority — HW-1a Reduce Premature mortality in the most deprived
areas

CAA Focus - Health Inequalities — differences in life expectancy across city and high levels P(I?ve:all
of infant mortality ogress
Lead Officer — John England & lan Cameron I

Appendix 2

¢

Woarld Class Commissioning Outea mes
Ruodues e gup of AAACAT horwu on sleprivod nress of Losis nad iha rext fAiale)

Why is this a Whilst for the whole city the All Age All causes mortality (AAACM) rate is declining as we
priority would wish, in order to narrow the AAACM Gap, the rate needs to decline faster for

deprived Leeds (worst quintile) than for the rest of the city. Currently death rates are
significantly higher in deprived Leeds, including for cardio-vascular disease and most
cancers, which means people are dying earlier in those areas. The inequity in life
expectancy is unacceptable.

‘World Class Commissioning Outcomes
Reduere the pup of AAACM beiwesa deprived sress of I sedy aad the et [Foamls]

360 160

1a00

140 /\m

130 4

1200 7

1100

b U
2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007 | 2008 | 2008 | 2010 | 2001 o2 | 2013 N[ o= | annd | onns | ANNR | GNNT | A0NE | Gnna | 2amn | L Rk

[ty g 330 | 323 [ sa0 | 317 | =18

= a4 [ ae [ 1m0 [ 153 | 148

|—°—Gap trajsctory 275 257 250 287 277 267 258 255 256

|—0—Gsp trajectory 139 138 147 147 147 144 138 1A 139

Fig. 1 Fig. 2

Overall Progress to date and outcomes achieved 1st October to 31st December 2009

Overall Summary

The charts show the trajectory and actual gap between the deprived areas and the rest of the city. The
numbers shown are based on mortality rates for male (Fig.1) and female (Fig. 2). The gap numbers are
unfortunately only available to 2006. The 2008 data is due to be updated and available for Quarter 4
reporting.

The work within this objective will be influenced by the establishment of local area Health and Wellbeing
partnerships, which will help to ensure work with LCC and CVFS is joined up and more effective.

The Health Inequalities Programme is now integrated into the Health and Wellbeing Partnership Plan.
Further work is being undertaken to ensure governance and performance management for health
inequalities is aligned for LCC and NHS through the use of joint Action Trackers.

A wider workforce approach is now developed and agreed by PH Senior Management Team. Emphasis
is on commissioning rather than delivery, targeting wider workforce.

A workshop was held to revise the high level actions of the Health and well-being partnership plan and to
establish short term actions for April 2010 to September 2010.

Achievements since the last quarter

3 Local area partnerships for health and wellbeing have been established and are having monthly
meetings. Two Health Improvement Managers have been appointed to support the partnerships and a
third is being recruited. The partnerships have reviewed evidence for their local areas (including the
Neighbourhood Index, JSNA, etc.) and are starting to identify local priorities. Elected members have
been engaged through the nomination of health champions to sit on the partnerships and the briefing
session for councillors on health inequalities.

The ‘Team Neighbourhood’ approach has been introduced to the 3 Health and Wellbeing Partnerships.
There is excellent work being delivered in most of the ‘deprived Leeds’ neighbourhoods on broader
determinants linking to local partnerships and planning mechanisms.

A Preventative Tasking Group has been established in Chapeltown; public health staff are attending to
act as link into other health partners.

The Neighbourhood Index for Leeds has been trialled and final data validation is underway. It was
intended to go live in Oct but is not yet available electronically, though paper drafts have been circulated.

Page 38




Improvement Priority — HW-1a Reduce Premature mortality in the most deprived
areas

Appendix 2

CAA Focus - Health Inequalities — differences in life expectancy across city and high levels
of infant mortality

Lead Officer — John England & lan Cameron

A financial inclusion study found that for £1 spent by NHS Leeds on financial inclusion work (both
commissioned activity and worker input within the PCT), £6 was released into the local and regional
economy.

Three housing workshops were delivered in November, one per wedge, looking at referral routes for
teenagers who are pregnant/young mothers.

Preliminary meeting have taken place to discuss the use of social impact bonds as a means to draw
resources into health improvement work.

Healthy Living services:

Performance reports that in Quarter 2, CHE’s delivered ‘quartet’ sessions (smoking, alcohol, food and
physical activity heath education) to 1869 people.

A formal review of the Health Check LES has been carried out. 38 practices have now signed up. 2,816
risk assessments completed this quarter, of which 834 were over 20% risk. Commissioned training from
Primary Care Training Centre.

From the 38 participating practices, 12 achieved their target this quarter, 6 practices achieved 70% the
remainder were under 70%. Fed back to practices on their target performance. Joint action plans
developed for under performing practices. Joint action plans also developed with Primary Care
Development Teams.

Roll out strategy meeting arranged for January 10.

Evaluation of near patient testing to be completed in January 10.

Infant Mortality:
Implementing the Maternity Matters programme. Within this there is:

Undertaking evaluation of direct access telephone service which enables women to make direct contact
with a midwife early in pregnancy (operational since August 09).

Introducing a new coding system into maternity records to identify reasons for late booking.

Specialist midwife for vulnerable BME women exploring reasons why women from certain communities
book later for maternity care.

Asylum seeker care pathway planning event with key stakeholders held December 09.

Maternity care pathway for asylum seekers due for completion Jan/ Feb 2010.

For smoking during pregnancy, it is recognised that the current data collection may underestimate the rate.
Actions include:

Reviewing the smoking advice offered by maternity services

Smoking included as part of the antenatal risk assessment checklist which has to be referred to at each
antenatal contact.

Brief intervention training sessions booked for midwives

The sharing of best practice relating to supporting pregnant teenagers

Focused work in children centre’s situated within deprived areas to promote access to Leeds Stop
Smoking Service

A fast track direct contact system for high risk, vulnerable groups to improve take up of support.

Approved by John England & lan Cameron Date 04/02/2010
(Accountable Officer)

Page 39




(ebeiane (uoneindod 000‘001
pauoday | pauoday 16-G661) JaquinN Jad) G/ Japun sabe je saseasip
Allenuuy | Ajlenuuy 0,2/ 68'L. 00'S¥l lleq Allenuuy 10d Aioye|nalio wioy ayel Ayjepoly LZLIN
(uoneindod 000°001
peuodey | papodey (9002) JaquinN Jad) YOS 1810M %0| Selep
Allenuuy | Ajjlenuuy 00'7.6 008601 lled Allenuuy 10d | - ®jes Ajjjepow asneo ||e abe-||y
(ebeiane (uonendod
papodey | pepodey 16-G661) JaquinN 000°001 Jad) apim Ayo saje|y
Allenuuy | Ajlenuuy 00269 ge'ees 002¥6 lled Allenuuy 10d | - ®es Ajjepow asneo ||e abe-jly
(uoneindod 000°001
peuodey | papodey (9002) JaquinN Jad) YOS 1sI10Mm %0| so|ewad
Allenuuy | Ajlenuuy 00829 00289 lleq Allenuuy 10d | - ®jes Ajjjepow asneo ||e abe-||y
(obelane (uonejndod
papodey | pepodey 16-G661) JaquinN 000°001 Jad) apim Ao sajews
Allenuuy | Ajjenuuy 00'18¥ £8°'00S 00'509 lleq Allenuuy 10d | - el Ajjepow asneo |je abe ||y
pouoday | pauoday JaquinN (uoneindod 0p0‘001 Jod)
Allenuuy | Ajlenuuy 96209 lleq Allenuuy 10d ajes Ayilepow asneo ||e abe ||y 0zl ING

J1l0ld JuswaAoidw| 8y} 0} paubije sioledlpul 8oueW.IoUdd

JauelIxa aAneniu| spaa ay) buisn pJejin4
ssa20.4d aAljeIoqe||09 B Ybnouy) palodas | epuaig/puelbu]
0102 |udy 2q |IIm Jeyy suoioe | HYINS sepnjoul ueld uyor ue|d diysJeupied Buiagiopn pue yyeaH pasiaal 8y} ysiignd pue saiby [4
Jo0jAe] wi]
Jeal 1xau Joj sanuoud paalbe | |jeddn oysyeg ‘|9A8] |B20] WO} $1.0Z 0} L L0Z 104 (YY) ueld 2168jens spasa ainjny uo aduanju|
0102 yolen diysiauped uieluod sueld Aiaalleg eaty | Asjieg yiegqezii3 | "L 10Z — 010g 10} sueld A1aAll@ ealy a8y} Jo uonoas Bulag|iem pue yjeay ay) dojaasq L
Jauljied
[ 432140
a|easawl] SUoljOy [/ dUO}SI|IN Aioynquiuon (syuswadnalyoy palisaqg) uonoy

uosawed ue| R pue|bug uyor —1ao1jO pea]

Ayjeniow jueyul Jo sjeAs| ybiy pue Ao ssoloe Aouejoadxe ayl| Ul seouslayip — sanijenbau] yjesH - snooH YvD
seale paAldap }sow ayj ui A}ijeliow ainjewald 9anpay eL-MH — Aiold Juswaroidwy

Z Xipuaddy




HW-1d/CYPP 7 - Reducing teenage conception POveraII

CAA Focus - Teenage pregnancy still high although improving slightly rogress

Lead Officer — Sarah Sinclair 1
Why is this a Evidence shows that having children at a young age can damage young women'’s
priority health and wellbeing and severely limit their education and career prospects. Long
¢ term studies show that children born to teenagers are more likely to experience a

range of negative outcomes in later life and are up to 3 times more likely to become
teenage parents themselves.

Priority actions will focus on recognising the interdependencies between teenage
pregnancy and improving other outcomes for children and young people; providing
young people with the means to avoid early pregnancy; tackling the underlying
circumstances that motivate young people to want to, or lead them passively to
become parents at a young age; working in effective partnerships to ensure
universal provision for all young people with strengthened delivery and services to
those most at risk; and acknowledging that effective interventions require significant
time to deliver sustainable change.

By age, the percentage booked
NI 112 - Under 18 Conception Rate (fall) for maternity assessment within 13 weeks
52 (April 08 to Feb 09)
84
) 50 — i 82
> L= _ 2
g% 0 R
v 46 - 3
- ‘_; [ § 276
35 44 1 \ s §74 —
2 © >
- 42 4 g n
=y g i -
F
1998 [1999|2000 {2001 {2002 |2003 |2004 |2005 {2006 2007 |2008 .o
66 T T T T
== Leeds Results | 50.4 |49.8| 50 |46.8|47.6|41.2|46.8(49.2|50.7 |48.1 19 and under 20-30 31-3 3-40 40
A
1 National 46.6 |44.8| 44 |425|427 422|416 413|404 417 ge
—am— Leeds Target 45 |42.7

Overall Progress to date and outcomes achieved 1st October to 31st December 2009

Overall Summary

The significant increase in activity to reduce the levels of teenage parents in Leeds in the last 12 months
has started to show real service changes across the city. Increased momentum has been aided through our
much better identification and sharing of the pattern of teenage conceptions across the city. Progress on
our internal measures of action and process are good for most areas.

Our indicator data for teenage conceptions, based on the national ONS data set, lags significantly behind
any activity to reduce it. The 2007 rate for Leeds is 48.1, a reduction from the 2006 figure of 50.9
(conceptions per 1000 female population aged 15-17). The national rate for comparison is 41.7. The next
nationally produced city wide data will be available in February 2010. This will be the data relating to 2008.
However, the first and second quarter data for 2008 is currently showing a provisional rise to 51.7 in Q1,
54.1 in Q2 with a decrease in Q3 to 46.3 producing a rolling quarterly average of 49.7. It is useful to note
Leeds’ recent performance is within a context of a national rise in teenage conceptions for 2008.
Comparing to other Core Cities Leeds’ is midway between the highest and lowest performing cities on this
indicator. No Core City or significantly sized local authority shows a consistent teenage conception
reduction likely to enable it to reach the 50% reduction by 2010 target for the UK.

Levels of teenage pregnancy vary significantly between localities. Better quality data providing more timely
information at the local level is supporting the development and coordination of services which are starting
to have a positive impact.

As with Q2, the action tracker has been assessed as amber with a declining direction of travel to reflect the
declining position compared to the year end result for 2008-09. This will be reviewed at Q4 once the
February update has been received.

Page 41



HW-1d/CYPP 7 - Reducing teenage conception
CAA Focus - Teenage pregnancy still high although improving slightly

Lead Officer — Sarah Sinclair

Activity Achievements since the last quarter

The Authority has secured the continuing senior leadership of Teenage Pregnancy and Parenthood
through the appointment of a Deputy Director of Commissioning for Children’s Services

The Teenage Pregnancy and Parenthood Partnership received a ‘Making a Difference’ award for
Christmas 08 and Valentine 09 media campaigns.

Christmas 09 ‘talking to your teen’ campaign was launched in November 09.

Data being collated at post code sector level.

Data collection is strengthening for more service, eg, Healthy Young Peoples service and for Children
and Young Peoples Social Care (CYPSC).

There is a new fast track system for Looked After Young People for appointments in Contraception and
Sexual Health (CaSH) services.

Increase in pharmacy sites offering Emergency Hormonal Contraception, pregnancy testing and
Chlamydia testing from 27 to 38 sites.

Launch of CYPSC Relationship Policy.

Pupil consultation toolkit for Primary Year 6, completed and trialled in 3 schools, including 2 faith
schools. The feedback from these trials has been used to shape training courses.

3 new courses on offer for Primary schools, on generic Sex and Relationship Education (SRE), Pupil
and Parent consultation on SRE and improving delivery skills for SRE.

The Healthy Schools Enhancements Model early success indicators for teenage pregnancy for Primary
and Secondary schools are completed.

The Leeds Breastfeeding Strategy written detailing the needs of young mothers and young people
Four new after school CaSH clinics in community settings have been opened in hot spot wards and
youth work has been commissioned to support them.

There have been two locality events for children’s workforce and sexual health service providers to
promote further service integration .

There have been 20 multi agency staff trained as Speakeasy facilitators, 53 parents have been trained
in Speakeasy and a pilot Speakeasy course for parents with a parallel vulnerable children course to
compliment each other targeted at priority areas.

The initial findings from the onsite CaSH clinics in FE Colleges show an very encouraging uptake.
Training for Effective Transition Personal Advisors working with school age and post 16 young people in
dealing with unintended pregnancy choices and decisions.

We are responding to the challenge of the lack of change in teenage parenting rates by supporting the
above with a commissioning plan which allocates £147K of Area Based Grant to the above priorities
focussing on the 6 wards with the highest rates of conception.

Challenges/Risks

There are real risks that not all relevant services and strategies perceive that teenage pregnancy and
parenthood is a priority for them, and that many services can have a positive effect. For example, we
will be ensuring that housing services are fully engaged because unstable and inappropriate housing for
teenage parents and their children is factor which is linked to 2" and subsequent teenage pregnancies.
Services will need to be further challenged to be young people friendly to ensure that young people will
access them, and especially those young people who do not readily access mainstream services.
There is no central point which professionals can refer to in order to ensure young parents to be and
teenage parents are accessing the relevant services as early as possible, such as antenatal services.
There is support for school age young fathers to continue their education. However, there is little
specific support available for young fathers post 16, both in terms of preparing for parenthood and
seeking education, training and employment thus demonstrating the link to the NEET agenda.

Council / Partnership Groups

Approved by (Accountable Officer) Paul Bollom Date 11/2/10
Approved by (Accountable Director) Date

Page 42



SUJ9OUOD (£1-G1 pabe spib 0001 Jod
ON Id [enuuy | |d |[enuuy L'Cy 8% ¥'09 led [enuuy 10d | ®jed) ajel uodeouod g| Japun CLLIN
}Insay
Aenp JeaA [In4 jInsay lleqd | ainsea\ ®
ejeq pajoipald | g 19uend jobie) | Jeap )se] | auleseg | Jo asiy | Aouanbaig ERTVVETS 9} | 9ouaIajOy
Alioud 1uswanoidw| ay) 0] paublje siojedipul 8oUeWIOLSd
S10}edIpu] 92UBWLIOLIDd
"S92IAI9S SS9208. 0] Sjualed abeuss) pue
0L0Z 94 ,LL | 0102 Yosep ddd.l 01 epew aq 0} uoijepuswwoday | wojog |ned | sjuased BunoA Joj julod |eissal 9jA1s Jo) pasu Ajue|D 8
pJeoq SpoaT 1S\ Ul
0L0Z 994 ,LL | 0L0Z Yosely dddl @yl Aq peaibe pue pajajdwod aq 0) ue|ld | wojjog |ned sjoxo0d joy paniuapl Aimau Joy ueld uonoe dojaaaq )]
600¢ SO7IS pue
AON AQ s|00yoS AIepuooas [|e 0} pajeullwassIp aq sSNyd Buipnjoul ‘sjooyos Alepuooss ||e 0} palayo
0L0C 984 ;L1 0102 IHdy 0} pue pajesald usaq sey }Y|oo| 8y} jo 0O djdwes | yiws AyjoloQ aq 0} |00 diysuszpyy pue JHSd Alepuodesy | 9
palIpaJooe BWOD|9AN 8. NOA,
NOBWOAA aq |m sJapinoid (O ) Aoueubald Jo uoneuiwla |
0,02 994 ,LL | 01L0Z Uotep 010z uer sbuneaw Bulojuow ssaiboid AIN 8y} pue (NND) dulipsy Aleulnojuss ‘HSeD | G
S90IAI8S Yl|eaH ™
|enxag 0} sse20e Asea pue yims Buibeinoous M
010z 1deg pue Buipuelsiepun siouianob jooyos Buinosdw - =
spaaT slaquiaw pajos|e o
0102 yoien 1S9\ Joj uoidwey) s,ualipjiyd Yim J0ejuod ayei - pue swea} diysiapes| A)Ij|ea0| ‘sioulanob jooyos
sioulonob ypim ydom Buipnjour uejd uonoe apim Al pue Aljeoao|
0L0Z 984 L1 Buiobup [o0yos yym abebus 0y papoddns Jaquisiy pea -| Jiejouls yeles | Jo uoddns ul Jaquis|y pea wody diysiapes| pasnoo %
3YS Alepuooss pue
Arewud Joy pajuswsajdwi aq o} uejd uonoe oibajens
0L0Z 984 )1 Bulobup uoneyuswa|dwi Jo ssalboud Jo)uoyy | wojog |ned (3y4S) uoneonpg sdiysuone|ay pue xag pajiele( o
0102 |udy 0102 s} Iudy Aq 8oe|d Ul Buluoissiwwo) ue[d Buluoissiwwod ay} Jo uonejuswa|du
SpaaT 1SOAN UIYlIM Ssuoljoe
0L0zZ Aepy dojensp 0} JouOISSILIWOD A)I|ED0] JO UOIBIO||- SpaaT 1SOM
0L0Cc 984 ,L1 | 010C Ydoie ddddl O} uojjejussald- | wojjog |ned ul 3@x00d el ybly Joj Jaypny sueld Ayjeoo| dojere( |
pamalnay
jseq
uonoy ajeq a|eoasawil] SUOJSIA|IN | 192130 peo uonoy

0102 Yo21ey y10s 03 Aienuer 3s| syjuow ¢ 3xau ayj 10} suonoe Aay|

Ie|oulS yeles — 19010 pea

Apybiis Buinoadwi ybnoyye ybiy s Aoueubaud abeuss | - snooH YvD
uondaosuod abeuss) Buronpay - 2 ddAd/PL-MH



Leeds

Area Assessment

Dated 9 December 2009

for an independent overview
of local public services




Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Contents

Leeds at a glance
How is Leeds doing?
About Leeds

How well do priorities for Leeds express
community needs and aspirations?

Priorities for Leeds

. CULTURE: Enable more people to be involved in
sport and cuture, and facilitate delivery of major
cultural schemes

« ENTERPRISE AND THE ECONOMY: Increase
innovation, promotion of the City and facilitate
major city centre developments.

« ENVIRONMENT: Increase recycling, reduce
emissions, improve cleanliness and access,
improve sustainability of the built and natural
environment and improve our resilience to
current and future climate change.

. HARMONIOUS COMMUNITIES: increased local
engagement and empowerment to establish
increased sense of belonging and enable vibrant
communities.

« HEALTH AND WELL BEING: reduce mortality in
the most deprived areas and improve

Page 45
2 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

assessment, access to services and support to
vulnerable people.

. LEARNING: improve workforce skills, learning
outcomes and engagement of vulnerable groups.

. THRIVING PLACES: Increase numbers of decent
and affordable homes, reduce homelessness and
fuel poverty. Create a safer enviroment, reduce
worklessness and develop services to improve to
support children, families and communities.

. TRANSPORT: Improve public transport services
in Leeds, condition of the transport infrastruture
and road safety.

Page 46
3 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Leeds at a glance

This independent assessment by six inspectorates sets out how well local
public services are tackling the major issues in Leeds. It says how well they are
delivering better results for local people and how likely these are to improve in
future. If, and only if, our assessment shows that the following special
circumstances are met in relation to a major issue, we use flags to highlight
our judgements. We use a green flag to highlight where others can learn from
outstanding achievements or improvements or an innovation that has very
promising prospects of success. We use a red flag to highlight where we have
significant concerns about results and future prospects that are not being
tackled adequately. This means that local partners need to do something
more or different to improve these prospects.

Green flags - exceptional performance or

innovation that others can learn from

Green flag: People in deprived communities benefiting from Leeds'
economic growth - Leeds Ahead

Red flags - significant concerns, action

needed

Red flag: Keeping vulnerable children and young people safe

Red flag: Burglary in parts of Leeds

The local area

Over 750,000 people live in Leeds. The economy has grown quickly over the
past ten years. The city has changed from being mainly industrial into an
important business, finance and legal centre.

The population has been increasing quickly. It is very diverse, with over 130
nationalities including a black and minority ethnic population of just under 11
per cent. It is an area of great contrasts. It includes rural areas like Harewood
and Wetherby, where most people are relatively well-off. It also includes
densely populated, inner city areas where people are poorer and housing
quality is a big problem. Although improving, the health of people in Leeds is
generally worse than the national average, with big differences across the
city.

The next section tells you how Leeds's public services are doing in each of
their local priority areas.

Page 47
4 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

How is Leeds doing?

CULTURE: Enable more people to be
involved in sport and cuture, and
facilitate delivery of major cultural
schemes

More people than ever before are using cultural and leisure facilities in Leeds.
The Grand Theatre, Art Gallery and Central Library have been refurbished.
New, popular attractions such as the City Museum have been opened. Visits
to museums and galleries nearly doubled to just under one million, although
visits to libraries fell slightly. The nhumber of adults being active and
participating in sports rose by nearly eight per cent in the year to October
2008 - one of the largest increases in the country. Prospects for improvement
are good. Plans are well advanced to build the Leeds Arena - a 12,500 seat
multi-purpose venue which is a high priority for residents and local businesses.
There are also plans to improve and relocate leisure centres. But the benefits
of this investment are not being felt consistently by all Leeds people.
Satisfaction with libraries, theatres and concert halls, and open spaces, has
fallen. Whilst many residents regularly use services, a quarter of Place Survey
respondents has never used them. Partners need to do more to ensure that
cultural facilities are used by all the people of Leeds.

ENTERPRISE AND THE ECONOMY: Increase
innovation, promotion of the City and
facilitate major city centre developments.

Leeds has responded well to the recession. As with other major cities, the
recession has affected Leeds, particularly developments in the city centre. In
response, local public services have reviewed their priorities and are focussing
on the development of the Arena, new retail developments at Trinity Quarter
and improving Leeds Bradford airport. This clear approach gives confidence to
investors, developers and residents that the city is in good shape to overcome
the recession.

Partners have a clear ambition to help drive the region's economic growth.
They are on track and are successfully developing the city's economy and
reputation. Until the recession hit, employment was increasing, as was the
number of people using the city's shops, cultural and leisure facilities. Partners
have a detailed understanding of the city and wider city-regional economy.
They have identified the new facilities needed to achieve Leeds' ambitions,
including the Arena and improved transport into the city. This places the city
well to continue to grow.

People in more deprived communities have benefited from Leeds' economic
growth through 'Leeds Ahead'. Leeds Ahead is a social enterprise that works

Page 48
5 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

with the Leeds Initiative to involve Leeds businesses in innovative joint work
between public, community and business sectors. It has encouraged
enterprise, improved skills and attainment and raised the aspirations of people
in disadvantaged communities.

ENVIRONMENT: Increase recycling, reduce
emissions, improve cleanliness and access,
improve sustainability of the built and
natural environment and improve our
resilience to current and future climate
change.

Note: At the time of this assessment, industrial action had disrupted refuse
collections for several weeks. The impact of this on recycling rates and street
cleanliness was not yet known.

People in Leeds continue to produce less waste than most parts of the
country. In the past Leeds has not been good at recycling, but over 30 per
cent of waste is now being recycled, re-used or composted. This is less than
most other areas, but is likely to get better as more garden waste is being
recycled and the Council has invested in more kerbside collections. Streets are
now cleaner and public access to footpaths and other rights of way has
improved.

Work to reduce carbon emissions from public sector buildings is still at an early
stage. Partners have started to prepare for the possible effects of Climate
Change and have recently agreed a Climate Change Strategy for the city.
They plan to invest in projects to cope with possible floods. A big challenge for
Leeds is to balance its ambitions for economic growth, for example the
expansion of Leeds-Bradford airport, with its ambitions to reduce carbon
emissions. Partners need to speed up their efforts to combat climate change.
They also need to get better at measuring the results of their work to improve
the environment.

HARMONIOUS COMMUNITIES: increased
local engagement and empowerment to
establish increased sense of belonging
and enable vibrant communities.

Fewer people in Leeds than in 2006/07 feel that people from different
backgrounds get on well. There are big differences within Leeds, with people
in the east, south and west much less positive than those in the north. The
Council and its partners have done a lot of work to try and improve how well
people get on, but it is not always clear whether this is making a difference.

Page 49
6 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Resident satisfaction varies widely depending on where you live in Leeds.
People in the north east of the city are much more likely to be satisfied with
their area than people in the south or west. There are likely to be even bigger
differences, which are hidden within these fairly large districts of the city.
Local public services are carrying out a much more detailed residents' survey
to try and understand better these differences. They are also developing a
'‘Neighbourhood Index' to give them a better understanding of individual
neighbourhoods.

HEALTH AND WELL BEING: reduce
mortality in the most deprived areas and
improve assessment, access to services
and support to vulnerable people.

Some vulnerable children and young people are not being kept safe from
harm in Leeds. A recent inspection found that discussions between the
Council, police and other agencies do not take place quickly enough and
children are not always seen by professionals, even when there are concerns
about their safety. Key procedures are out of date and the speed and quality
of assessments varies too much.

Older people in Leeds are happier than in most similar areas. More than 80
per cent of people over 65 said that they were satisfied with their home and
neighbourhood. Most people have a choice about the care that they receive
and more people than average are supported to live independently.
Arrangements to make sure that vulnerable adults are kept safe have been
improved, but further work is needed to make sure that they are having an
impact.

People in Leeds are living longer than ever before. Early deaths from cancer
are decreasing. Fewer adults in Leeds are obese than the national average
and more are physically active. But there are big differences in health across
the city. For example, an average man in City and Hunslet will die just over 10
years earlier than an average man in Harewood. NHS Leeds, the Council and
other organisations are working to try and improve this. They are targeting
work more effectively on vulnerable communities, but there is still more to do.

LEARNING: improve workforce skills,
learning outcomes and engagement of
vulnerable groups.

Most children in Leeds achieve well at school, but progress is inconsistent. At
Key Stage 2 results fell in both english and maths and the number of schools
not hitting government targets is not getting better. The number of pupils
getting good GCSEs is around the national average. Whilst some schools
recorded big improvements in GCSE results some slipped back.

Page 50
7 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Progress for some groups is particularly slow. For example Asian pupils
perform well below the national average. Behaviour in some secondary
schools is not as good as it should be and despite improvements, the rate of
persistent absence in some schools is still too high. 9.5 per cent of young
people are not in education, employment or training (NEET). Prospects for
improvement are promising, as support is being targeted on the individuals
and groups who most need it.

THRIVING PLACES: Increase numbers of
decent and affordable homes, reduce
homelessness and fuel poverty. Create a
safer enviroment, reduce worklessness
and develop services to improve to
support children, families and
communities.

Most types of crime have fallen in Leeds, including some that people are most
concerned about, such as violent crime. Most people feel safe in their local
area after dark and fewer people see drug dealing as a big problem. But
burglary is very high in parts of Leeds like Harehills, Beeston, Armley and
Headingley. In some cases, it is up to three times the national average. The
police and Council are working together with probation and the courts to try
and reduce burglary in Leeds. There has been some recent improvement, but
this trend must continue over a longer period to demonstrate that there are
strong prospects for continued improvement.

Housing is a problem in the poorer parts of Leeds. Many people living in
rented housing in the private sector are living in over-crowded
accommaodation. Partners have worked hard to try and increase the number
of affordable houses. The quality of public sector housing is improving. Fewer
people are homeless than before in Leeds, and humbers continue to fall. But
the latest official figures show that over 24,000 people are on the waiting list
for housing.

Many people in Leeds do not have basic skills, and getting people into work in
the poorer areas of the city is a problem. Unemployment is over 10 per centin
some parts of Leeds, compared to a city wide average of less than three per
cent. Up to 30 per cent of people are either unemployed or unable to work in
some inner city areas. Partners are taking a lot of action to try and help
people into work, but recognise that they still need to do more to improve
things.

TRANSPORT: Improve public transport
services in Leeds, condition of the

Page 51
8 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

transport infrastruture and road safety.

In 2004, Leeds people said that public transport was the most important thing
for the future of Leeds. Since then, progress has been relatively slow. Some
improvements have been made. Bus shelters and train stations are better and
new bus lanes mean that buses run faster and services are more convenient
for passengers. But bus usage is not meeting targets, and passengers are no
happier than before about bus services.

Roads and pavements in Leeds have got better. In 2007, local people said that
repairing roads and pavements was their top priority for improvement. Since
then, the Council has increased spending. Fewer people now see repairs as a
big problem.

Reducing congestion was also a big priority for Leeds people in 2007. Access
to the city has been improved through new roads. More people are leaving
their cars at home when they travel into Leeds in the morning peak, and more
people cycle to work. Prospects for improvement are mixed. Congestion
remains a problem on many roads. Plans for the future include ‘New
Generation Transport'. This includes a trolley-bus system which could
significantly improve public transport.

About Leeds

A recent survey shows that in Leeds 79 per cent of people are satisfied with
their immediate local area as a place to live. This is broadly the same as the
average for similar areas and broadly the same as the national average of 81
per cent.

Over 750,000 people live in Leeds - making it the largest city in Yorkshire and
Humberside. The economy has grown quickly over the past ten years. The city
has changed from being a mainly industrial city into an important business,
finance and legal centre. It is at the centre of the 'Leeds City Region'.

The population has been increasing quickly. It is forecast to continue to grow,
particularly the number of people aged over 65. Leeds is very diverse, with
over 130 nationalities, including a black and minority ethnic population of just
under 11 per cent. It is an area of great contrasts. It includes rural areas like
Harewood and Wetherby, where most people are relatively well-off. It also
includes densely populated, inner city areas where people are poorer and
housing quality is a big problem. Although improving, the health of people in
Leeds is generally worse than the national average, with big differences
across the city.

Leeds was the 85th most deprived area in England in 2007- an improvement
on 2004 when it was 63rd. But parts of Leeds are still very deprived. Over
150,000 people live in areas which are amongst the 10 per cent most
deprived in the country. 'Narrowing the gap' between the prosperous parts of
Leeds and the less well-off inner city areas is one of the big challenges for the
city.

The Council, NHS, other public services like the police, fire and probation,

Page 52
9 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

voluntary organisations and businesses, work together as 'The Leeds Initiative'
to improve the quality of life for people in Leeds. Partners share a vision 'to
bring the benefits of a prosperous, vibrant and attractive city to all the people
of Leeds'. They have ambitions of 'Going up a league' economically and in
quality of life and 'Narrowing the gap' between the richer and poorer parts of
Leeds.

How well do priorities for Leeds express
community needs and aspirations?

The Leeds Initiative has a good understanding of the big issues affecting
people in Leeds. A wide range of people and groups were involved in
establishing the Vision for Leeds and in agreeing priorities for the city. Many of
the things that people have identified as important in the past have seen big
improvements. Most types of crime have fallen and roads and pavements
have got better. People in Leeds feel safer than they did two years ago.

One Leeds' big ambitions is to go up a league economically and in quality of
life. It's prospects for doing so are promising. The other big ambition is
narrowing the gap between the richer and poorer parts of the city. Over the
last three years, there has been some progress in narrowing this gap. But the
Place Survey showed big differences in satisfaction between the most and
least deprived parts of Leeds. Development of a Leeds 'Neighbourhood Index'
will help local public services understand what is heeded to narrow gaps more
effectively.

Public sector organisations in Leeds carry out a lot of consultation with people.
They also collect a lot of detailed statistical information about Leeds. At the
moment, they tend to do this as individual organisations rather than together.
This means that information is not always used as effectively as it might be. It
also means that people might be asked about the same issues by different
organisations. Local public services have recognised the need to work
together more closely to improve how they consult people in Leeds.

Partnership working is well established. Partners are looking to improve it
further by being clearer about roles and responsibilities. The pace of
improvement would also be improved by more effective performance
management - challenging quickly where things are not going well and
putting them right. The partnership recognises the need to improve its
approach to ensuring value for money. It has set up the Public Sector
Resources Partnership Group to try and make sure that it spends money in the
best way possible. The Group provides public service partners with the
opportunity to ensure that their work is subject to detailed evaluation to
ensure that it provides good value for money.

Leeds is at the centre of the Leeds City Region. This involves 11 local
authorities from across North, South and West Yorkshire working together on
big issues like regeneration, skills and housing. The City Region has been given
special status by the government to make changes to the way that councils
and their partners minimise the impact of the downturn and speed up
recovery. The challenge for the City Region will be to make sure that these

Page 53
10 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

changes have an impact on people's lives.

CULTURE: Enable more people to be
involved in sport and cuture, and facilitate
delivery of major cultural schemes

More people than ever before are using cultural and leisure facilities in Leeds.
Free events like 'Opera in the Park' and 'Party in the Park' attracted record
audiences in 2009. The Council has spent money on refurbishing the Grand
Theatre, Art Gallery and Central Library. It has also opened new attractions
such as the City Museum and Kirkstall Abbey visitor centre. The museum
attracted nearly 200,000 visitors in the first six months. This investment led to
visits to museums and galleries nearly doubling to just under one million,
although visits to libraries fell slightly. Eight per cent more adults were active
and participated in sports - one of the largest increases in the country. There
is a comprehensive programme of Sport and Active Recreation for disabled
service users.

Although there is concern about the impact of the recession on future plans,
the Council and partners are working to improve facilities further and
prospects for improvement are good. There are plans to improve the City
Varieties theatre and the Northern Ballet. Plans are well advanced to build
and open the Leeds Arena - a 12,500 seat multi-purpose venue in the heart of
the city - which is a high priority for residents and local businesses. There are
also plans to improve and relocate leisure centres, to provide a wider range of
facilities and make them easier to get to.

But the benefits of this investment are not being felt consistently by Leeds
people. Satisfaction with libraries, theatres and concert halls and open spaces
has fallen. Whilst many residents regularly use services, a quarter of Place
Survey respondents have never used leisure facilities. Partners need to do
more to ensure that cultural facilities are accessible by all the people of Leeds.

ENTERPRISE AND THE ECONOMY:
Increase innovation, promotion of the City
and facilitate major city centre
developments.

m Green flag: People in deprived communities
benefiting from Leeds' economic growth - Leeds
Ahead

People in more deprived communities have benefited from Leeds' economic
growth through 'Leeds Ahead'. It has encouraged enterprise, improved skills
and attainment and raised the aspirations of people in disadvantaged
communities. Businesses have become valued members of local communities.

Page 54
11 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Leeds Ahead has engaged with nearly 200 local businesses. These businesses
have invested more than £500,000 and donated 13,000 hours of voluntary
support, through 460 separate projects. The work has benefited 147 different
community partners and helped more than 12,000 of the 75,000 most
deprived people in the city.

Leeds Ahead is a social enterprise that works with the Leeds Initiative to
involve Leeds' businesses in innovative joint work between public, community
and business sectors. Before 2007, businesses helped support local
communities in an unco-ordinated way. The Leeds Ahead approach has
ensured that support is better directed to what is important for local people.
Relationships with local communities are long-term, rather than one-off.
Businesses have better ownership and understanding of local needs.
Employees stay in their jobs for longer, businesses are financially stronger and
have better links with local partners. As a result, businesses enjoy better
goodwill and reputation benefiting local people and the places in which they
live.

Pupils in inner city schools have been helped with maths and english through
mentoring by employees of a major law firm. Exam results in targeted schools
have increased and in one school the number of children getting five GCSEs
at A-C grade, including maths and english, has increased from 20 to 53 per
cent. Mentoring schemes have helped increase the participation of young
people in positive activities, improved school attendance rates and attitudes to
learning. Higher aspirations for achievement, work, careers and enterprise
offer to break cycles of deprivation and reliance on state benefits.

Businesses have provided specialist advice, support and other forms of help to
local communities. In a local prison, their input has helped to engage prisoners
in the world of work, to get them a job and so contribute to local society.
Initiatives have supported economic regeneration by providing opportunities
for work experience, and training to improve general work, entrepreneurial
and business management skills. Community development projects have been
helped to increase local project design and delivery skills. Council employees
have also gained from Leeds Ahead. They are now better engaged with, and
understand, the needs of people in deprived areas.

This has improved the prospects, community cohesion and confidence of
many people in the most disadvantaged communities in Leeds. Marginalised
groups have been re-integrated. Families in poverty have gained the
opportunity to become more independent and financially secure. People now
have greater pride, sense of belonging and achievement in their local
communities.

ENTERPRISE AND THE ECONOMY: Increase innovation,
promotion of the City and facilitate major city centre
developments.

As with all major cities, the recession has affected Leeds, particularly
developments in the city centre. As a result, it has reviewed its priorities and is
focusing on the development of the Arena, City Park, city centre
improvements, new retail developments at Trinity Quarter and the expansion
of Leeds Bradford airport. This clear approach gives confidence to investors,
developers and residents that the city is in good shape to overcome the

Page 55
12 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

recession.

Leeds has responded well to the recession. Local public services understand
how it has affected individuals, business and areas. They have provided
targeted help to those most affected, including advice and support to the
recently unemployed. Public and private sector business support services have
been located together in White Rose House. New businesses have been
supported in deprived communities through the Local Enterprise Growth
Initiative (LEGI).

Partners have a clear ambition for the Leeds economy to help drive the wider
economies of the region. They are on track to deliver this goal and are
successfully developing the city's economy and reputation. Until the recession
hit, employment was increasing, as was the number of people using the city's
shops, cultural and leisure facilities. Partners have a detailed understanding of
the city and wider city-regional economy and have identified the facilities the
city must have if its economic ambitions are to be realised, including the Arena
and improved transport into the city. The business, voluntary and community
sectors have been closely involved in setting priorities and in decision making.

Prospects for the future are promising. Partners have ambitions of 'Going up a
league' economically and in quality of life. Good progress has been made on
raising the profile of Leeds as an international city and a new economic
strategy is being developed to support this. Leeds' role at the centre of the
Leeds City region places it well to take advantage of new opportunities and to
continue to grow its economy.

ENVIRONMENT: Increase recycling, reduce
emissions, improve cleanliness and access,
improve sustainability of the built and
natural environment and improve our
resilience to current and future climate
change.

Note: At the time of this assessment, industrial action had disrupted refuse
collections for several weeks. The impact of this on recycling rates and street
cleanliness was not yet known.

Leeds has improved its waste recycling and over 30 per cent of it is now being
recycled, re-used or composted. This is less than most other areas, but is likely
to get better as more garden waste is recycled and there are more kerbside
collections. The Council has spent significant amounts of money to reduce the
amount of waste produced by people in Leeds and the amount that is sent for
recycling. People in Leeds now produce less waste than most parts of the
country. The Council's Integrated Waste Strategy is a comprehensive
approach which aims to maintain progress and meet the long-term demands
of the Government and the European Union.

Page 56
13 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Streets are cleaner than they were and public access to footpaths and rights
of way has improved. Other work to improve the environment has included
the crime and grime initiative and the Graffiti Charter. The Council is
reviewing its environmental performance and plans to invest in areas like
improved street cleaning.

Work has been started to reduce carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions from public
sector buildings and day to day activities, and to encourage businesses to do
likewise. For instance, Housing Associations have put energy-efficiency
upgrades into 3,350 properties, the Council has set up a £1 million fund to
improve its buildings between 2008 and 2010, and its Fuelsavers Team is
helping people to get grants for home improvements. Although work is taking
place to deliver biomass, solar and wind projects there is only a piecemeal
approach to reduce carbon emissions. A lot of work is focused on
understanding current levels of CO2 emissions and how to measure levels
accurately in the future. This will provide a clearer picture of what can be
done to reduce CO2 emissions between 2010 and 2012 and in the longer-
term.

Partners are in the early stages of preparing for the possible impacts of
Climate Change. They have recently agreed a Climate Change Strategy for
the city. They have set aside funds for projects to cope with possible floods
and set up a Programme Board to strengthen focus and leadership. But
partners are not yet able to demonstrate clear results from much of the work
to improve the environment. The newly-produced Climate Change Strategy
has not yet been translated into a detailed, prioritised action and delivery plan.
The contribution of other partners, including business, is not yet clear. One of
the big challenges for Leeds is how it balances its ambitions for economic
growth, for example the expansion of Leeds-Bradford airport, with its
ambitions to reduce carbon emissions. We will follow up progress on
environmental issues later in the year.

HARMONIOUS COMMUNITIES: increased
local engagement and empowerment to
establish increased sense of belonging and
enable vibrant communities.

Fewer people in Leeds feel that people from different backgrounds get on
well than in 2006/07. There are big differences within Leeds, with people in
East, South and West much less positive than those in the North of the City.
Local public services have a programme of work to improve relations between
different groups. This includes the Safer Schools Partnership, which places
safer schools officers in high schools to work with young people on issues like
racial tolerance.

Community Cohesion pilots are being carried out in three areas where there
are particular tensions between different communities - Armley,
Chapeltown/Harehills and Middleton. Work in these areas focuses on trying to
help people to get on better together, rather than addressing some of the
underlying inequalities that create tensions between communities. It is not

Page 57
14 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

clear how ‘narrowing the gap' work to reduce inequalities is integrated with
partners' ambitions to build more harmonious communities. A Leeds
'Neighbourhood Index' is being developed to help local public services
understand the specific issues facing different communities, how best to
tackle them and how to measure if they have made a difference.

The most recent Place Survey showed that satisfaction levels in Leeds
compare well with similar cities. Older people in particular are more satisfied
than elsewhere, with over 80 per cent saying that they are satisfied or very
satisfied. But there are big differences depending on where you live in Leeds.
People in the North East of the city, are much more likely to be satisfied with
their area than people in the South or West. It is likely that this hides even
bigger differences within these fairly large parts of the city. The recent place
survey shows a mixed picture on how well people in Leeds are involved in
their local communities. Fewer people in Leeds than other big cities participate
in civic activities, and there has been a big fall in the number of people who
know how they can get involved in local decision making. On the other hand,
the number of people who felt that they could influence decisions has
increased. Local public services are carrying out a much more detailed
residents' survey to try and understand better the differences within the city.

HEALTH AND WELL BEING: reduce
mortality in the most deprived areas and
improve assessment, access to services
and support to vulnerable people.

Red flag: Keeping vulnerable children and young
people safe

Some vulnerable children and young people are not being kept safe from
harm in Leeds. An inspection of contact, referral and assessment
arrangements - the first point of contact for referring children who might be
at risk - found that child protection referrals do not ensure that children are
adequately safeguarded. Discussions between the Council, police and other
agencies do not take place quickly enough and children are not always seen,
even when there are concerns about their safety.

Inspectors found that key procedures were out of date and that different child
protection teams adopted different approaches. The quality of assessments
and the time taken to complete them varied too much. They found that
record keeping was poor. Some children were identified as having been left at
potential risk of serious harm.

The inspectors also had concerns that the systems for ensuring that the
service is working properly were not good enough and were not helping the
service to get better.

There are other problems with keeping vulnerable children and young people
safe. The number of children admitted to hospital because of unintentional
and deliberate injuries is increasing and is higher than the national average.

Page 58
15 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Inspectors also found in 2007 that'safeguard'ing is inadequate in the privéte
fostering service, which has yet to be re-inspected.

Some of these issues have been raised in previous inspection reports, but the
Council and its partners have been slow to respond to concerns.

The Council responded quickly to the concerns raised in the unannounced
inspection and prepared an action plan in response to the findings. It is too
soon to judge whether these actions are enough to ensure that vulnerable
children in Leeds are safe from harm.

What's being done in response?

Since the unannounced inspection, Leeds has accelerated its improvement
plans to respond to the issues identified. Partners have taken immediate
action to:

- add significantly to the management and leadership in children's social care;

- invest in an additional 12 senior social workers and 10 administrative staff to
support front line workers;

- ensure that all children identified by the Ofsted inspectors as being
potentially at risk of serious harm are safe;

- review all cases of potential harm or neglect reported since 1st April 2009
which did not progress to initial child protection conferences, and ensure that
any concerns identified in the files are addressed;

- agree revised thresholds for action across the partnership and launch new
materials across all agencies to support this. The guidance and publicity
materials adopt a 'no closed doors' approach, in order to ensure that needs
are met at the right level for children, young people and their families

- implement a revised Child Protection Enquiry process;
- introduce a professional triage system for referrals in the Contact centre;

- start a process to both improve and quality assure decision making
processes; and

- conduct fortnightly staff seminars in social care to focus on quality of service
delivery (topics have included: inspection findings, revised Child Protection
Enquiry processes, learning from serious Case Reviews and quality assurance).

HEALTH AND WELL BEING: reduce mortality in the
most deprived areas and improve assessment, access to
services and support to vulnerable people.

Older people in Leeds are happier than in most similar areas. More than 80
per cent of people over 65 said that they were satisfied with their home and
neighbourhood. Most people have a choice about the care that they receive
and more people than average are supported to live independently. For

Page 59
16 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

example, the Independent Living Project has helped people with a learning
disability and adults with mental health needs in Leeds to live more
independent lives. But people do have to wait longer in Leeds for minor
alterations to their home. The Council provides good information and support
to help people maximise benefits and pensions. It helped people to claim
nearly £11 million in extra benefits in 2009.

Arrangements to make sure that vulnerable adults are kept safe have been
improved. New staff have been recruited and more training provided to
existing staff. Partners are working better together to help ensure that
vulnerable people are safe and work has already been done to ensure that
the new procedures are working. Further work is needed to make sure that
they are having an impact.

People in Leeds are living longer than ever before. Early deaths from cancer
are decreasing. Fewer adults in Leeds are obese than the national average
and more are physically active. But there are other problems. Although
recently there has been a slight drop, more teenagers become pregnant in
Leeds than the national average. Leeds also has higher rates of binge drinking
than other parts of the country.

There are big differences in health across the city. An average man in City
and Hunslet will die just over 10 years earlier than an average man in
Harewood. Women in City and Hunslet can expect to live almost nine and a
half years less than women in Adel/Wharfedale. NHS Leeds, the Council and
other organisations are working to try and improve this through a more
systematic approach and by focusing on helping the most vulnerable
communities. We will be following up progress on this as part of next year's
assessment.

Deaths from smoking are higher than the national average, so reducing the
number of smokers is a priority. The number of people who smoke in Leeds is
reducing, particularly in the most deprived areas where, like most big cities,
more people smoke. But there are still one and a half times as many smokers
in deprived areas than in Leeds' more affluent areas. As in most big cities,
more babies die young in Leeds than the national average. NHS Leeds is
taking action to improve this, and is targeting neighbourhoods like Beeston
and Chapeltown which have the worst problems.

LEARNING: improve workforce skills,
learning outcomes and engagement of
vulnerable groups.

Most children in Leeds achieve well at school, but progress is inconsistent.
Achievement is not improving for the youngest children and is not as good as
for children elsewhere. At Key Stage 2 results fell in both English and maths
and the number of schools not hitting government targets is not getting
better. Recent information from the Council shows the number of pupils
getting five A-Cs at GCSE including maths and English remained at just over
46 per cent - the same as in 2008 - after increasing in the previous years from
just over 40 per cent in 2006. Whilst some schools in Leeds recorded big

Page 60
17 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

improvements in GCSE results some slipped back and six schools failed to
meet the government target for 2011. Of these, one closed to become an
academy and two closed to emerge as a hew school.

Progress for some groups is particularly slow. For example, at key stages 2
and 4 Asian pupils perform well below the national average. The gap in
achievement between Asian groups and the Leeds average for GCSEs
including maths and English increased between 2006 and 2008.

Behaviour in some secondary schools is often only satisfactory and despite
improvements, the rate of persistent absence in some schools is still too high.
Nearly 10 per cent of young people are not in education, employment or
training (NEET). There are high numbers from minority ethnic groups who are
NEET progress to improve this has been slow.

More people in Leeds lack Level 2 skills than in other parts of the country, and
the gap with national figures is not narrowing. Level 2 skills cover a wide
range of academic and vocational qualifications that are designed to help
people's employment prospects. Achievement of these level 2 qualifications
by the age of 19 is below national averages, but improving.

Prospects for improving learning are promising, as more action is being taken

to target support on the individuals and groups who most need it. We will
monitor progress on this as part of the 2010 assessment.

THRIVING PLACES: Increase numbers of
decent and affordable homes, reduce
homelessness and fuel poverty. Create a
safer enviroment, reduce worklessness and
develop services to improve to support
children, families and communities.

Red flag: Burglary in parts of Leeds

Burglary rates in Leeds are amongst the highest in the country. In some parts
of Leeds, they are three times the national average. Burglary is particularly
high in deprived areas like Beeston, Harehills, and Armley. Areas with high
student populations also suffer, such as Headingley, where burglary was
nearly nine times higher than in Wetherby in 2008/09.

Overall burglary across Leeds reduced from over 16,300 offences in 2002/03
to 9,248 in 2008/09. But it has increased for each of the last three years, at a
time when the national trend has been downwards. Public service partners
including the police have been slow to respond to this.

Partners recognise that they must make better use of intelligence to identify
high risk offenders. They also know that they must target their efforts

Page 61
18 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

effectively at local level rather than take a 'blanket’ approach to dealing with
the problem. Partners need to work better with the criminal justice system to
try and ensure that offenders are given the right sentences and are properly
supervised when they leave prison.

There are particular problems with young offenders - Leeds has a higher
proportion of younger offenders than average. Most detected burglaries in
Leeds are carried out by males under the age of 21. The Safer Leeds
Partnership's figures show that just under a half of all offenders are aged
between 15 and 19. The high number of young people not in education,
employment or training and high rates of persistent absence in secondary
schools highlight problems around the engagement of young people in positive
activities.

The Partnership has identified the need to do further work to target socially
excluded young people, provide the right level of support and improve how
the management of young offenders is co-ordinated. This means sharing
information on exclusions and persistent absence from school, identifying
families that need the highest levels of support and targeting youth services
and supervision. The Safer Schools Partnerships provides a good opportunity
to make these links more effectively.

The police and council are working together with the probation service and
the courts to try and reduce burglary, but this is not yet having a big impact.
Actions include making properties more difficult to break into, improved street
lighting, providing activities for youths and targeting prolific offenders. There
has been some recent improvement, but this trend must continue over a
longer period to deliver the very big improvements which are needed to
reduce the wide gap between Leeds and similar areas.

What's being done in response?

Key public service partners in Leeds recognise that burglary is an area of
concern and that rates are too high. Burglary action plans include a wide
range of activity aimed at reducing burglary, but some of the plans are still
under development. Work is being done through the Burglary Improvement
Team to improve how burglary is tackled, but this work is not yet complete

Safer Leeds has incorporated best practice from better performing areas into
its action plans.. Partners have developed a joint intelligence function and
tasking process to support the identification and management of offenders.
This is reducing the reoffending of the most prolific offenders and coordinates
the resources of all partners to target the offenders who are identified as
causing the most harm to communities.

These actions are starting to reduce burglary and detection rates have
improved. Discussions are continuing about how to deliver the very big
improvements which are needed. We'll update this section with more detailed
information when it is agreed.

Page 62
19 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

THRIVING PLACES: Increase numbers of decent and
affordable homes, reduce homelessness and fuel
poverty. Create a safer enviroment, reduce
worklessness and develop services to improve to
support children, families and communities.

Apart from burglary, many types of crime have fallen in Leeds, including some
that people are most concerned about, such as violent crime and car theft. In
general, people feel that Leeds is becoming safer. More people feel safe in
their local area after dark than two years ago and significantly fewer people
see drug dealing as a big problem. Fewer people than in other big cities feel
that anti-social behaviour is a problem, whilst more people feel that public
services are working well to make Leeds safer.

The number of serious assaults fell by nearly seven per cent in 2008/09 - with
426 fewer offences than the previous year. This has been helped by targeting
efforts on 'hotspot' pubs and bars in the city, including a more visible
uniformed police presence and stronger licensing enforcement. Special
powers have been used to restrict drinking alcohol on the streets. This has
reduced levels of street drinking. Plastic glasses have been introduced in some
bars and pubs to reduce injuries. A recent survey showed that fewer people in
Leeds than other big cities see drunk and rowdy behaviour as a big problem
and levels of concern have not increased in the last two years. More young
offenders re-offend in Leeds than in similar areas, but the Youth Offending
Service works reasonably well.

Anti-social behaviour by problem families has been reduced. 'Signpost' works
closely with families who are prolific and persistent perpetrators. It helps up to
98 families at any time, also helping with access to other services, for example
health, housing and benefits. The families are fairly chaotic and often have
problems including alcohol & substance misuse and domestic violence. Anti-
social behaviour fell in nearly 9 out of 10 families who completed the
programme. In half the families, criminal behaviour fell and school attendance
improved significantly. The recent place survey showed that fewer people in
Leeds feel that anti-social behaviour is a problem than in most big cities.

Housing is a problem in parts of Leeds. Many people in private rented housing
are living in over crowded accommodation. The latest official figures show
that over 24,000 people are on the waiting list for housing. Fewer people than
before turn down the public sector houses they are offered as unsuitable, but
the rate is still too high. This suggests that the system to provide choice does
not work as well as it should.

Local public services have worked hard to try and increase the number of
affordable houses. Funding has been agreed to deliver affordable housing as
part of the East Leeds regeneration scheme. Planning policies have been
strengthened to ensure that 30 per cent of all new housing developments
include properties that people on lower incomes can afford. The quality of
public sector housing is improving. All homes are set to meet the
government's 'decent homes' standard by 2010/11. Fewer people than before
are homeless in Leeds, and numbers continue to fall. Private sector tenancies
are being used as an alternative to becoming homeless. The use of temporary
accomodation for homeless people has fallen by 70 per cent since 2006. A
sanctuary scheme is proving successful and mediation has been used in 182

Page 63
20 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

cases to prevent homelessness. We will follow up progress on housing as part
of next year's assessment.

Getting people into work in the poorer areas of the City is a problem.
Unemployment - the nhumber of people claiming Job Seeker's Allowance - rose
by 90 per cent between May 2008 and 2009. This was higher than the rise in
most of the other big cities, although more recent figures are much more
encouraging. Unemployment is over 10 per cent in some inner city areas in
Leeds - more than double the Leeds average. In Chapeltown, it is 17 per cent.
Worklessness (the nhumber of people either unemployed or unable to work) in
some inner city areas is well over 30 per cent. Partners are doing a lot to try
and help people into work. For example, the Local Employment Partnership
(LEP) has seen 651 employers sign up to offer work opportunities to people in
less well off communities. Partners recognise that they still need to do more to
improve things.

TRANSPORT: Improve public transport
services in Leeds, condition of the
transport infrastruture and road safety.

Transport congestion, public transport and the condition of roads and
pavements are consistently high priorities for Leeds residents. In response,
partners have decided to improve transport systems and how easily people
can use them, improve the condition of the streets and public transport
facilities and improve safety for all users of the roads.

In 2004, one third of people thought that public transport was the most
important thing for the future of Leeds. This was the top priority. Progress
since then on improving the quality, use and accessibility of public transport
has been relatively slow. One of the main problems is that public transport is
provided by private companies and local public services have limited influence
on bus and train services. Some improvements have been made. Bus shelters
and train stations have been improved and bus lanes built to help buses run
faster and make services more convenient. But not enough people are using
buses across West Yorkshire, and passenger satisfaction with bus services in
Leeds isn't getting better.

Roads and pavements in Leeds have got better. In 2007, Leeds people said
that repairing roads and pavements was their top priority for improvement.
Since then, the Council has increased spending on repairs and fewer people
now see this as a top priority for improvement. Reducing congestion was also
a big priority for Leeds people in 2007. Access to the city has been improved
through new roads, such as the East Leeds Link Road and Inner Ring Road 7.
More people are leaving their cars at home when they travel into Leeds in the
morning peak. More people are cycling to work, with the number of cycle
trips exceeding targets. But congestion remains a problem on many roads.

The Council, police and fire service are doing a lot of work to help make roads
safer. Success has been mixed. Fewer people have been killed on the roads,
but more have been seriously injured, especially cyclists and pedestrians and
the Leeds target for reducing the number of people killed or seriously injured

Page 64
21 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

in road accidents was just missed.

Leeds has identified that improved transport is key to the city's future
economic success- so the Council is working with a range of partners on a
new local transport plan for 2011. This will help link transport plans more
closely with other work and help support a more sustainable Leeds in the
future. Plans include ‘New Generation Transport'. This includes a trolley-bus
system which could improve public transport access for communities. In the
long-term, there is some hope that 'Quality contracts' with bus operators will
improve bus services, though this is a difficult challenge which has not yet
been resolved anywhere in the country outside London.

Page 65
22 Leeds



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

CAA looks at how well local public services, working together, are meeting the
needs of the people they serve. It's a joint assessment made by a group of
independent watchdogs about the performance of local public services, and
how likely they are to meet local priorities. From 9 December you will find the
results of Comprehensive Area Assessment on the Oneplace website -
http://oneplace.direct.gov.uk/

Alternative formats - If you require a copy of PDF documents in this site in
large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a language other than English, please call:
0844 798 7070

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Telephone: 0844 798 1212

Fax: 0844 798 2945

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

m for an independent overview
of local public services

Page 66

23 Leeds



Agenda ltem 9

Originator: Steven Courtney

- CITY COUNCIL Tel: 247 4707

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development

Scrutiny Board (Health)

Date: 16 March 2010

Subject: Provision of Dermatology Services — update

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0
1.1

2.0
2.1

2.2

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of the report is to present the Scrutiny Board (Health) with an updated
position regarding the proposed development of dermatology services within Leeds
Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT).

Background

At its meeting on 24 November 2009, the Board received and considered a range of
information associated with proposed changes to dermatology services, particularly in
terms of in-patient provision on ward 43 at Leeds General Infirmary (LGI). The Board
was made aware of patient’s concerns and anxieties around proposed changes to the
dermatology service and the need to maintain a dedicated in-patient service for those
patients suffering acute episodes that required hospital admission. Members also
heard that patients and the British Association of Dermatologists (BAD) had significant
concerns around the consultation process — highlighting that staff and patients
needed to be engaged and consulted before any decision to changes the services
currently provided on ward 43.

At the same meeting in November 2009, representatives from LTHT explained that
ward 43 had 14 beds — 4 of which were allocated for rheumatology patients. As part
of the broader changes associated with the Clinical Services Reconfiguration (CSR), it
had always been proposed to move the rheumatology beds to St James’s University
Hospital (SJUH). Coupled with the fact that, in the future, the current ward would
become isolated with no out of hours medical cover, it was considered that the
dermatology ward was unsustainable as a 10 bed unit.

Page 67



2.3

24

2.5

Members were advised that consideration was being given to re-providing
dermatology services elsewhere within the Trust and an options appraisal was being
undertaken. Members were assured by LTHT that there had always been an
intention to engage and consult with staff and patients, and that further work around
engaging and involving key stakeholders would be undertaken in an open and
transparent manner.

Following consideration of the issues presented and discussed at the meeting, the
Scrutiny Board raised the following concerns and agreed these should be
communicated to LTHT’s Chief Executive:

e The Scrutiny Board is not averse to changes in services but an emerging
theme for the year to date, seemed to be around how changes are proposed
and progressed.

e The Scrutiny Board is concerned that the Chief Executive of LTHT had
already indicated that ward 43 was not suitable as a ward and would be
turned into office space: Despite the assurances given at the meeting, it
seemed that a decision had already been taken to move services from Ward
43.

e The Scrutiny Board is again concerned about the lack of consultation by
LTHT with key stakeholders and that the Trust did not seem to have a
strategy or procedure for consultation.

e Variations to services need to be looked at in terms of the potential impact on
service users and clinical need — not just in terms of the level of expenditure:
The Scrutiny Board believes that the changes represented a substantial
variation in service and as such should be the subject of a 12 week period of
consultation, in which the Scrutiny Board should be included.

e The Scrutiny Board agreed that this issue should come back to the Scrutiny
Board to ensure that the commitments given by LTHT regarding the
consultation process were taking place.

These matters were brought to the attention of LTHT’s Chief Executive by way of a
letter from the Chair of the Board on 12 January 2010. A response from LTHT was
subsequently issued on 26 January 2010 and is summarised below:

e LTHT has no intention to discontinue providing dedicated Dermatology
inpatient beds, the continued need for these beds and the need for skilled
nursing staff is recognised. LTHT is seeking to re-provide the inpatient beds
to another Ward location within the Trust.

e A recognition that the Scrutiny Board is not adverse to changes in services
and the need for LTHT to improve its communication with the Scrutiny Board
regarding how changes are proposed, discussed and progressed. LTHT is
committed to this improvement in communication and the agreed
reintroduction of the health proposals working group, should be a
fundamental part of this process.

e At the meeting on 23 November 2009, where the Scrutiny Board visited LGl,
an indication of the broad direction of travel for LTHT was given in relation to
the Clinical Services Reconfiguration Programme and to the potential impact
this will have on the future use of estate within LTHT. Comments made
during that discussion did not mean that any definitive decision had been
made regarding the future location of the Dermatology inpatient beds.

Page 68



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

e LTHT had already indicated its intention to look at the options to re-provide
the Dermatology inpatient beds on another ward within the Trust: However,
no definitive plan had yet been made regarding the location of these inpatient
beds.

¢ In relation to consultation with key stakeholders, LTHT is keen to work with
patients, service users and staff on any proposed changes to service. It is
unfortunate and regrettable that the proposal to re-provide the Dermatology
inpatient beds resulted in such initial concern amongst patients and staff.
While this was never intended there are learning points regarding how initial
communication of such matters are handled in the future. However, more
formal engagement with and involvement of patients has now been
established. A patient panel has been set up and has so far met on two
occasions. The establishment of the patient panel enables more effective and
comprehensive communication to be developed and maintained between
LTHT and the Dermatology patient groups.

e There is no proposal to change the level of service or support provided to this
patient population, and LTHT has indicated that it is seeking to re-provide the
Dermatology inpatient beds to another ward within the Trust. LTHT is
working with patients and staff on the production of an options paper
regarding the relocation of these inpatient beds — aiming to have this
completed by the end of February 2010. Until the option paper is finalised
and a preferred way forward is determined, LTHT does not agree that a
significant variation to service is indicated.

e A clinical set of criteria has also been produced, led by the Dermatology
Consultants which will be used as the basis for determining and assessing
the future options for the Dermatology inpatient beds. A lead individual
(Matron) has been identified within the Trust to work with the patient panel
and the Dermatology team on the production of the options paper regarding
the future location of the Dermatology inpatient beds.

Dermatology Services — proposed changes

At its meeting on 24 November 2009, the Board agreed to monitor progress with
regard to the proposed changes to dermatology services and reconsider the issues
raised at a future meeting.

In this regard, representatives from LTHT and the newly established patient panel
(Leeds Dermatology Patients Panel (LDPP)) have been invited to attend the meeting
to provide an update for the Board. Representatives from NHS Leeds, as the service
commissioner, will also be in attendance.

At the time of writing this report, no formal written submissions had been received,
however such information may be provided at the meeting

Recommendation

Members of Scrutiny Board are asked to consider the information presented in this
report and discussed at the meeting, and determine any:

4.1.1 Specific action the Board may wish to take;

4.1.2 Recommendations the Board may wish to make;

Page 69



4.1.3 Matters that require further scrutiny.

5.0 Background Papers

¢ Provision of Dermatology Services — Scrutiny Board (Health), 24 November 2009
e Dermatology Services (Ward 43) — letter to LTHT (12 January 2010)
e Dermatology Services (Ward 43) — letter from LTHT (26 January 2010)

Page 70



Agenda ltem 10

Originator: Steven Courtney

- CITY COUNCIL Tel: 247 4707

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Health)
Date: 16 March 2010

Subject: Renal Services in Leeds: Response to the Scrutiny Board’s statement and
recommendations

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0 Purpose of this Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to present the responses to statement and
recommendations of the Scrutiny Board (Health) — agreed in December 2009,
associated with the provision of renal services (dialysis) in Leeds, particularly in terms
of provision at Leeds General Infirmary (LGI).

2.0 Background

2.1 The Scrutiny Board (Health) considered proposals to alter the planned provision of
Renal services across Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust at its meeting on 28 July
2009. At that meeting the Scrutiny Board took evidence from a range of stakeholders,
including the service commissioners, LTHT, Yorkshire Ambulance Service and patient
representatives from the Kidney Patients Association (KPA) for LGl and St. James’
University Hospital (SJUH).

2.2 Based on the Department of Health Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny for Health
and the evidence presented at the meeting, the Scrutiny Board concluded that the
proposed changes to renal dialysis provision represented a substantial variation to
service delivery. As such, the Board recommended that a statutory period of
consultation should take place prior to any decision of the (LTHT) Board. The
Scrutiny Board produced a statement to this affect, which was subsequently
presented to the LTHT Board meeting.

Page 71



2.3

24

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

The Scrutiny Board highlighted a number of outstanding issues to be pursued and, at
its meeting on 30 July 2009, the LTHT Board agreed to defer its decision, pending
further discussions with the Scrutiny Board.

The outstanding issues the Scrutiny Board wished to pursue were confirmed by way
of a set of supplementary questions, issued to LTHT and other key stakeholders on 6
August 2009. A response seeking to address the outstanding matters was presented
and considered by the Scrutiny Board at its meeting on 24 November 2009. The draft
Yorkshire and The Humber Renal Strategy (2009-2014) was also presented for
consideration at that meeting. When considering the additional information, the
Scrutiny Board (Health) raised a number of concerns and agreed to address these
concerns to the Secretary of State for Health.

At its meeting on 15 December 2009, the Scrutiny Board (Health) agreed its
statement ‘Renal Services in Leeds’, which was subsequently issued to the Secretary
of State for Health and all relevant local NHS organisations for response and/or
comment. The statement was also distributed to a wide range of stakeholders,
including the Chair’s of all other Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees across the
Yorkshire and Humber region.

Renal Services in Leeds — response to recommendations

Responses and comments on the Board’s statement and recommendations have now
been received from all relevant NHS organisations: These are presented in Appendix
1.

Representatives from the following NHS organisations have been invited to attend the
meeting and address any further questions from the Board:

e NHS Yorkshire and the Humber;
e NHS Leeds;

e Yorkshire and the Humber Specialised Commissioning Group;
e Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust.

Recommendation

Members of Scrutiny Board are asked to consider and amend/ agree the draft
statement, as appropriate.

The Scrutiny Board is also asked to determine any specific action the Board may wish
to take and/or any matters that may require further scrutiny.

Background Papers

e Scrutiny Board (Health) — Renal Services report — 28 July 2009

e Scrutiny Board (Health) — Renal Services report — 24 November 2009
e Scrutiny Board (Health) — Renal Services report — 15 December 2009
¢ Renal Services in Leeds — Scrutiny Board statement (December 2009)

Page 72



APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY STATEMENT: RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS (DECEMBER 2009)

Recommendation

Response

Stage

Complete

¢/ obed

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust:

(a) Immediately re-affirms its commitment
to re-provide dialysis facilities at Leeds
General Infirmary; and,

(b) Finalise plans for replacement dialysis
facilities at Leeds General Infirmary
and deliver these as soon as
practicable, but no later than
December 2010.

LTHT response

The regional Specialist Commissioning Group (SCG) is currently modelling demand
and the provision of services as part of its work on an overarching strategy for renal
services. This work is expected to be available by the end of January 2010.

As the Trust and commissioners are awaiting the outcome of the modelling work we
believe it is proper to consider the information provided through that exercise prior to
making any final decision about the future provision of dialysis stations in Leeds.
Further consideration of this by the Trust Board is therefore necessarily deferred until
such time as a proper response to the outcome of the strategy debate is possible.

The Trust regrets further delay to a decision about a satellite unit at LGI but we will
keep Scrutiny and interested parties advised as the situation develops.

SCG comment

The West Yorkshire Commissioners in conjunction with the Yorkshire and the
Humber Renal Network are currently reviewing all dialysis provision in West
Yorkshire to re-affirm the short, medium and long term requirements.

The review will be conducted in the context of:-

e The Y&H Renal Services strategy
e A severely constrained financial environment
¢ No available NHS capital to fund new facilities

Consideration will also need to be given to the workforce implications of any
proposals and the patient transport implications.

The work currently in progress, reviewing dialysis provision in West Yorkshire, is
based on “need”. The service plans are being developed and implemented using the
most up to date information in respect of current and predicted numbers of patients,
best clinical practice, availability of workforce, and availability of funding — both
revenue and capital. However the plans will need to be realistic and deliverable.
The limited availability of NHS capital funding is posing a significant challenge to
taking forward a number of service plans including the renal services plans.




APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY STATEMENT: RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS (DECEMBER 2009)

Recommendation

Response

Stage

Complete

¥/ ebed

SCG comment (continued)

There is an urgent need to resolve a number of short to medium term requirements
as there will be a sequence of events over the next year which will impact on the
services provided by the Leeds renal centre including:-

(a) Need to move the dialysis unit off the St Lukes Hospital site in Huddersfield
by December 2010

(b) Need to move the dialysis unit off the Clayton Hospital site in Wakefield

(c) Need to open the new dialysis unit in Pontefract

(d) Need to replace the water treatment plant on the St James Hospital site

NHS Leeds comment

The final outcome of the decision regarding whether or not to re-provide RRT at the
LGI site has not yet been discussed at Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust Board
or communicated formally to either SCG or NHS Leeds.

NHS Leeds is committed to working with SCG, Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust,
patient groups and the Leeds Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OCS) to arrive at a
way forward regarding what is the most clinically and cost effective service for the
dialysis population of Leeds. The NHS is facing a difficult financial future and this will
also need to be considered as part of any evaluation.

NHS Leeds fully accept that patients and scrutiny members have raised legitimate
concerns and we are working with SCG and Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust to
agree how these issues can be resolved in the interests of both patients and the
public. In response to the concerns raised by the Kidney Patient Association (KPA)
we are undertaking the following: -

1. A clinical review of care at the Seacroft renal dialysis unit.

2. Areview of data and issues raised by the KPA and other patients on the
travelling times for patients to the Seacroft site. This information will be
seriously considered by NHS Leeds in determining our response to any future
plans for the unit.




APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY STATEMENT: RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS (DECEMBER 2009)

Recommendation

Response

Stage

Complete

G/ ebed

By May 2010, the Yorkshire and the
Humber Specialised Commissioning
Group review its current work programme
to identify those areas of service
development where overview and scrutiny
committees should be actively engaged,
and propose an appropriate timetable of
activity.

SCG response

The SCG is in the process of developing its commissioning strategy for the next 3-5
years and the work programme for the next year. The SCG’s Deputy Director of
Commissioning is already in discussion with scrutiny officers across Yorkshire and
the Humber about engagement and involvement of OSCs in specialised
commissioning. It is understood that this is one of the items on the agenda for a
meeting of OSC Chairs and officers taking place on 17 March 2010.

NHS Leeds comment

As the SCG, in some instances, acts on behalf of NHS Leeds, we would welcome
any proposals to incorporate SCG activity within the work programme of Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committees across the region.

LTHT comment

We understand the Director of the Specialist Commissioning Group has already
written to the Scrutiny Board about working with Scrutiny Committees in the region to
ensure an appropriate dialogue about the SCGs work programme and priorities. We
look forward to working closely with the SCG and Scrutiny Board to ensure service
provision meets demand and that high quality services are widely available.




APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY STATEMENT: RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS (DECEMBER 2009)

Recommendation

Response

Stage

Complete

9/ ebed

Following the circumstances and
processes associated with the proposal
not to re-provide dialysis facilities at Leeds
General Infirmary, as highlighted in this
report, that by June 2010, the Secretary of
State for Health commissions and
publishes an independent review that:

(a) Focuses on the lessons learned and
areas for improvement, which presents
an appropriate action plan;

(b) Reviews the financial planning
processes and financial management
arrangements of Leeds Teaching
Hospitals NHS Trust;

(c) Considers the circumstances which
resulted in an increase in renal dialysis
capacity at Seacroft Hospital, without
the engagement of the Scrutiny Board
(Health) and, seemingly, NHS Leeds;

(d) Considers any manipulation of key
information (e.g. patient survey
information) which has been presented
as justification for the proposals;

(e) Considers arrangements for the
production and use of patient transport
data in the performance managements
arrangements between all local NHS
organisations, as appropriate.

Secretary of State response

Reconfiguration of services is a matter for the local NHS in conjunction with relevant
stakeholders. It is not appropriate for ministers of the Department [of Health] to
intervene in what are local decision-making processes.

NHS Yorkshire and the Humber have provided assurance that, in order to address
the concerns, full responses from appropriate NHS organisations will be provided
and that on-going communications will be effectively managed.

NHS Yorkshire and the Humber response

NHS Yorkshire and the Humber acknowledges the concerns raised by the Scrutiny
Board and, in conjunction with SCG, NHS Leeds and LTHT, we will establish a way
forward regarding the most clinically and cost effective service for the dialysis
population of Leeds, recognising the sub-regional context in which this decision
needs to be made. This work will take account of the Scrutiny Board’s comments and
observations.

LTHT comment

The Trust Board stands by its decision to review the original decision and believes
the processes and information leading to the current situation are a matter of public
record and that the issues are already well understood. We do not believe any
information has been manipulated during the process. We unintentionally surveyed a
larger number of people than we meant to when seeking patients’ views about their
preferred location for dialysis, but the findings we reported represented the outcome
of the survey. They were in no way manipulated. We note the recommendation for
the Secretary of State.




APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY STATEMENT: RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS (DECEMBER 2009)

Recommendation

Response

Stage

Complete

L/ 8bed

Prior to finalising the draft

Yorkshire and Humber Renal Network
Strategy for Renal Services (2009-2014),
the Yorkshire and the Humber Specialised
Commissioning Group review current
consultation arrangements and, through
dialogue with overview and scrutiny
committees across the region, develop an
extensive 12-week consultation plan.

SCG response

Prior to the establishment of the Yorkshire and Humber wide renal network there
were two networks in place — one covering the north of the patch, the other covering
South Yorkshire, North Derbyshire and Bassetlaw. Both of these networks need
strategies and delivery plans for renal services in their areas. The new Yorkshire and
Humber wide renal strategy draws together and builds on the two previous strategies
to establish a single strategy for the whole region. Work is continuing on developing
the revised Renal Services Strategy covering the next 4 to 5 years. An early draft of
the strategy was circulated in mid November with comments from all stakeholders,
including all OSCs, to be received by the end of December.

A further version of the strategy, incorporating the comments received and more
detail about the work plan will be produced by the end of February, At this point
there will also be a plan on further engagement with stakeholders including patients,
public and OSCs.

In addition to patient representation on all three renal local implementation groups,
the Renal Network Manager is already putting in place meetings with the Kidney
Patient Association groups and the North Region National Kidney Federation
Advocacy Officer to enable active engagement in all these processes. We are, in
conjunction with the Regional Advocacy Officer, also planning a meeting involving
the KPA and senior commissioners in February/March to ensure all parties are
briefed about all the issues and able to contribute to the discussions.

The SCG approved the latest version of the Renal Strategy on 26 February 2010. It
will be ratified by the PCT boards before circulation to all stakeholders.

The SCG agreed that as the Strategy does not contain any proposals for substantial
development, variation in provision of services or operation of services, that it would
not require a further formal consultation. However, any changes arising as a result of
the strategy will be consulted on.




APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY STATEMENT: RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS (DECEMBER 2009)

Recommendation Response Stage | Complete

4 NHS Leeds comment
The commissioning of Renal Replacement Therapy (RRT) is the responsibility of
Yorkshire and the Humber Specialised Commissioning Group (SCG) who act on our
behalf. The SCG are currently reviewing provision in West Yorkshire and met on the
11 January 2010 to try and resolve both short term and medium term issues across
the whole of West Yorkshire. There is a clear intention by the SCG to finalise a
report by the end of February 2010.
LTHT comment
We support the principle of consultation and engagement involving all stakeholders
affected by the renal strategy. That is why we believe it appropriate to await the
publication of the strategy, which is the result of a consultative process, to determine

;,U the appropriate next steps.

Q

B | In light of the issues identified and . .

& | highlighted by this inquiry a review of the | —22d8-City Gouncil response

locally agreed protocol between the
Scrutiny Board (Health) and NHS Bodies in
Leeds be undertaken by June 2010.

In June 2009, the Scrutiny Board (Health) agreed a revised protocol that set out the
principles and operation of health scrutiny in Leeds. This is in the process of being
reviewed by officers and will be presented to the Scrutiny Board for approval in due
course. It is proposed that the protocol will be kept under review by the Scrutiny
Board and considered on an annual basis.

NHS Leeds comment

NHS Leeds welcomes any opportunity to further improve and develop the working
relationship between local NHS bodies and the Scrutiny Board.

LTHT comment

We welcome the opportunity of reviewing the locally agreed protocol to ensure that
our working arrangements support the wider objective to ensure patients are well
served by the NHS and that our decisions and the services we provide are the
subject of proper scrutiny.




APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY STATEMENT: RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS (DECEMBER 2009)

Recommendation

Response

Stage

Complete

6. ebed

That NHS Leeds, NHS Yorkshire and the
Humber and the Secretary of State for
Health seriously consider the content of
this report, its recommendations and any
subsequent responses, prior to supporting
any current or future Foundation Trust
application from Leeds Teaching Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust.

Secretary of State response

See response to Recommendation 3.
NHS Yorkshire and the Humber response

NHS Yorkshire and the Humber will take into account all relevant information,
including those issues highlighted in the Scrutiny Board’s report, when considering
any future Foundation Trust application from LTHT.

NHS Leeds response

NHS Leeds recognises the significant issues and concerns raised by the Scrutiny
Board. We will continue to work with SCG and Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust
to agree how these issues can be resolved in the interests of both patients and the
public. NHS Leeds will consider all relevant information, including those issues
highlighted in the Scrutiny Board’s report, when considering any future Foundation
Trust application from LTHT.

LTHT comment

We expect our partners to take into account all relevant factors and issues in coming
to any decision about their support for our application for Foundation Trust status.
We expect that their decisions will reflect specific issues but equally we would expect
that they will be seen in the context of the huge range of excellent services we
provide. As a Trust we would intend to use Foundation Trust status and the
constitutional arrangements that support it as a way of strengthening the
engagement and consultation we currently undertake about our services.




APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY STATEMENT: RENAL SERVICES IN LEEDS (DECEMBER 2009)

Recommendation

Response

Stage

Complete

That this report be issued to the Secretary
of State for Health seeking the appropriate
action be taken to secure the immediate
implementation of Recommendation 1.

Secretary of State response

See response to Recommendation 3.
NHS Yorkshire and the Humber response

See response to Recommendation 3.

A decision regarding whether or not to re-provide kidney dialysis facilities at the LGI
site is still to be concluded. NHS Yorkshire and the Humber will continue to work
with all local NHS bodies to ensure that any future decision in this regard has a clear
and robust rationale and takes into account the regional context in which these
services are provided.

LTHT comment

The Trust notes the recommendation for the Secretary of State for Health.

0g ebed




Agenda ltem 11

Originator: Steven Courtney

-~ CITY COUNCIL

Tel: 247 4707

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Health)
Date: 16 March 2010

Subject: Updated Work Programme 2009/10

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

1.0 Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present and update members on the current activity
across a number of work areas and present an outline work programme. The Board
is asked to consider, amend and agree its work programme, as appropriate.

2.0 Background

2.1 At its meeting on 30 June 2009, the Board received a number of inputs to help
members consider the Board’s priorities during the current municipal year. This
included specific inputs from:

Executive Board Member for Adult Health and Social Care
Deputy Director (Adult Social Services)

NHS Leeds

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT)

Leeds Partnerships Foundation Trust (LPFT)

2.2 At that meeting a number of potential work areas were identified by members of the
Board. These potential areas were confirmed in a further report, along with an
outline work programme, presented at the Board meeting held on 28 July 2009.

2.3 Subsequently, the outline work programme, including any emerging issues, is
routinely presented to the Scrutiny Board for consideration, amendment and/or
agreement: The work programme was most recently presented and agreed at the
Scrutiny Board meeting held on 16 February 2010.

Page 81



3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0
4.1

5.0

Work programme (2009/10)

A revised outline work programme is presented at Appendix 1 for consideration. A
copy of the Executive Board minutes (from the meeting held on 12 February 2010)
are attached at Appendix 2, for information.

Members will be aware that the outline work programme should be regarded as a
‘live’ document, which may evolve and change over time to reflect any in-year
change in priorities and/or emerging issues. As the end of the current municipal year
approaches, the attached draft work programme seeks to draw the Board’s current
work to conclusion.

As such, the Scrutiny Board is asked to consider the attached outline work

programme for the remainder of the year and agree / amend as appropriate.

Recommendations

Members are asked to consider the details presented in this report and agree /
amend (as appropriate) the outline work programme presented at Appendix 1.

Background Documents

Scrutiny Board (Health) — Updated Work programme (16 February 2010)

Page 82



£g abed

Scrutiny Board (Health)

Work Programme 2009/10

APPENDIX 1

Item Description Notes :I'ype 2
item
Meeting date — 16 March 2010
To receive a verbal report on the main issues , .
The local health economy | facing the local health economy and the Chief Executive of NHS Leeds to B
. I attend and present
associated priorities.
- To receive the joint Leeds City Council and NHS .
CR):agtrirly Accountability Leeds performance report for quarter 3 cpéi\éli?j:?e%ei;foézatgc;?bfrpggog PM
P (2009/2010). b
Provision of dermatology | To consider further progress in developing future Previously considered in
services plans for delivery of the service. November 2009. DP
Renal services in Leeds To consider the responses to the Scrytiny Board’s | Statement published — December MSR
statement and specific recommendations. 2009.
Key:
RFS Request for scrutiny MSR | Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation
DP Development of new policy Cl Callin




8 ebed

APPENDIX 1

Scrutiny Board (Health)
Work Programme 2009/10

Item Description Notes :I'ype 2
item
Meeting date — 27 April 2010
Added to work programme in
Quality Accounts To consider draft quality account submissions January 2010. Scheduled in PM

February 2010

To include the ‘next steps’ and
anticipated costs associated with
To consider the outcome of the recent consultation | administering any new
Foundation Trust Status exercise, including the key messages and any arrangements. DP

emerging issues. Added to work programme in

January 2010. Scheduled in

February 2010.
Scrutiny Inquiry -
promoting good public To agree the Board’s final inquiry report. Timing to be confirmed RP
health
Recommendation To monitor progress against the recommendations
h . : . L MSR
Tracking agreed following previous Scrutiny Board inquiries.
Annual Report To agree the Board’s contribution to the annual
scrutiny report
Key:
RFS Request for scrutiny MSR | Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation
DP Development of new policy Cl Callin




Gg ebed

Scrutiny Board (Health)
Work Programme 2009/10

APPENDIX 1

Working Groups

Working group Membership Progress update Dates
/ré)\qllef?%rg;‘;ny gfrzrd e Working group re-established and terms of reference
Health Proposals Working membership of CllIr. agreed. . . 3 December 2009
Group Dobson and Clir e Membership established
Chapman ’ e First meeting held on 3 December 2009
This inquiry is being undertaken by the Scrutiny
s i ki Board (Adult Social Care) with nominated
:pﬁo ":ﬁ working age representatives from Scrutiny Board (Health) 19 October 2009
adutis with severe an e Working group re-established and terms of reference | 15 December
enduring mental health
roblems agreed. 2009
P e Membership established
e Initial meeting dates arranged
Scrutiny Inquiry — ) Proposed working group to further consider alcohol
promoting good public /ré)\?llei%rg;‘;ny Board related harm associated with the inquiry and identified Z;?B,\é?mh 2010
health by the Scrutiny Board.
Key:
RFS Request for scrutiny MSR | Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation
DP Development of new policy Cl Callin




9g ebed

Scrutiny Board (Health)
Work Programme 2008/09

Unscheduled / Potential Items

Item

Description

Notes

Use of 0844 Numbers at GP Surgeries

To consider the impact of the recent
Government guidance on local GP
practices and any implications for
patients.

Various correspondence exchanged and
clarification sought.

The Board to maintain a watching brief
and kept up-to-date with any
developments

Openness in the NHS

To consider how the Department of
Health guidance is interpreted and
implemented locally.

An outline of the approach adopted by the
local NHS Trusts requested.

Responses from NHS Leeds and LPFT
received.

Reply from LTHT awaited.

Children’s Cardiac Surgery Services

To contribute to the national review and
consider any local implications.

First newsletter published (August 2009)

National stakeholder event held 22
October 2009.

Draft clinical standards issued for
consultation.

Clarification sought on local involvement
and engagement activity. Local
involvement likely to be after March 2010.

Key:

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR | Monitoring scrutiny recommendations

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation

DP Development of new policy Cl Callin




/8 8bed

Scrutiny Board (Health)
Work Programme 2008/09

Unscheduled / Potential Items

Item

Description

Notes

Children’s Neurosurgery Services

To contribute to the national review and
consider any local implications.

First bulletin published (September 2009)

National stakeholder event held 30
November 2009.

Clarification sought on local involvement
and engagement activity. Local
involvement likely to be after March 2010.

Narrowing the Gap

To consider the impact of the ‘Narrowing
the Gap’ initiative, in terms of improving
healthy outcomes.

Added to the work programme: December
2009

Primary Care Service Development
and use of the Capital Estate

In the light of NHS Leeds’ decisions to
withdraw from projects in Kirkstall and
Holt Park, to consider the PCT’s longer-
term strategy for developing services
through its capital estate.

Added to the work programme: December
2009

Health Scrutiny — Department of
Health Guidance

To receive and consider revised
guidance associated with health scrutiny
and any implications for local practice.

Guidance was due to be published in
November 2009. Confirmation from the
DoH that this will be delayed until after the
general election. No firm publication
dates are yet available.

Key:

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR | Monitoring scrutiny recommendations

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation

DP Development of new policy Cl Callin




8g ebed

Scrutiny Board (Health)
Work Programme 2008/09

Unscheduled / Potential Items

Item

Description

Notes

Specialised commissioning
arrangements

To consider the current arrangements for
specialised commissioning within the
region and the role of scrutiny.

The planned Department of Health (DoH)
consultation on developing / strengthening
Health Scrutiny may have an impact.

Hospital Discharges

To consider a follow up report on
progress against the recommendations
(.,e. 15, 16 and 17) detailed in the
Independence, Wellbeing and Choice
inspection report

Consider report at a future meeting.

Out of Area Treatments (Mental
Health)

To consider the report prepared by Leeds
Hospital Alert and the response from
LPFT.

Leeds Hospital Alert report received 1 July
2009. Responses received from LPFT in
July 2009.

Key:

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR | Monitoring scrutiny recommendations

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation

DP Development of new policy Cl Callin




175

EXECUTIVE BOARD
FRIDAY, 12TH FEBRUARY, 2010
PRESENT: Councillor A Carter in the Chair
Councillors R Brett, J L Carter, R Finnigan,
S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand,
J Monaghan, J Procter and K Wakefield

Councillor R Lewis — Non-Voting Advisory Member

Exclusion of the Public

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on
the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as
follows:-

(@)

Appendix B to the report referred to in minute 181 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that
it is not publicly available from the statutory registers of information
kept in relation to certain companies and charities. It is considered that
since this information has been prepared for the Council’s assessment
of various property transactions then it is not in the public interest to
disclose this information at this point in time. Also the release of such
information would or would be likely to prejudice the Council’s
commercial interests in relation to and undermine its attempts to
acquire by agreement similar properties in the locality in that owners of
other similar properties would be aware about the nature and level of
consideration which may prove acceptable to the Council. Itis
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure,
much of this information will be available from the Land Registry
following completion of the purchase and consequently the public
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing this information at this point in time.

Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 188 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and appendix 2 to the
same report under 10.4(3,6), and on the grounds that it contains
information about the commercial position of the City Council in relation
to the proposed procurement; information which would reveal action
the authority proposes to take under legislation, in relation to identified
sites which are subject to separate consultation in the first instance
with residents and staff concerned. The public interest of maintaining
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing such
information. Whilst it is considered that there is public interest in
disclosure of this information at the earliest opportunity, it is deemed
more appropriate, and consequently of greater public interest to ensure

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 89



176

177

178

that the information is released once a decision has been made by
Executive Board.

(c)  Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 189 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that
it contains information which if disclosed to the public would, or would
be likely to prejudice the commercial interests of the Council. The
Appendix contains commercially sensitive information which if
disclosed may prejudice the future negotiation of the contract for the
project.

(d)  Appendices 1 and 2 to the report referred to in minute 185 under the
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the
basis that it contains information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information) which if disclosed to the public would, or would be likely to
prejudice the commercial interests of that person or of the Council. The
proposals have been considered in terms of the benefit that the Council
would seek as part of any proposal to make its land available to
facilitate any S106 requirements.

(e)  Appendices B and C to the report referred to in minute 194 under the
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the
grounds that they contain information that is commercially sensitive
relating to the Council’s ongoing waste PFI procurement and the
financial and business affairs of Bidders, where the benefit of keeping
the information confidential is considered greater than that of allowing
public access to the information.

Declaration of Interests

Councillor Wakefield declared personal interests in the matters referred to in
minute 179 as a school and college governor and a personal and prejudicial

interest in the matters referred to in minute 185 as a consequence of a close
personal association connected to Farsley Celtic.

Minutes
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 6™ January 2010 be
approved.

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

Items relating to the New Generation Transport (NGT) Scheme
RESOLVED - That consideration of the two items entered on the agenda
relating to the New Generation Transport scheme be deferred to the next
meeting of the Board.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 90



CENTRAL AND CORPORATE

179 Revenue Budget 2010/2011 and Capital Programme

(A)

Revenue Budget 2010/11 and Council Tax 2010/11

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the proposals for the
City Council’s Revenue Budget for 2010/11, on the Leeds element of
the Council Tax to be levied in 2010/11 and the Council House rents
for 2010/11. In presenting the report the Director indicated that the final
determination in respect of the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy was
at variance with the figure contained in the papers as submitted to the
Board. It was proposed that the estimates for the Housing Revenue
Accounts be amended for submission to Council, reflecting the final
subsidy determination with a subsequent increase in the HRA
reserves. It was reported that a further report will be submitted to the
Board with proposals on the use of these additional resources in
2010/11.

On behalf of the Board, the Chair paid tribute to all those officers who
had been involved in the preparation of the 2010/11 budget and
thanked them for their efforts.

RESOLVED -

(@) That Council be recommended to approve the Revenue Budget
for 2010/11 totalling £569,295,000, as detailed and explained in
the submitted report and accompanying papers, including a 2.5%
increase in the Leeds element of the Council Tax, subject to
appropriate amendments to the report for submission to Council to
reflect the final determination in respect of the Housing Revenue
Account.

(b) That with respect to the Housing Revenue Account Council be
recommended to:

(1) approve the budget at the average rent increase of figure
of 3.1%

(i) increase the charges for garage rents to £6.07 per week

(iii) increase service charges in line with rents (3.1%)

Capital Programme Update 2009-2014

The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out the updated
Capital Programme for 2009-2014. A page containing revised
recommendations had been circulated to all members in advance of
the meeting.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the following be recommended to Council:
(i) That the capital programme, as attached to the submitted
report, be approved and that the list of schemes shown at
Appendix H to the report be reserved until additional
resources become available;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 91



()

(i) That the Executive Board be authorised to approve in
year amendments to the capital programme including
transfers from and to the reserved programme in
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules;

(iif)  That the proposed Minimum Revenue Provision policies
for 2010/11 as set out in 5.3 of the report and explained
in Appendix G be approved;

(iv)  That the Minimum Revenue Provision policies for
2009/10 be amended as set out in 5.3.3 of the report.

That the list of land and property sites shown in appendix F to
the report be disposed of to generate capital receipts to support
the capital programme

That the Director of Resources be authorised to manage,
monitor and control scheme progress and commitments to
ensure that the programme is affordable.

Treasury Management Strateqy 2010/2011

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the Treasury
Management Policy and Strategy for 2010/11

RESOLVED -

(@)

(e)

That approval be given to the initial treasury strategy for 2010/11
as set out in Section 3.3 of the report and that the review of the
2009/10 strategy and operations set out in Sections 3.1 and 3.2
be noted.

That Council be recommended to set borrowing limits for
2009/10, 2010/11. 2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out in Section
3.4 of the report.

That Council be recommended to set treasury management
indicators for 2009/10, 2010/11,2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out
in Section 3.5 of the report.

That Council be recommended to set investment limits for
2009/10. 2010/11, 2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out in Section
3.6 of the report.

That Council be recommended to adopt the revised CIPFA
Treasury Management Code of Practice 2009 and revised
Prudential Code.

(The matters referred to in parts A(a), A(b), B(a) (i) to (iv) and C(b) to (e)
being matters reserved to Council were not eligible for Call In)

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to in parts (A) and (B) of this minute)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 92



180

181

182

Financial Health Monitoring 2009/10 - Quarter Three Report

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the financial position of the
authority after nine months of the financial year in respect of the revenue
budget and the housing revenue account.

RESOLVED - That the projected financial position of the authority after nine
months of the financial year be noted.

Changing the Workplace Report and Business Case

The Director of Resources submitted a report presenting the objectives and
proposals for the Changing the Workplace programme, with particular focus
on the delivery of phase 1 of the initiative in the city centre.

Following consideration of Appendix B to the report, designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rules 10.4(3), which was considered
in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was

RESOLVED -
(@) That the programme for changing the workplace as outlined in the
report be supported

(b) That the recommendations for phase 1 as detailed in paragraph 5 of
the exempt appendix, and with regard to the following matters, be

approved

1. The negotiation of terms for the acquisition of a building on the
terms detailed in the appendix or procuring the construction of
a building.

2. Seeking release of freehold and leasehold properties as
proposed.

3. Agreement to the level of fees proposed for specialist property
advice.

4, Agreement to the reinvestment of the property efficiency

savings plus 5% of other efficiencies to be delivered through
the Changing the Workplace programme, to support delivery of
the new workplaces, technology, programme resource and
training for phase 1.

5. Agreement that the Director of Resources bring a further report
to this Board regarding a preferred option.

City Card

The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted
a report outlining a proposal for the introduction and implementation of the
City Card scheme as part of the Council’s Business Transformation

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 93



183

184

185

programme, as a phased development, focussing in Phase 1 on City
Development.

RESOLVED - That approval be given to an injection of £692,000 into the
Capital Programme, and that authority be given to incur expenditure of
£1,342,000 to implement phase one of the City Card project.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter pending
receipt of a detailed briefing with regard to the proposals)

Scrutiny - Half Year Report

The Chief Democratic Services Officer submitted a report introducing the first
half yearly report with respect to the operation of the Scrutiny function in
Leeds.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 2009

The Director of City Development submitted a report summarising the key
aspects of, and presenting for approval, the Leeds Strategic Housing Land
Availability Assessment (SHLAA) for 2009.

In presenting the report, the Chair thanked all those officers within City
Development who had been involved in the preparation of the Leeds SHLAA
document for 2009.

RESOLVED - That the Leeds Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment 2009 be approved for publication.

Farsley Celtic Administration

The Director of City Development submitted a report on two proposals in
relation to the future use of the Farsley Celtic facility, the Council’s interests in
the site and the need to inform the Administrator with regard to the Council’s
intentions in the matter.

Following consideration of Appendices 1 and 2 to the report, designated as
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were
considered in private at the conclusion to the meeting it was

RESOLVED -

(@) That Members being satisfied that assisting FC 2010 Limited would
promote the social and environmental wellbeing of the area, assistance
be offered to FC 2010 Limited as a means of supporting their proposed
Creditor Voluntary Arrangement and that approval be given to the
following:

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 94



186

(i) The use of the Council land shown on plan 1 attached to the
submitted report to support the delivery of any Section 106
Agreement required for Chartford Homes’ adjacent residential
development.

(i) The use of the Council’s land at less than best consideration, at
a peppercorn, on a licence or leasehold basis, on final terms to
be approved by the Chief Asset Management Officer.

(i)  To utilise the Council’s Prudential Borrowing powers to provide a
loan to FC 2010 Limited on the basis of the Heads of Terms
outlined in Appendix 2 of the report, subject to the Director of
Resources being satisfied with the outcome of the final due
diligence undertaken and the final terms agreed.

(b)  Thatin the event that FC 2010 Limited’s proposal is not acceptable to
the Administrator, officers be authorised to pursue alternative courses
of action in the terms now indicated.

(c) That this decision be exempt from Call In due to the matter being
considered urgent, and that Call In may result in the Administrator
seeking to liquidate the Football Club’s assets without further delay.

(Councillor Wakefield, having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, left
the meeting during the consideration of this matter)

NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING

Future Improvement Priorities for Private Sector Housing

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining
the proposed future priorities for action to improve private sector housing in
Leeds, including the basis upon which future investment bids and proposals
would be made.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the following proposals to be adopted as future private sector
priorities for action for private sector housing in Leeds.

(i) Direct investment towards excess cold / fuel poverty and falls
hazards

(i) To progress strong partnership collaborative work with NHS
Leeds, the Leeds City Region Partnership, and Government in
support of the Health and Housing Agenda.

(i)  Exploring new and innovative ways of securing funding to
support future investment plans.

(iv)  Jointly undertake a feasibility exercise to assess the potential of
introducing private finance through the use of Social Impact
Bonds (SIB) with CLG.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 95



187

188

(b)  That a further report be brought to the Board providing further detail on
potential funding options.

Home Energy Conservation Act (HECA) (1995) - 13th Progress Report
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
providing an update on the progress which has been made in relation to the
overall energy efficiency levels of the Leeds housing stock during the period
1% April 2008 to 31% March 2009.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That content of the 13" HECA Progress Report be approved and that it
be noted that the report will be released to Government Office for
Yorkshire and the Humber, upon request.

(b)  That an annual report, on the same basis as this report, continues to
be brought to this Board.

Round 6 Housing PFI Project: Lifetime Neighbourhoods for Leeds
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of Adult
Social Services submitted a joint report setting out a proposal for
improvements to older people’s housing as a result of the Council’s
successful Expression of Interest for Round 6 of the national Housing PFI
programme.

Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report, designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and appendix 2 to the
report designated as exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule

10.4 (3) and (6), which were considered in private at the conclusion of the

meeting it was

RESOLVED -
(@)  That approval be given to the scope of the project as follows:

e 700 new build accommodation of extra care or lifetime homes
aimed primarily at older people, 300 units of extra care; 400
lifetime homes.

e mostly 2 bedroom units (flats and houses) with a small number of
3 bed houses (2 or 3 per site) where site size allows;

e a 25 year long HRA Scheme, with a five year construction period;

o Lifetime Homes standard for all properties. Code for Sustainable
Homes Level 4/BREEAM Very Good as a minimum;

e design, build and facilities management including repairs, lifecycle
improvements, housing management, communal service
management (for extra care), and leasehold management (if
applicable); and

e 10 sites in 10 locations.

(b)  That the sites listed in the table of exempt Appendix 2a to the report be
included in the project.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 96



189

(9)
(h)

That approval be given to an anticipated City Council financial
contribution as detailed within section 2 (iii) of exempt Appendix 1 to
the report

That the Outline Business Case be completed and submitted, following
approval by the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods under
delegated authority, on the basis of the details set out above.

That approval be given for a period of statutory consultation to
commence with immediate effect to be undertaken as set out in
recommendation (i) of exempt Appendix 2a to the report.

That, having regard to the scope and context of this project and
reasons set out in the report, support be given to the principle of
replacing sheltered housing as set out in recommendation (ii) of
exempt Appendix 2A to the report and that the Chief Housing Officer
be authorised to take the final decision on whether the sheltered
housing should be replaced as proposed following any relevant formal
consultation. Further, that any consequential decisions about
suspension of lettings, re-housing and demolition should also be taken
by the Chief Housing Officer at the appropriate time under delegated
authority.

That a progress report be brought to this Board in June 2010.

That the project be allocated to the Housing PFI Project Board for
project governance proposals

ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

Holt Park Wellbeing Centre - Affordability Position

The Director of Adult Social Services and Director of City Development
submitted a joint report on the revised affordability position for the Holt Park
Wellbeing Centre project.

Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report, designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was

RESOLVED -

(@)

That approval be given to the revised estimated affordability
implications and sensitivity analysis over the life of the proposed PFI
Contract for the Holt Park Wellbeing centre, summarised in table 1 of
the exempt appendix to the report

That the detailed information contained in the exempt appendix with
regard to recalculation of PFI credit and reassessment of the
affordability position be noted and that the revised affordability
position, as contained in paragraph 3.6 of the appendix, be approved.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 97



190

191

192

(c) That officers be authorised to issue the City Council’s affordability
thresholds relating to the PFI project to the LEP and to Environments
for Learning.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

The Ofsted and Care Quality Commission Inspection of Safeguarding
and Looked After Children's Services in Leeds

The Interim Director of Children’s Services submitted a report providing
details of the outcomes from the recent announced Ofsted inspection of
safeguarding and looked after children’s services in Leeds.

RESOLVED - That the findings of the announced inspection of safeguarding
and looked after children’s services and how these fit into the wider
improvement work currently taking place be noted.

Scrutiny Board (Children's Services) Inquiry into Safeguarding - Interim
Report: Director of Children's Services Response

The Interim Director of Children’s Services submitted a report presenting a
response to the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) interim report regarding
the Safeguarding of Children. The Chair of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s
Services) attended the meeting and presented the interim report of the Board.

RESOLVED - That the recommendation of the Children’s Services Scrutiny
Board Inquiry into Safeguarding-Interim Report be noted and that the
response set out by the Interim Director of Children’s Services in Paragraphs
3.2 to 3.7 of the submitted report be approved as an appropriate response to
the recommendation.

Outcome of Consultation on the Expansion of Primary Provision for
September 2010
Further to minute 103 of the meeting held on 14™ October 2009 the Chief
Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report detailing the outcomes
arising from the statutory public consultation process undertaken with respect
to the prescribed alterations to:
e permanently expand the 17 primary schools identified in paragraph 2.3
of the report
e add community specialist provision for up to 14 pupils with complex
medical physical needs at New Bewerley Primary School
e add community specialist provision for up to 14 pupils with complex
medical physical needs at Whitkirk Primary School.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the outcome of statutory public consultation on the prescribed
alterations be noted

(b)  That approval be given for the publication of a statutory notice in
respect of the proposals

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 98



193

194

(c) That it be noted that a report detailing the response to the statutory
notice will be brought to this Board for determination.

Outcome of Consultations on the Expansion of Primary Provision at
Gildersome Primary School in 2011 and at Richmond Hill Primary
School in 2012

Further to minutes 104 of the meeting held on 14" October 2009 and 120 of
the meeting held on 4™ November 2009 the Chief Executive of Education
Leeds submitted a report detailing the outcomes from the statutory public
consultation exercise undertaken with respect to Richmond Hill Primary
School and Gildersome Primary School.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the outcome of statutory public consultation on the prescribed
alterations to permanently expand Gildersome and Richmond Hill
Primary Schools be noted.

(b)  That approval be given for the publication of a statutory notice
proposing:

(i) the expansion of Gildersome Primary School to a new capacity of
420 pupils from September 2011, with an admission limit of 60

pupils

(i) the expansion of Richmond Hill Primary School to a new capacity
of 630 pupils from September 2012, with an admission limit of 90

pupils.

(c) That it be noted that a report detailing the response to the statutory
notice will be brought back to this Board in the Summer of 2010 for a
final decision.

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Waste Solution for Leeds - Residual Waste Treatment PFI Project -
Results of Detailed Solutions Stage

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
presenting the outcomes arising from the evaluation of bids at the Detailed
Solutions stage of the procurement process. The report also provided an
update on the progress of the Residual Waste Treatment PFI Project since
the report which was considered by the Board in November 2008 (minute
136).

Following consideration of Appendices B to the report and C which was
circulated at the meeting, designated as exempt under Access to Information
Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were considered in private at the conclusion to
the meeting it was

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 99



RESOLVED -

(a)

(b)

That approval be given to the exclusion of the residual waste transfer
station from the scope of the Residual Waste Treatment PFI project

That approval be given to the proposal not to develop a dedicated
residual waste transfer station, with the result that all residual waste for
treatment under the PFI contract will be delivered directly to the main
residual waste treatment facility once the operational phase of the PFI
contract commences

That the Board notes the continued requirement for the provision at
Evanston Avenue of a household waste sorting site (HWSS) and the
existing level of waste transfer capacity for a range of materials, and
the intention to bring a further report to this Board on the proposed city-
wide HWSS strategy, which will expand on the strategy for
redevelopment of the Evanston Avenue site

That the programme going forward to complete the Residual Waste
procurement and to award the contract be noted

That the communications strategy going forward be noted

That the Board notes the affordability issues detailed in the exempt
section of the submitted report and approves that the Price Ceiling will
be calculated based upon the methodology set out in Appendix B
paragraphs 1.6 and 1. 7 until the selection of Preferred Bidder.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter).

DATE OF PUBLICATION: 16" February 2010
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 23" February 2010

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on
Wednesday 24" February 2010)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 100



175

EXECUTIVE BOARD
FRIDAY, 12TH FEBRUARY, 2010
PRESENT: Councillor A Carter in the Chair
Councillors R Brett, J L Carter, R Finnigan,
S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand,
J Monaghan, J Procter and K Wakefield

Councillor R Lewis — Non-Voting Advisory Member

Exclusion of the Public

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on
the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as
follows:-

(@)

Appendix B to the report referred to in minute 181 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that
it is not publicly available from the statutory registers of information
kept in relation to certain companies and charities. It is considered that
since this information has been prepared for the Council’s assessment
of various property transactions then it is not in the public interest to
disclose this information at this point in time. Also the release of such
information would or would be likely to prejudice the Council’s
commercial interests in relation to and undermine its attempts to
acquire by agreement similar properties in the locality in that owners of
other similar properties would be aware about the nature and level of
consideration which may prove acceptable to the Council. Itis
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure,
much of this information will be available from the Land Registry
following completion of the purchase and consequently the public
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing this information at this point in time.

Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 188 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and appendix 2 to the
same report under 10.4(3,6), and on the grounds that it contains
information about the commercial position of the City Council in relation
to the proposed procurement; information which would reveal action
the authority proposes to take under legislation, in relation to identified
sites which are subject to separate consultation in the first instance
with residents and staff concerned. The public interest of maintaining
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing such
information. Whilst it is considered that there is public interest in
disclosure of this information at the earliest opportunity, it is deemed
more appropriate, and consequently of greater public interest to ensure

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 101



176

177

178

that the information is released once a decision has been made by
Executive Board.

(c)  Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 189 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that
it contains information which if disclosed to the public would, or would
be likely to prejudice the commercial interests of the Council. The
Appendix contains commercially sensitive information which if
disclosed may prejudice the future negotiation of the contract for the
project.

(d)  Appendices 1 and 2 to the report referred to in minute 185 under the
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the
basis that it contains information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information) which if disclosed to the public would, or would be likely to
prejudice the commercial interests of that person or of the Council. The
proposals have been considered in terms of the benefit that the Council
would seek as part of any proposal to make its land available to
facilitate any S106 requirements.

(e)  Appendices B and C to the report referred to in minute 194 under the
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the
grounds that they contain information that is commercially sensitive
relating to the Council’s ongoing waste PFI procurement and the
financial and business affairs of Bidders, where the benefit of keeping
the information confidential is considered greater than that of allowing
public access to the information.

Declaration of Interests

Councillor Wakefield declared personal interests in the matters referred to in
minute 179 as a school and college governor and a personal and prejudicial

interest in the matters referred to in minute 185 as a consequence of a close
personal association connected to Farsley Celtic.

Minutes
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 6™ January 2010 be
approved.

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

Items relating to the New Generation Transport (NGT) Scheme
RESOLVED - That consideration of the two items entered on the agenda
relating to the New Generation Transport scheme be deferred to the next
meeting of the Board.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 102



CENTRAL AND CORPORATE

179 Revenue Budget 2010/2011 and Capital Programme

(A)

Revenue Budget 2010/11 and Council Tax 2010/11

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the proposals for the
City Council’s Revenue Budget for 2010/11, on the Leeds element of
the Council Tax to be levied in 2010/11 and the Council House rents
for 2010/11. In presenting the report the Director indicated that the final
determination in respect of the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy was
at variance with the figure contained in the papers as submitted to the
Board. It was proposed that the estimates for the Housing Revenue
Accounts be amended for submission to Council, reflecting the final
subsidy determination with a subsequent increase in the HRA
reserves. It was reported that a further report will be submitted to the
Board with proposals on the use of these additional resources in
2010/11.

On behalf of the Board, the Chair paid tribute to all those officers who
had been involved in the preparation of the 2010/11 budget and
thanked them for their efforts.

RESOLVED -

(@) That Council be recommended to approve the Revenue Budget
for 2010/11 totalling £569,295,000, as detailed and explained in
the submitted report and accompanying papers, including a 2.5%
increase in the Leeds element of the Council Tax, subject to
appropriate amendments to the report for submission to Council to
reflect the final determination in respect of the Housing Revenue
Account.

(b) That with respect to the Housing Revenue Account Council be
recommended to:

(1) approve the budget at the average rent increase of figure
of 3.1%

(i) increase the charges for garage rents to £6.07 per week

(iii) increase service charges in line with rents (3.1%)

Capital Programme Update 2009-2014

The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out the updated
Capital Programme for 2009-2014. A page containing revised
recommendations had been circulated to all members in advance of
the meeting.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the following be recommended to Council:
(i) That the capital programme, as attached to the submitted
report, be approved and that the list of schemes shown at
Appendix H to the report be reserved until additional
resources become available;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 103



()

(i) That the Executive Board be authorised to approve in
year amendments to the capital programme including
transfers from and to the reserved programme in
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules;

(iif)  That the proposed Minimum Revenue Provision policies
for 2010/11 as set out in 5.3 of the report and explained
in Appendix G be approved;

(iv)  That the Minimum Revenue Provision policies for
2009/10 be amended as set out in 5.3.3 of the report.

That the list of land and property sites shown in appendix F to
the report be disposed of to generate capital receipts to support
the capital programme

That the Director of Resources be authorised to manage,
monitor and control scheme progress and commitments to
ensure that the programme is affordable.

Treasury Management Strateqy 2010/2011

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the Treasury
Management Policy and Strategy for 2010/11

RESOLVED -

(@)

(e)

That approval be given to the initial treasury strategy for 2010/11
as set out in Section 3.3 of the report and that the review of the
2009/10 strategy and operations set out in Sections 3.1 and 3.2
be noted.

That Council be recommended to set borrowing limits for
2009/10, 2010/11. 2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out in Section
3.4 of the report.

That Council be recommended to set treasury management
indicators for 2009/10, 2010/11,2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out
in Section 3.5 of the report.

That Council be recommended to set investment limits for
2009/10. 2010/11, 2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out in Section
3.6 of the report.

That Council be recommended to adopt the revised CIPFA
Treasury Management Code of Practice 2009 and revised
Prudential Code.

(The matters referred to in parts A(a), A(b), B(a) (i) to (iv) and C(b) to (e)
being matters reserved to Council were not eligible for Call In)

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to in parts (A) and (B) of this minute)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 104



180

181

182

Financial Health Monitoring 2009/10 - Quarter Three Report

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the financial position of the
authority after nine months of the financial year in respect of the revenue
budget and the housing revenue account.

RESOLVED - That the projected financial position of the authority after nine
months of the financial year be noted.

Changing the Workplace Report and Business Case

The Director of Resources submitted a report presenting the objectives and
proposals for the Changing the Workplace programme, with particular focus
on the delivery of phase 1 of the initiative in the city centre.

Following consideration of Appendix B to the report, designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rules 10.4(3), which was considered
in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was

RESOLVED -
(@) That the programme for changing the workplace as outlined in the
report be supported

(b) That the recommendations for phase 1 as detailed in paragraph 5 of
the exempt appendix, and with regard to the following matters, be

approved

1. The negotiation of terms for the acquisition of a building on the
terms detailed in the appendix or procuring the construction of
a building.

2. Seeking release of freehold and leasehold properties as
proposed.

3. Agreement to the level of fees proposed for specialist property
advice.

4, Agreement to the reinvestment of the property efficiency

savings plus 5% of other efficiencies to be delivered through
the Changing the Workplace programme, to support delivery of
the new workplaces, technology, programme resource and
training for phase 1.

5. Agreement that the Director of Resources bring a further report
to this Board regarding a preferred option.

City Card

The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted
a report outlining a proposal for the introduction and implementation of the
City Card scheme as part of the Council’s Business Transformation

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 105



183

184

185

programme, as a phased development, focussing in Phase 1 on City
Development.

RESOLVED - That approval be given to an injection of £692,000 into the
Capital Programme, and that authority be given to incur expenditure of
£1,342,000 to implement phase one of the City Card project.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter pending
receipt of a detailed briefing with regard to the proposals)

Scrutiny - Half Year Report

The Chief Democratic Services Officer submitted a report introducing the first
half yearly report with respect to the operation of the Scrutiny function in
Leeds.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 2009

The Director of City Development submitted a report summarising the key
aspects of, and presenting for approval, the Leeds Strategic Housing Land
Availability Assessment (SHLAA) for 2009.

In presenting the report, the Chair thanked all those officers within City
Development who had been involved in the preparation of the Leeds SHLAA
document for 2009.

RESOLVED - That the Leeds Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment 2009 be approved for publication.

Farsley Celtic Administration

The Director of City Development submitted a report on two proposals in
relation to the future use of the Farsley Celtic facility, the Council’s interests in
the site and the need to inform the Administrator with regard to the Council’s
intentions in the matter.

Following consideration of Appendices 1 and 2 to the report, designated as
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were
considered in private at the conclusion to the meeting it was

RESOLVED -

(@) That Members being satisfied that assisting FC 2010 Limited would
promote the social and environmental wellbeing of the area, assistance
be offered to FC 2010 Limited as a means of supporting their proposed
Creditor Voluntary Arrangement and that approval be given to the
following:

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 106



186

(i) The use of the Council land shown on plan 1 attached to the
submitted report to support the delivery of any Section 106
Agreement required for Chartford Homes’ adjacent residential
development.

(i) The use of the Council’s land at less than best consideration, at
a peppercorn, on a licence or leasehold basis, on final terms to
be approved by the Chief Asset Management Officer.

(i)  To utilise the Council’s Prudential Borrowing powers to provide a
loan to FC 2010 Limited on the basis of the Heads of Terms
outlined in Appendix 2 of the report, subject to the Director of
Resources being satisfied with the outcome of the final due
diligence undertaken and the final terms agreed.

(b)  Thatin the event that FC 2010 Limited’s proposal is not acceptable to
the Administrator, officers be authorised to pursue alternative courses
of action in the terms now indicated.

(c) That this decision be exempt from Call In due to the matter being
considered urgent, and that Call In may result in the Administrator
seeking to liquidate the Football Club’s assets without further delay.

(Councillor Wakefield, having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, left
the meeting during the consideration of this matter)

NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING

Future Improvement Priorities for Private Sector Housing

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining
the proposed future priorities for action to improve private sector housing in
Leeds, including the basis upon which future investment bids and proposals
would be made.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the following proposals to be adopted as future private sector
priorities for action for private sector housing in Leeds.

(i) Direct investment towards excess cold / fuel poverty and falls
hazards

(i) To progress strong partnership collaborative work with NHS
Leeds, the Leeds City Region Partnership, and Government in
support of the Health and Housing Agenda.

(i)  Exploring new and innovative ways of securing funding to
support future investment plans.

(iv)  Jointly undertake a feasibility exercise to assess the potential of
introducing private finance through the use of Social Impact
Bonds (SIB) with CLG.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 107



187

188

(b)  That a further report be brought to the Board providing further detail on
potential funding options.

Home Energy Conservation Act (HECA) (1995) - 13th Progress Report
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
providing an update on the progress which has been made in relation to the
overall energy efficiency levels of the Leeds housing stock during the period
1% April 2008 to 31% March 2009.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That content of the 13" HECA Progress Report be approved and that it
be noted that the report will be released to Government Office for
Yorkshire and the Humber, upon request.

(b)  That an annual report, on the same basis as this report, continues to
be brought to this Board.

Round 6 Housing PFI Project: Lifetime Neighbourhoods for Leeds
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of Adult
Social Services submitted a joint report setting out a proposal for
improvements to older people’s housing as a result of the Council’s
successful Expression of Interest for Round 6 of the national Housing PFI
programme.

Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report, designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and appendix 2 to the
report designated as exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule

10.4 (3) and (6), which were considered in private at the conclusion of the

meeting it was

RESOLVED -
(@)  That approval be given to the scope of the project as follows:

e 700 new build accommodation of extra care or lifetime homes
aimed primarily at older people, 300 units of extra care; 400
lifetime homes.

e mostly 2 bedroom units (flats and houses) with a small number of
3 bed houses (2 or 3 per site) where site size allows;

e a 25 year long HRA Scheme, with a five year construction period;

o Lifetime Homes standard for all properties. Code for Sustainable
Homes Level 4/BREEAM Very Good as a minimum;

e design, build and facilities management including repairs, lifecycle
improvements, housing management, communal service
management (for extra care), and leasehold management (if
applicable); and

e 10 sites in 10 locations.

(b)  That the sites listed in the table of exempt Appendix 2a to the report be
included in the project.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 108



189

(9)
(h)

That approval be given to an anticipated City Council financial
contribution as detailed within section 2 (iii) of exempt Appendix 1 to
the report

That the Outline Business Case be completed and submitted, following
approval by the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods under
delegated authority, on the basis of the details set out above.

That approval be given for a period of statutory consultation to
commence with immediate effect to be undertaken as set out in
recommendation (i) of exempt Appendix 2a to the report.

That, having regard to the scope and context of this project and
reasons set out in the report, support be given to the principle of
replacing sheltered housing as set out in recommendation (ii) of
exempt Appendix 2A to the report and that the Chief Housing Officer
be authorised to take the final decision on whether the sheltered
housing should be replaced as proposed following any relevant formal
consultation. Further, that any consequential decisions about
suspension of lettings, re-housing and demolition should also be taken
by the Chief Housing Officer at the appropriate time under delegated
authority.

That a progress report be brought to this Board in June 2010.

That the project be allocated to the Housing PFI Project Board for
project governance proposals

ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

Holt Park Wellbeing Centre - Affordability Position

The Director of Adult Social Services and Director of City Development
submitted a joint report on the revised affordability position for the Holt Park
Wellbeing Centre project.

Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report, designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was

RESOLVED -

(@)

That approval be given to the revised estimated affordability
implications and sensitivity analysis over the life of the proposed PFI
Contract for the Holt Park Wellbeing centre, summarised in table 1 of
the exempt appendix to the report

That the detailed information contained in the exempt appendix with
regard to recalculation of PFI credit and reassessment of the
affordability position be noted and that the revised affordability
position, as contained in paragraph 3.6 of the appendix, be approved.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 109



190

191

192

(c) That officers be authorised to issue the City Council’s affordability
thresholds relating to the PFI project to the LEP and to Environments
for Learning.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

The Ofsted and Care Quality Commission Inspection of Safeguarding
and Looked After Children's Services in Leeds

The Interim Director of Children’s Services submitted a report providing
details of the outcomes from the recent announced Ofsted inspection of
safeguarding and looked after children’s services in Leeds.

RESOLVED - That the findings of the announced inspection of safeguarding
and looked after children’s services and how these fit into the wider
improvement work currently taking place be noted.

Scrutiny Board (Children's Services) Inquiry into Safeguarding - Interim
Report: Director of Children's Services Response

The Interim Director of Children’s Services submitted a report presenting a
response to the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) interim report regarding
the Safeguarding of Children. The Chair of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s
Services) attended the meeting and presented the interim report of the Board.

RESOLVED - That the recommendation of the Children’s Services Scrutiny
Board Inquiry into Safeguarding-Interim Report be noted and that the
response set out by the Interim Director of Children’s Services in Paragraphs
3.2 to 3.7 of the submitted report be approved as an appropriate response to
the recommendation.

Outcome of Consultation on the Expansion of Primary Provision for
September 2010
Further to minute 103 of the meeting held on 14™ October 2009 the Chief
Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report detailing the outcomes
arising from the statutory public consultation process undertaken with respect
to the prescribed alterations to:
e permanently expand the 17 primary schools identified in paragraph 2.3
of the report
e add community specialist provision for up to 14 pupils with complex
medical physical needs at New Bewerley Primary School
e add community specialist provision for up to 14 pupils with complex
medical physical needs at Whitkirk Primary School.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the outcome of statutory public consultation on the prescribed
alterations be noted

(b)  That approval be given for the publication of a statutory notice in
respect of the proposals

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 110



193

194

(c) That it be noted that a report detailing the response to the statutory
notice will be brought to this Board for determination.

Outcome of Consultations on the Expansion of Primary Provision at
Gildersome Primary School in 2011 and at Richmond Hill Primary
School in 2012

Further to minutes 104 of the meeting held on 14" October 2009 and 120 of
the meeting held on 4™ November 2009 the Chief Executive of Education
Leeds submitted a report detailing the outcomes from the statutory public
consultation exercise undertaken with respect to Richmond Hill Primary
School and Gildersome Primary School.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the outcome of statutory public consultation on the prescribed
alterations to permanently expand Gildersome and Richmond Hill
Primary Schools be noted.

(b)  That approval be given for the publication of a statutory notice
proposing:

(i) the expansion of Gildersome Primary School to a new capacity of
420 pupils from September 2011, with an admission limit of 60

pupils

(i) the expansion of Richmond Hill Primary School to a new capacity
of 630 pupils from September 2012, with an admission limit of 90

pupils.

(c) That it be noted that a report detailing the response to the statutory
notice will be brought back to this Board in the Summer of 2010 for a
final decision.

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Waste Solution for Leeds - Residual Waste Treatment PFI Project -
Results of Detailed Solutions Stage

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
presenting the outcomes arising from the evaluation of bids at the Detailed
Solutions stage of the procurement process. The report also provided an
update on the progress of the Residual Waste Treatment PFI Project since
the report which was considered by the Board in November 2008 (minute
136).

Following consideration of Appendices B to the report and C which was
circulated at the meeting, designated as exempt under Access to Information
Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were considered in private at the conclusion to
the meeting it was

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 111



RESOLVED -

(a)

(b)

That approval be given to the exclusion of the residual waste transfer
station from the scope of the Residual Waste Treatment PFI project

That approval be given to the proposal not to develop a dedicated
residual waste transfer station, with the result that all residual waste for
treatment under the PFI contract will be delivered directly to the main
residual waste treatment facility once the operational phase of the PFI
contract commences

That the Board notes the continued requirement for the provision at
Evanston Avenue of a household waste sorting site (HWSS) and the
existing level of waste transfer capacity for a range of materials, and
the intention to bring a further report to this Board on the proposed city-
wide HWSS strategy, which will expand on the strategy for
redevelopment of the Evanston Avenue site

That the programme going forward to complete the Residual Waste
procurement and to award the contract be noted

That the communications strategy going forward be noted

That the Board notes the affordability issues detailed in the exempt
section of the submitted report and approves that the Price Ceiling will
be calculated based upon the methodology set out in Appendix B
paragraphs 1.6 and 1. 7 until the selection of Preferred Bidder.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter).

DATE OF PUBLICATION: 16" February 2010
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 23" February 2010

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on
Wednesday 24" February 2010)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010

Page 112



	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 16th February 2010
	7 The Local Health Economy - Priorities for NHS Leeds
	8 Joint Performance Report: Quarter 3 2009/10
	2 Quarter 3 - joint performance report

	9 Provision of Dermatology Services - Update
	10 Renal Services in Leeds - Response to the Scrutiny Board's statement and recommendations
	2 Renal Services  - Appendix 1 (agreed response)

	11 Updated Work Programme 2009/10
	2 Work programme - Appendix 1
	3 Work programme - Appendix 2 (Exec Board Minutes 12.2.10)
	Exec Board Minutes 12.2.10


